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Growth through diversification 

From tractor assembling to fork-lift trucks, diesel generator sets and prime movers. Millat 
has always been a truly locally indigenized player with global footprint. 

Millat Tractors Limited has always been on the forefront of diversification. Millat Tractors Limited 
has strived to achieve excellence and exceed the expectation of its stake holders. 

The story starts from initially developing gensets and prime movers; later collaboring with Heli, 
China to produce forklift trucks and now the Company has partnered up with IPS to offer 
business software and Enterprise Resource Solutions to local market on behalf of one of the 
world's renowned IT solution provider. 

Ourjourney of growth through diversification is steady and continuous.... 
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CHRONICLES 

1964 1982 1993 2002 
Company established Inauguration of Engine Bolan Castings Ltd Quality Management 

CBU Import (MF Tractors) Assembly Plant-(Perkins Buyout System Upgraded to ISO 
Engines) 9001:2000 

1965 
Assembly of tractors 

from SKD 

1984 
Inauguration of 
Machining Plant 

1994 
Mass Production 

of Generating Sets. 

2002 
Millat Industrial Products 

Ltd established. 

2011 
1972 1990 1994 Highest tractor 

Nationalization Perkins distributor Millat Eguipment Ltd production of 42,188 
Agreement established. and sale of 42,011 units 

1973 
Licensing and transfer of 
Technology Agreement 

with MF, UK 

1992 
Privatization through 

Employee Buyout 

1998 
ISO 9002 Certification 

Achieved. 

2012 
TIPEG Inter-trade DMCC, 

UAE established. 

1973 
Licensing and transfer of 
Technology Agreement 

with Perkins, UK 

1992 
Inauguration of New Tractor 
Assembly Plant (MF Design) 

2000 
Licensing Agreement - Heli 

Forklift Trucks (China) 

2015 
Export Agreement with 

AGCO 

2017 
- Business Partnership 
Agreement with IPS 

- Launch of Emission 
Compliant 

Euro II Engines 
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Millat Tractors Ltd (MIL) is Pakistan's leading engineering company in the 

automobile sector, an ISO 9001:2008 certified company for its Assembly Plants 

of Tractors, Engines, Industrial and Agricultural Products, as well as Material 

Testing and Gauge Control Laboratory. 

Asia's Best 200 under a 

Billion Dollar 

Companies 

(Forbes Global) 

16th Largest company 

with exceptional 

performance in global 

tractor manufacturing 

industry (Plimsoll UK) 

Achieved FPCCI Award 

in Tractor & Agriculture 

Implements Sector 2015 

31st and 32nd Corporate 

Excellence Award by 

MAP 

Declared 2nd Best 

Company in PSX Top 25 

Companies Awards 

Brand of the Year Award, 

2016 (Tractors) by 

Brands Foundation 

Pakistan 

Production Capacity Pioneer in farm 
More than 35,000 mechanization 
Tractors per annum 
with double shift 
capacity. 

Indigenization Level: Market Leader with 
Around 90% over 60% Market 

Share 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Sales Revenue 
Rs. in Million 

30,014 

Profit After Tax 
Rs. in Million 

Number of 
Outstanding Shares 

(000's) 

4,258 i 44,293 

Earnings per Share- 
Basic and Diluted 

Rs. 

i 96.12 

16,914 1,750 i 44,293 39.52 

O r\j 

Dividend 
Rs. / Share 

95.00 O r\j 

Dividend 
Percentage 

98.83 

Long Term 
Investments 

Rs. in Million 

O CM 

Total Current Assets 
Rs. in Million 

484 i 15,622 

50.00 126.53 397 8,321 

Shareholders Equity 
Rs. in Million 

5,750 

Return on Capital 
Employed 
Percentage 

i 76.42 

Current Ratio 
Times 

1.38:1 

Debt: Equity Ratio 
Times 

0:100 

o r\j 4,141 O r\j 43.21 O r\j 1.54:1 O r\j 0:100 

Market Capitalization Market Capitalization 
(Year End) (year End) 

Rs. in Million us$ in Mi||ion 

60,878 580 

Price to 
Earning Ratio 

Times 

14.30 

Net Assets per Share 
Rs. 

129.82 

i 25,258 i 241 i 14.43 1 93.51 
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Vision 

Millat to be a global group of companies, 

recognized for a range of quality products with 

innovative design capabilities. 
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Mission 

To be market leader in agricultural tractors and 

machinery, building company's image through 

innovation and competitiveness, grow by expanding 

market and investing into group companies, ensuring 

satisfaction to customer and stakeholders and to 

fulfill social obligations. 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

CHAIRMAN 

Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

S M Irfan Aqueel 

DIRECTORS 

Mr. Latif Khalid Hashmi 

Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana 

Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari 

Mian Muhammad Saleem 

Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 

Mr. Saad Iqbal 

COMPANY SECRETARY 

Muhammad Faisal Azeem 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

Mr. Sohail A. Nisar - FCA 

AUDITORS 

M/s. EY Ford Rhodes, 

Chartered Accountants 

LEGAL ADVISORS 

Asjad Saeed and Associates 

Akhtar Ali & Associates 

Ch. Law Associates Inn 

COMPANY SHARE REGISTRARS 

M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., 

1st Floor, H.M. House, 7-Bank Square, Lahore. 

Tel: 042-37235081-82 

Fax: 042-37358817 

shares@hmaconsultants.com 

BANKERS 

Bank Alfalah Ltd. 

Habib Bank Ltd. 

MCB Bank Ltd. 

Standard Chartered Bank. 

United Bank Ltd. 

Allied Bank Ltd. 

Meezan Bank Ltd. 

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PLANT 

Sheikhupura Road, Distt. Sheikhupura. 

Tel: 042-37911021 -25, UAN: 111 -200-786 

Fax: 042-37924166, 37925835 

Website: www.millat.com.pk 

E-mail: info@millat.com.pk 



REGIONAL OFFICES 

KARACHI 
3-A, Faiyaz Centre, Sindhi Muslim 
Co-operative Housing Society, 
Tel: 021 -34553752, UAN: 111 -200-786 Fax: 021 -34556321 

MULTAN CANTT. 
Garden Town, (Daulatabad), Shershah Road, 
Tel: 061-6537371 
Fax: 061-6539271 

ISLAMABAD 
H. No. 22, St. No. 41, Sector F-6/1, 
Tel: 051-2271470, UAN: 111-200-786 
Fax: 051-2270693 

SUKKUR 
A-3, Professor Housing Society, 
Shikarpur Road, 
Tel: 071-5633042, Fax: 071-5633187 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana 
Chairman Director 

Mr Laeeq Uddin Ansari 
Director 

Mr Latif Khalid Hashmi 
Director 
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S M Irfan Aqueel 
Chief Executive 

Mian Muhammad Saleem 
Executive Director 

Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 
Director 

Mr. Saad Iqbal 
Director 
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BOARD COMMITTEES 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

1. Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah Chairman 

2. Mr. Latif Khalid Hashmi Member 

3. Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana Member 

4. Mr. Saad Iqbal Member 

vi) review of management letter issued by external 

auditors and management's response thereto; 

vii) ensuring co-ordination between the internal and 

external auditors of the Company: 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as 

follows : 

i) To recommend to the Board of Directors, the 

appointment of external auditors, their removal, 

audit fees, the provision by the external auditors of 

any service to the Company in addition to audit of 

financial statements. 

viii) review of the scope and extent of internal audit and 

ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate 

resources and is appropriately placed within the 

Company: 

ix) consideration of major findings of internal 

investigations of activities characterized by fraud, 

corruption and abuse of power and management's 

response thereto; 

ii) determination of appropriate measures to safeguard 

the Company's assets; 

ill) review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial 

statements of the Company, prior to their approval by 

the Board of Directors, focusing on: 

majorjudgmental areas; 

significant adjustments resulting from the audit; 

the going concern assumption: 

any changes in accounting policies and practices; 

compliance with applicable accounting standards; 

compliance with listing regulations and other 

statutory and regulatory requirements: and 

significant related party transactions. 

iv) review of preliminary announcements of results prior 

to publication: 

v) facilitating the external audit and discussion with 

external auditors of major observations arising from 

interim and final audits and any matter that the 

auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence of 

management, where necessary): 

x) ascertaining that the internal control systems including 

financial and operational controls, accounting systems 

for timely and appropriate recording of purchases and 

sales, receipts and payments, assets and liabilities and 

the reporting structure are adequate and effective; 

xi) review of the Company's statement on internal 

control systems prior to endorsement by the Board of 

Directors and internal audit reports; 

xii) instituting special projects, value for money studies 

or other investigations on any matter specified by the 

Board of Directors, in consultation with the CEO and 

to consider remittance of any matter to the external 

auditors or to any other external body; 

xiii) determination of compliance with relevant statutory 

requirements: 

xiv) monitoring compliance with the best practices of 

corporate governance and identification of significant 

violations thereof; and 

xv) consideration of any other issue or matter as may be 

assigned by the Board of Directors. 
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BOARD COMMITTEES 

HUMAN RESOURCE AND 
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (HR & R) 
1. Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan Chairman 
2. Mr Laeeq Uddin Ansari Member 
3. Mr Sohail Bashir Rana Member 
4. S M Irfan Aqueel Member 

The terms of reference of HR&R committee are as follows: 
i) recommending human resource management policies 

to the Board; 

ii) recommending to the board the selection, evaluation, 
compensation (including retirement benefits) and 
succession planning of the CEO; 

ill) recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, 
compensation (including retirement benefits) of CEO, 
Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit; and 

iv) consideration and approval on recommendations of 
CEO on such matters for key management positions 
who report directly to CEO. 

DIRECTORS'REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE 

1. Mr Sikandar Mustafa Khan Chairman 
2. Mr Sohail Bashir Rana Member 
3. Mr Latif Khalid Hashmi Member 
4. Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah Member 

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows: 
i) to make recommendations to the Board. 

ii) to determine the specific remuneration packages 
of directors and, including, without limitation, base 
salaries, deferred compensation, stock options and 
any benefits in kind, pension rights and incentive 
payments and any compensation payable for loss or 
termination of their office or appointment, and to make 
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration 
of directors. The Remuneration Committee should 
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable 
companies, time commitment, responsibilities of 
the directors and employment conditions elsewhere 
in the group and in the market and desirability of 
performance-based remuneration: while considering 
remuneration of individual Director, his qualification, 
experience, field of specialization if any, exposure on 

company Boards and commitment etc shall form basis 
of remuneration package. 

ill) to review and recommend compensation 
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal 
of directors for misconduct to ensure that such 
arrangements are determined in accordance with 
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation 
payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate: 

iv) to ensure that no director or any of his associates is 
involved in determining his own remuneration: 

BOARD COMMITTEE FOR GROUP 
SUPERVISION (BCGS) 
Mr Sikandar Mustafa Khan Chairman 
Mr Latif Khalid Hashmi Member 
Mr Sohail Bashir Rana Member 
Mr Laeeq Uddin Ansari Member 
Mian Muhammad Saleem Member 

The Board Committee for Group Supervision is responsible 
for reviewing over all business performance, major projects 
including new investment of group companies. 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
1. Mr Latif Khalid Hashmi Chairman 
2. Mr Laeeq Uddin Ansari Member 
3. S M Irfan Aqueel Member 
4. Mian Muhammad Saleem Member 

The terms of reference of the Finance Committee are 
as follows: 

) Product(s) pricing including tractors: 
i) Investment/disinvestment of funds: 
ii) Procurement/import of raw materials: 
iv) Capital Expenditure: 
v) Review Budget proposals prior to finalization. 
vi) Approval of Travelling Abroad up to Executive Grade 
vii) Retainership (approval and fixation of compensation). 
viii) Any matter(s) brought to the notice of committee for 

consideration. 

MARKETING COMMITTEE 
1. Mr Sohail Bashir Rana Chairman 
2. S M Irfan Aqueel Member 
3. Mian Muhammad Saleem Member 
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The terms of reference of the Marketing Committee 
are as follows: 

i) Formulation of sales/marketing strategy. 
ii) Appointment/termination of dealers including 

agreements. 
ill) Allowing commission /discounts. 

iv) Approval of priority for early delivery. 
v) Introducing of incentive schemes. 
vi) Other matters relating to sales & marketing. 

The Chairman of Board shall monitor the 
committees. 
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES 

& THEIR TERMS OF REFERENCE 

1. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT & REVIEW 

COMMITTEE 

Chief Executive Chairman 

DGM Production Member 

G.M Marketing Member 

Chief Financial Officer Member 

The Business Development Committee is responsible 

for preparing a plan for the future growth, expansion 

and new projects of the Company and shall forward its 

recommendations to the group performance review 

committee. 

2. BUSINESS STRATEGY COMMITTEE 

Chief Executive Chairman 

Chief Financial Officer Member 

GM Marketing Member 

The Business Strategy Committee is responsible for 

preparing the strategic plan and execution/ implementation 

of the decisions of group performance review committee. 

3. MANAGEMENT CO-ORDINATION 

COMMITTEE 

Chief Executive Officer Chairman 

All Department Heads Member 

Chief Financial Officer Member 

The Management Co-ordination Committee plays an active 

participative role in all operational and functional activities 

of the business to achieve targets and formulates strategies 

to ensure greater depth in decision making on important 

Company. The Committee oversees the automation of 

processes and systems in line with latest technology. 

The Committee is also responsible for development of 

contingency and disaster recovery plan. 

5. SAFETY COMMITTEE 

Sr. Mgr. Admin, Purchase & IR Chairman 

DGM Production Member 

Sr. Mgr. Service Member 

DGM Mfg & Maintenance Member 

The Safety Committee reviews and monitors Company 

safety practices. It oversees the safety planning function 

of the Company and is responsible for safety training and 

awareness initiatives. 

6. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Chief Financial Officer Chairman 

DGM Engineering Member 

GM Marketing Member 

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for 

ensuring that procedures to identify and continuously 

update risks are in place. The Committee oversees the 

process of assessment of the possible impact and likelihood 

of occurrence of identified risks. The committee is also 

responsible for formulating a risk management response 

to effectively address and manage risks. 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITTEE 

Sr. Mgr. Admin, Purchase & IR Chairman 

Manager IR Member 

4. SYSTEMS & TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE 

GM Information Technology Chairman 

Chief Financial Officer Member 

The Systems & Technology Committee is responsible 

for developing and implementing an IT strategy for the 

The Environmental Committee is responsible to ensure 

environment friendly operations, products and services. It 

establishes objectives 8d targets for continual improvement 

in resource conservation by waste control and safe 

operating practices. It promotes environmental awareness 

to all employees and community. 
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ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE 

Board of Directors 

Company Secretary 

Chief Executive 

•It 

•IB 

Engineering & Supply Chain 

Tractor Assembly Plant 

Engine Assembly Plant Maintenance 

r 
Engineering W Supply Chain/Material Management 
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Board Commitees 

Information Technology Administration, Purchases & !R 

SffBlflSlBKslEHWlimi fiTil 

^ 
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OBJECTIVES & STRATEGIC PLANNING 

OBJECTIVES 
Constantly endeavour to be market leader in terms 
of market share and technology pace-setters in areas 
of operations and to continuously improve efficiency 

and competitive strength. To offer customers quality 
products and support services at competitive prices 
and to their satisfaction. 

By continuously improving performance, aim to 
generate earnings sufficient to ensure a secure 

future for the Company and to protect and increase 
shareholders' return. To enhance creativity and job 
satisfaction, provide employees opportunity for 

personal development. Be an integral part of national 
economy with a strong sense of responsibility to 
society and the environment. 

STRATEGIC PLANNING 
To make optimum use of ancillary industry in Pakistan 
to maximize indigenization of tractor parts and farm 
equipment. To create in-house plant facilities for 

manufacture of components for tractors and other 
agricultural machinery which cannot be fabricated by 
the ancillary industry, where investments required are 

heavy or where technology involved is intricate. 

MTL will maintain a strong R&D Department to provide 

technical assistance to local manufacturers and for 
product development. Ensure customer satisfaction by 
providing quality products at competitive prices which 

warranty coverage and ensuring after sale service. 
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CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Company's Code of Conduct conforms to the Millat 
Group Vision and the Company's Mission Statement. 

The Code of Conduct defines the expected behaviors 
for all employees of Millat Tractors Limited (MTL). 

MTL will conduct its business fairly, impartially, in an 
ethical and proper manner, in full compliance with all 
applicable laws and regulations, and consistent with 

the values of the Company, Integrity must be ensured 
in all Company business relationships, including 
those with customers, suppliers, shareholders, other 

communities and among employees. The highest 
standards of ethical business conduct are required of 
employees in the performance of their responsibilities. 

Employees will not engage in any conduct or activity 
that may raise doubts to the honesty, impartiality 
and reputation of the organization or result in 

embarrassment to the Company. 

Every employee of the Company will ensure that he/she: 

Will not engage in any activity that might create 
a conflict of interest for him/her or MTL Conflict 

of interest shall be disclosed where it exits and 
guidance sought. 

Will not take advantage of his/her position for 
personal gain through the inappropriate use of 
Company name or non-public information or 
abuse his position. 

Will refrain from insider trading. 

Will follow all restrictions on use and disclosure of 
information. This include protecting Company's 
information and ensuring that non-company 
proprietary information is used and disclosed only 
as authorized by the owner of the information 
or as otherwise permitted by law and abide by 
the employee non-disclosure & confidentiality 
undertaking already signed by him/her. 

Will observe fair dealing in all of his/her 
transactions and interactions. 

Will protect all assets of the Company and use 
them only for appropriate Company-approved 
activities. 

Without exception, will comply with all statutory 
applicable laws, regulations, company policies 
and rules etc. 
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CORE VALUES 

• Our Customers are our first priority. 

• Profitability for the prosperity of our stakeholders that 

allows us to constantly invest, improve and succeed. 

• Corporate Social Responsibilities to Enrich the Lives of 

community where we operate. 

• Recognition and Reward for the talented and high 

performing employees. 

• Excellence in every thing we do. 

• Integrity in all our dealings. 

• Respect for our customers and each other. 



25 

SAFETY, HEALTH 8i 

ENVIRONMENT POLICY 

SAFETY POLICY 
All the employees have been provided appropriate 
safety equipment during performance of their 
duties. 

An upgraded fire fighting system has been 
installed to cope with any mishap. 

All the machinery has been fenced & guarded 
properly to avoid any type of accident causing 
injury to the employees as well as to the 
machinery. 

Special arrangements have been made for the 
availability of filtered drinking water for the 
employees. 

All the employees are insured under Group Life 
Insurance Scheme. 

Regular safety inspections are carried out to 
improve the preparedness. 

Safety fire drills & other exercises are carried out 
periodically to keep employees prepared for any 
unforeseen incident. 

HEALTH POLICY 
All employees are covered in health insurance 
scheme. Necessary assistance is available at 
factory to meet any emergency requirement. 

ENVIRONMENT POLICY 
The Company has a separate horticulture 
department to make the environment pleasant, 
green and full of flowers. The Company 
also participates in various competitions on 
horticulture arranged by Government and other 
Institutions. 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that 54th Annual General Meeting of Millat Tractors Limited will be held at the Registered Office 

of the Company at 9 K.M. Sheikhupura Road, Shahdara, Lahore, on Friday October 27, 2017 at 4:00 RM to transact the 

following business: 

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1) To confirm minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on March 14, 2017. 

2) To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the Company and the Group for the year ended June 30, 

2017 together with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon. 

3) To approve final cash dividend of Rs. 60.00 per share i.e., 600% in addition to the interim dividend of Rs. 35.00 per 

share i.e., 350% already paid making a total cash dividend of Rs. 95.00 per share i.e., 950%. 

4) To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2018. 

B. SPECIAL BUSINESS 

1) To ratify and approve transactions conducted with Related Parties for the year ended June 30, 2017 by passing 

the following special resolution with or without modification. 

"Resolved that the following transactions conducted with Related Parties forthe year ended June 30, 2017 be and 

are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed." 

2017 (AMOUNTS IN RUPEES) 

NAME(S) PURCHASES SALES 

MILLAT EQUIPMENT LIMITED 3,284,740,162 8,611,860 

BOLAN CASTINGS LIMITED 1,621,616,412 4,582,463 

MILLAT INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED 212,637,150 73,321 

TIPEG INTERTRADE DMCC 424,107,047 396,696,573 

TOTAL 5,543,100,771 409,964,217 

2) To authorize Chief Executive of the Company to approve transactions with Related Parties for the year ending 

June 30, 2018 by passing the following special resolution with or without modification. 

"Resolved that the Chief Executive of the Company be and is hereby authorized to approve the transactions to be 

conducted with Related Parties on case to case basis during the year ending June 30, 2018. 

Resolved further that these transactions shall be placed before the shareholders in the next general meeting for 

their ratification/approval." 

3) To consider, adopt with or without modification the following special resolution to amend Article 77 of the 

Articles of Association of the Company. 

"Resolved that in Article 77 the word and figure 'Rs. 30,000' be and is hereby substituted with the word and figure 

'Rs.50,000." 
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C. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair. 

By order of the Board 

Lahore: 

October 05, 2017 

Muhammad Faisal Azeem 

Company Secretary 

NOTES 

1. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from October 21, 2017 to October 27, 2017 (both 

days inclusive) and no transfer will be accepted during this period. Transfers received, complete in all respect by 

the Shares Registrar, M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, H.M. House, 7-Bank Square, Lahore 

by the close of business on October 20, 2017 will be considered in time for the purpose of payment of final cash 

dividend and for the purpose of attending and voting at the meeting. 

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another person as his/her proxy to attend the 

meeting and vote for him/her. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the 

Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the meeting. 

3. Members, who have deposited their shares into Central Depository Company of Pakistan will further have to 

follow the under mentioned guidelines. 

A. ATTENDING OF MEETING IN PERSON: 

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group 

account and their registration detail are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by 

showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC)/ original passport at the time of attending 

the meeting. 

ii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the 

nominee shall be produced at the time of meeting. 

B. APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES: 

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and /or the person whose securities are in group 

account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the 

above requirement. 

ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned 

on the form. 

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy 

form. 

iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC/original passport at the time of the meeting. 

v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be 
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submitted along with proxy form to the Company 

4. VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY 

As per Companies Act, 2017, if the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more 

shareholding residing at a geographical location, to participate in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through 

video conference at least seven days prior to the date of AGM, the Company will arrange a video conference facility 

in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. The Company will intimate members regarding the 

video conference facility venue at least 5 days before the date of the AGM along with the complete information 

needed to access the facility. If you would like to avail video conferencing facility, as per above, please fill the 

following and submit to registered office of the Company at least 07 days before AGM. 

I / We, of being a member of Millat Tractors Limited, holder of  

Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio No / CDC Account No. hereby opt for video conference 

facility at . 

5. Non CDC Shareholders are requested to notify the change of address, if any, immediately and submit, if applicable, 

the CZ-50 Form (for non deduction of Zakat) to the Registrar of the Company M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates 

(Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, H.M. House, 7-Bank Square, Lahore. All the shareholders holding shares through CDC are 

requested to update their addresses and Zakat status with their participants. This will assist in prompt receipt of 

Dividend. 

6. MANDATORY SUBMISSION OF CNIC 

As per directive of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) contained in SRO No. 831(1) / 2012 

dated July 05, 2012 read with SRO No. 19 (I) / 2014 dated January 10, 2014 the dividend warrants should bear 

the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) Numbers of the registered members or the authorized person 

except in the case of minor(s) and corporate members. CNIC numbers of the members are, therefore, mandatory 

for the issuance of future dividend warrants and in the absence of such information, payment of dividend may be 

withheld. Therefore, the members who have not yet provided their CNICs are once again advised to provide the 

attested copies of their CNICs (if not already provided) to the Shares Registrar. 

7. PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND ELECTRONICALLY 

As per provision of Section 242 of Companies Act, 2017 any dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through 

electronic mode directly in to the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. A notice of the foregoing 

seeking information from shareholders for payment of dividend through electronic mode was sent earlier. The 

shareholders are now once again requested to provide their folio number, name and details of bank account 

consisting of bank name, branch name, branch code, Account number, Title of Account and IBAN/swift code in 

which they desire their dividend to be credited, failing which the Company will be unable to pay the dividend 

through any other mode. Standard request form has also been placed on website of the Company. The members 

are requested to send the information on the same at the earliest possible. 

In case shares are held in CDC then the form must be submitted directly to shareholder's broker/participant/CDC 

Investor account services. 

8. DEDUCTION OF TAX FROM DIVIDEND INCOME 

The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2017 has made certain amendments in the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of 

dividend paid by the companies. These rates are as follows: 
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(a) For filers of income tax returns 15.00% 

(b) For non-filers of income tax returns 20.00% 

To enable the Company to make tax deduction from cash dividend @15.00% instead of 20.00% all the members 

whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR, despite the fact 

that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL before the date of payment of 

cash dividend, otherwise tax on their dividend will be deducted @ 20.00% instead of 15.00%. 

For members holding their shares jointly, as per the clarification issued by the Federal Board of Revenue, 

withholding tax will be determined separately on 'Filer/Non-Filer' status of principal shareholder as well as joint 

holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts. Therefore, all shareholders who hold 

shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding proportions of principal shareholder and joint holder(s) in 

respect of shares held by them to the Share Registrar as follows: 

Principal shareholder Joint shareholder 

Company Folio/CDS Total Name Shareholding Name Shareholding 

Name Account# Shares and 

CNIC# 

Proportion(no. 

of Shares 

and 

CNIC# 

Proportion(no. 

of Shares 

The above required information must be provided to Share Registrar, otherwise it will be assumed that the shares 

are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s) 

For any further query/problem/information, the investors may contact the Company Share Registrar: 

M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, H.M. House, 7-Bank Square, Lahore, Phone: 042- 

37235081-82, e-mail address: shares@hmaconsultants.com Fax: 042-37358817. 

The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) updated 

with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN 

certificate to the Company or the Shares Registrar. The shareholders while sending NTN certificates, must quote 

company name and their respective folio numbers. 

VALID TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE FOR EXEMPTION FROM WITHHOLDING TAX 

A valid tax exemption certificate is necessary for exemption from the deduction of withholding tax under Section 

150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Members who qualify under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and wish to 

seek an exemption must provide a copy of their valid tax exemption certificate to the Shares Registrar prior to the 

date of book closure otherwise tax will be deducted according to applicable law. 

9. PLACEMENT OF ACCOUNTS ON WEBSITE 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2017 along with reports have been placed 

at the website of the Company www.millat.com.pk 

10. TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS THROUGH EMAIL 

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 08, 2014 has 

allowed companies to circulate annual balance sheet, profit & loss account, auditors' and directors' reports along 

with notice of annual general meeting to its members through e-mail. Members who wish to avail this facility can 

give their consent. 
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11. TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS THROUGH CD/DVD/USB 

SECP through its SRO 470(I)/2016 dated May 31, 2016 have allowed companies to circulate the annual balance 

sheet, profit and loss account, auditors' report and directors' report etc. to its members through CD/DVD/USB at 

their registered addresses. In view of the above the Company has sent its Annual Report-2017 to the shareholders 

in the form of CD. Any Member can send request for printed copy of the Annual Report-2017 to the Company on 

standard request form placed on its website. 

STATEMENT U/S 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 

1) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS(RPTS) 

The Related Party Transactions conducted with subsidiary companies had to be approved by the Board duly 

recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant to clause (x) of the Code of Corporate 

Governance, 2012.However, the majority of Company Directors were interested in these transactions due to their 

common directorship and holding of shares in the group companies, the quorum of directors could not be 

formed for approval of these transactions pursuant to section 207 of the Companies Act, 2017 and therefore, 

these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in General Meeting. 

It may be noted that principal activity of the company is assembly/manufacture of Agri tractors for which 

components are procured from approximately 150 vending industries including group companies in the normal 

course of business. Bolan Castings Limited (BCL) and Millat Equipment Limited (MEL) manufacture intricate 

tractor components i.e., major tractor castings and gears & shafts etc. respectively for which limited sources are 

available in the country. Millat Industrial Products Limited (MIPL) manufactures tractor batteries while tractors 

and components are exported through TIPEGINTERTF1ADE DMCC (TIPEG). In addition, components are imported 

through TIPEG for in house use by the Company. During the year sale of scrap and swarf etc. was also made to 

BCL for in-house consumption. 

The commercial reasons for entering into RPTs are the following: 

a. Availability of state of the art production facilities. 

b. Advanced Technical Know How. 

c. Dedicated production facilities. 

d. Elaborated testing facilities for MTL 

e. Smooth supply chain. 

The Company has the following equity in the subsidiary Companies. 

Bolan Castings Limited 46.26% 

Millat Equipment Limited 45.00% 

Millat Industrial Products Limited 64.09% 

TIPEG Inter Trade DMCC 75.00% 

The common directors have the following shareholding in the associated companies. 
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BCL MEL MIPL TIPEG 

Sr. No. Name of Director(s) No. of Shares No. of Shares No. of Shares No. of Shares 

1 Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan 166,369 1,625,001 543,750 100 

2 Mr. Latif Khalid Hashmi 32,270 1,625,001 362,500 100 

3 Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana 144,359 1,708,951 362,500 100 

4 Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari 3,120 2,004,001 362,500 100 

5 Mian Muhammad Saleem 2,993 600,001 200,000 100 

6 Syed Muhammad Irfan Aqueel - 100,000 - - 

TOTAL 

PERCENTAGE OF SHAREHOLDING 

349,111 

3.043% 

7,662,955 

29.47 % 

1,831,250 

20% 

500 

25 % 

In the last Annual General Meeting, the shareholders had authorized the Chief Executive of the Company to approve 

these transactions in the normal course of business subject to final approval/ratification by the shareholders. 

Therefore, these transactions are being placed before the shareholders for final approval/ratification. 

The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and shareholding in the 

group companies. 

2) AUTHORIZATION TO CEO FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS(RPTS) 

The Company shall be conducting Related Party Transactions (RPTs) with subsidiary companies during the 

year ending June 30, 2018 in the normal course of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these 

transactions due to their common directorship and shareholding in the subsidiary companies. Therefore, these 

transactions with subsidiary companies have to be approved by the shareholders. 

In order to ensure smooth supply during the year, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive to approve 

transactions with subsidiary companies on case to case basis for the year ending June 30, 2018. The summary of 

commercial reasons, nature and scope of RPTs is explained under no. 1 above. However, these transactions shall 

be placed before the shareholders in the next AGM for their approval/ratification. 

The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and shareholding in the 

subsidiary companies. 

3) AMENDMENT IN ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

The remuneration being paid to directors for attending meetings of the Board or Committees of the Board needs 

revision in view of overall inflation. The aforesaid amendment has been approved by the Board of Directors in 

their meeting held on April 26, 2017. A copy of the amended Articles of Association is available with the Company 

Secretary for inspection by the members. 

The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of fee to which they are entitled. 
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW A 

r 

I am pleased to present chairman's review in accordance with section 192 of Companies Act 2017, on overall 
performance of the board and effectiveness of the role played by the board in achieving company's objectives. 

It is my pleasure to convey that your company has achieved highest ever profit in its history. I dedicate this benchmark 
achievement to the management of the company and dedication of all our employees. 

GOVERNANCE ROLE OF THE BOARD 
COMPOSITION AND DYNAMICS OF THE BOARD 
Board's role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the company within a framework of prudent effective controls 

which enables risk to be assessed and managed. The Board performs three major roles in a company - it provides 
direction (i.e. sets the strategic direction of the company), monitors and provides support and advice to management 

(advisory role). These roles are in accordance with the vision and mission of the company for achieving the company's 
business objectives. 
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The composition of the Board is in compliance with the requirements of Code of Corporate Governance applicable on 
public listed entities, which is given below: 

Independent directors: 1 
Executive directors: 2 
Non-executive directors: 5 

In orderto ensure stewardship & monitor direction of the company the Board has made sub-committees which in my 
opinion have significantly contributed in achieving desired objectives. These committees ensure due compliance of 

Code of Corporate Governance, and include: 

Audit Committee 

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
Directors Remuneration Committee 
Board Committee for Group Supervision 

Finance Committee 
Marketing Committee 

Sale / Production Volume 
(Units) 

45,000 
40,000 
35,000 
30,000 
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20,000 
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34,506 

28,705 

11,111 M 21,108 

No. of Units Produced No. of Units Sold 

Shareholders Equity 
(Rs. In Million) 

6,000 

5,000 

4,000 

3,000 

2,000 

1,000 j I 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
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DIVERSIFICATION PLANS 

During the year the company has signed a Partner Network Program with IPS for execution of software business by 
MIL in future. IPS is a Swedish world leading software solution provider with brand name "IPS" regionally operating 
through Sri Lanka. Millat Tractors Limited has been successfully using the IPS ERP solutions since 2009. We plan to 

diversify into Information Technology field, in which Pakistan has a limited international contribution. We already have 
a trained human resource to cater the needs of Pakistan Market as well as other regional markets. 

Ajoint venture consortium led by Nishat Group is setting up a green field project for manufacture and sale of Hyundai 
Motor's passenger and commercial vehicles in Pakistan. On their invitation, Millat is exploring the possibility of 
becoming apart of the consortium. 

The aforesaid steps are being taken to diversify MTL business, create value for shareholder, jobs opportunity and 

improve socio economic conditions. 
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BOARD EVALUATION 
As required vide clause V (e) of the Code of Corporate 

Governance 2012, a mechanism consisting of a 
comprehensive questionnaire was circulated to all 
directors of the Board for evaluation of performance 

of Board of Directors. The key areas covered included: 

• Strategy and planning 

• Board operations and effectiveness 

• Measuring and monitoring of performance 

• Professional development 

Individual feedback was obtained and on the basis of 

that feedback the average rating of the performance 
of the Board and role of Chairman regarding 
governing the BOD was found up to the mark as is 

evident by the performance of the company and its 
overall image. 

Sales/After - Tax Profit 
(Rs. In Million) 

4,258 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Net sales —♦— Profit aftertax 

Sales / Pre - Tax Profit 
(Rs. In Million) 

5742 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

i Net sales Profit before tax 
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Earning / Dividend Per Share 
(Rupees) 

55.00 
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Return on Assets 
(Percentage) 
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OVERALL ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY REVIEW 

Pakistan's economy as projected has a GDP growth of 5.28% which is better as compared to past 10 years. 

This has been possible because of improvement in productivity, credit availability in private sector and investment 

in the power sector. The government initiative in progressing the China Pakistan Economic Corridor Project has also 
impacted the tractor industry of Pakistan. Tractor sales have grown rapidly specially the higher horse power range 
which has doubled. Higher produce of Kharif Crop, stable borrowing rate by State Bank of Pakistan of 5.75%, improved 

large scale manufacturing has also contributed. 

The tractor business is anticipated to cross the 60,000 units of sales this year out of which Millat's share is expected 

to be around 60% (36,000 units). Under the conditions highlighted above, the Board of Directors, Management and 
Employees are preparing to meet the forthcoming challenges and achieve the targets of higher volumes and efficient 
cost cutting measures to surpass the expectations of our shareholders Inshah Allah. 

I am thankful to the members of BOD for extending their collective wisdom, continued support and guidance in 
achieving objectives in line with the mission and vision statement of the company. 

Sikandar Mustafa Khan 
Chairman 

Millat Tractors Limited 
September 12, 2017 
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Gross Profit / Net Profit After Tax 
(Percentage) 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT to the shareholders a 
r 

The Directors feel pleasure in presenting their 54th annual report together with audited accounts of the Company for 
the year ended June 30, 2017. 

APPROPRIATIONS 
Your Directors recommended a payment of final cash dividend @ Rs. 60.00 per share (600%). 

The aforesaid payout shall be in addition to the interim cash dividend of Rs. 35.00 per share (350%) making a total of 
Rs. 95.00 per share (950%) as cash dividend. 

The following appropriations were made during the year: 
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Rupees in thousands) 
General reserve Un-appropriated profit 

Opening balance 2,985,519 622,192 
Less: Final dividend @ 300% (706,584) (622,192) 
Transfer to general reserves  : - 

2,278,935 

Profit for the year ended June 30, 2017  ^ 4,399,876 
2,278,935 4,399,876 

Less: Interim dividend @ 350% _ (1,550,239) 
Un-appropriated profit carried forward 2,278,935 2,849,637 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 
Earning per share for the year ended June 30, 2017 was Rs. 96.12 as against Rs. 39.52 of the preceding year. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
The Board comprises of eight directors of which seven were elected in the Annual General Meeting held on October 
30, 2015. During the year there has been no change in the composition of the Board. 

During the year, five Board meetings were held. The number of meetings attended by each Director is given hereunder: 

Name of Director Meetings attended 

Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan - Chairman 5 
S M Irfan Aqueel - CEO 4 
Mr. Latif Khalid Hashmi 5 
Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana 4 
Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari 5 
Mian Muhammad Saleem 5 
Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 5 
Mr. Saad Iqbal 3 
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BOARD COMMITTEE'S 
The names of members of Board Committees and their attendance are as follows:- 

Sr. No. Board's Committees and Members Meetings Held Meetings Attended 

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah, Chairman 
Mr. Latif Khalid Hashmi, Member 
Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana, Member 

Mr. Saad Iqbal 

05 

05 
05 
04 

03 

2. FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Mr. Latif Khalid Hashmi, Chairman 
Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari, Member 
Mian Muhammad Saleem, Member 

S.M Irfan Aqueel, Member 

33 

33 
33 
33 

33 

3. MARKETING COMMITTEE 

Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana, Chairman 
Mian Muhammad Saleem, Member 
S. M Irfan Aqueel, Member 

07 

07 
07 
07 

4. HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan, Chairman 

Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana, Member 
Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari, Member 
S. M Irfan Aqueel, Member 

01 
01 

01 
01 
01 

5. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan, Chairman 

Mr. Latif Khalid Hashmi, Member 
Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana, Member 

Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah, Member 

NIL 

- 

6. BOARD'S COMMITTEE FOR GROUP SUPERVISION 

Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan, Chairman 
Mr. Latif Khalid Hashmi, Member 
Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana, Member 

Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari, Member 
Mian Muhammad Saleem, Member 

02 

02 
02 
02 

02 
02 
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, DEVELOPMENT 
AND PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY'S 
BUSINESS DURING FINANCIAL YEAR- 

2017 
The Company is a public limited Company 
incorporated in Pakistan in 1964 and is listed on 

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered 
office of the Company is situated at Sheikhupura 

Road, District Sheikhupura. It is principally engaged in 
assembling and manufacturing of agricultural tractors, 
implements and multi-application products including 

forklift trucks and generators. 

The financial statements of the Company truly 

reflect the state of Company's affairs and fair review 
of its business. The tractor industry in Pakistan has 
witnessed noticeable growth during the year 2016- 

17. The government's tax relief incentives on sale of 
tractors have enabled tractor sales to reach a three- 
year high and the trend is likely to continue. Tractor 

sales were also boosted by increased purchasing 
power of farmers and introduction of CPEC related 
developmental projects. The organization has made 

an astounding rebound in 2017 by delivering 34,506 
tractors against 20,423 units in the previous year, and 
showed revenue of Rs. 30 billion contrasted with Rs. 

17 billion. 

Productivity of the organization has enhanced and 

its gross profit proportion has increased from 19.7% 
to 23.7% while profit before tax has enhanced from 
15.5% to 20.8%. 

The reduction of sales tax from 10% to 5% has been 
the primary demand drivers for tractors. CPEC related 

activity and improvement in major industrial zones is 
at its pinnacle. The prime Minister's Kissan Package 

envisioned enhancement of crop productivity and 
water supply which consequently helped increase 
sales volume of tractor industry. The organization has 

formally launched export trade level tractor models 
through participation of AGCO Corporation for African 
and Middle Eastern markets. 

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
FACING THE COMPANY 
Effective risk management is the key to sustainable 

business. Our risk management framework, coupled 
with our internal control policies have helped 
us maintain our focus and mitigating principal 

risks affecting our Company. The internal control 
framework established by the Company ensures 

appropriate risk mitigation plans by assigning 
designated accountability and policy framework for 
upward communication of any material issues and 

incidents. The Company is susceptible to the following 
principal risks which are mitigated via specific policies 
and plans: 

OPERATIONAL RISKS 
Operational risks are those which hinder the entity 
from running its operations smoothly. Our main 

operational risks are: 

Taxation regime of Pakistan 

Natural calamities 
Supply chain management 

Customer relationship 
Inflation 
Employee turnover 

Taxation regime in Pakistan has been under turmoil 
in recent years. With frequent changes in laws and 

regulations, not to mention the manner in which 
they were introduced, have significantly increased 
the cost of doing business as well as introducing 

additional hurdles for smooth business operations. 
It is a credible feat that sales tax on tractor sales has 
been reduced to ease the burden on customers, but 

that burden has been passed on to the Company in 
shape of significant amount of sales tax refunds. A 
significant portion of Company's funds have been 

stuck in the shape of sales tax refunds which has 
caused serious working capital deficiency. However, 
we do have sufficient working capital availability 

through financing arrangement with the banks; 
though this comes at a cost. 
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Natural disasters have struck Pakistan frequently in 
recent history, most frequent of which is monsoon 

flooding. Due to inadequate water reservoirs and 
water storage facilities, the river lands become flooded 
during the monsoon season causing serious damage 

to seasonal crops. If this risk is not mitigated, it will 
directly have an impact on Company's performance 
since our products are directly linked with agriculture 

sector. However, keeping in view the size of the orders 
in hand we are confident to keep pace in difficult 
times as well. 

Supply chain management and similar risks are being 
managed through a variety of measures including 

development of alternate sourcing materials, 
dedicating resources with requisite skills and 
expertise, facility up gradations, robust forecasting 

and budgeting process etc. In addition to the above, 
adequate segregation of duties, trainings and skill 
development, job rotations, employee empowerment 

and measures as such are being introduced to mitigate 
such risks. 

FINANCIAL RISKS 
Financial risks are those that may cause financial loss 
to the entity. Financial risk has been described in detail 

in note 40 of the attached financial statements that 
include market risks, credit risks and liquidity risk. 

COMPLIANCE RISK 
Non-compliance with laws and regulations may 
result in imposition of punitive action. Therefore, 

the Company has zero tolerance policy for non- 
compliance activities and behaviours. In addition, 

to mitigate such risks, a very comprehensive and 
effective compliance function is in place in the 
Company. Further, the Company's Code of Conduct 

clearly defines expectations from employees of the 
Company. The Company encourages employees and 
business partners to report compliance violations that 

they may encounter. 

CHANGES DURING FINANCIAL YEAR 
CONCERNING THE NATURE OF THE 

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY 
To further expand our horizons and develop new 
investment avenues for our stakeholders, the Company 

ventured into following new investment opportunities 
during the year: 

The Company is in the process of evaluating the 
possibility of joining a consortium for setting up of 
a Greenfield project enabling manufacturing and sale 

of Hyundai automobiles in Pakistan. The range of 
vehicles under consideration includes passenger and 
1 ton range commercial light trucks. 

The Company in its endeavour to explore synergies 
in its operations within group companies and 

diversification of product portfolio has entered into 
a partnership agreement with IFS (a world leading 
software solution provider) to sell and implement IFS 

products in Pakistan. The agreement has been initially 
executed with the Company and is transferable to any 
of its subsidiary companies in future. 

FUTURE PROSPECTS OF PROFIT 
Growth in agricultural sector is expected to rebound 

on account of higher production of cotton, sugarcane, 
maze and increased production of wheat. Agriculture 
credit target has been set from Rs 700 billion to 

Rs 1,001 billion which will help boost agricultural 
sector even further. Loan of Rs. 50,000 per farmer 
will be granted as well. GDP target has been set at 

6% for the fiscal year 2017-18. Rs. 1,001 billion have 
been allocated for development projects whereas 
educational budget has been increased considerably 

as well. Tractor sale in FY-2018 is expected to increase 
in continuation of previous year's 34,500 units. The 
sale is expected to increase on account of CPEC related 

development activities and other agricultural related 
activities initiated by Government. The profitability in 
term of financial performance is expected to be in line 

with sales volume for the upcoming year. 
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ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS 

The management of Millat Tractors Limited is 
responsible for the establishment and maintenance of 
the Company's system of internal control in order to 

identify and manage risks faced by the Company. 

The System provides reasonable, though not absolute, 

assurance that: 

assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use 

or disposition; 

proper and reliable accounting records are 

available for use within the business; and 

adequate control mechanisms have been 

established within the operational businesses 

Internal financial controls deployed within the 

Company have been satisfactory throughout the year 

MAIN TRENDS AND FACTORS LIKELY TO 

AFFECT THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT, 
PERFORMANCE AND POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY'S BUSINESS 

The Company launched EURO II emission compliant 
engines during the year as part of its green engine 
initiative. These engines are first of its kind within 

Pakistan, once again highlighting our ability to deliver 
on our core competencies. The Company partnered 
with Stanadyne Corporation USA to develop these 

engines. This will have a positive effect not only on 
the bottom line of the Company but greenhouse 
gas emissions and venturing into export market. The 

Company expects that with the development of these 
emission compliant engines, the horizon of exports 
for such engines shall open up as well. Moreover, 

this development will keep the company ready to 
ensure compliance with any future legislation related 
to emission compliance in Pakistan. Along with this 

the continuation of present tax regime on tractors 
sales and agricultural schemes are likely to remain the 

factors for growth enhancements. 

DUTY & TAXES 
Information about taxes and levies is given in the 

respective notes to the accounts. 

AUDITORS 

It has been the Company's policy to change auditors 
after every five years. The present auditors M/s. E Y 
Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants have completed 

their five years term and therefore another firm 
of Chartered Accountants had to be appointed as 
auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 

2018. 

The Board Audit Committee and the Board of 

Directors have endorsed the appointment of M/s. A. F. 
Ferguson & Company, Chartered Accountants, Lahore. 
They have been given satisfactory rating under the 

Quality Control Review of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan. 

DIRECTORS' TRANING PROGRAM 
An orientation course was arranged for the Directors 
to acquaint them with the code, applicable laws, 

their duties and responsibilities to enable them to 
effectively manage affairs of the Company for and on 
behalf of the shareholders. Written material was also 

provided to them. 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

No material changes or commitments affecting the 
financial position of the Company have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the Company 

and the date of this report except as disclosed in this 
report. 

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE 
FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAME WORK 
The Company has complied with all the requirements 

of the Code of Corporate Governance as required by 
the listing regulations. 

Accordingly, the Directors are pleased to confirm the 
following: 
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a) The financial statements together with the notes 

thereon have been drawn up in conformity 
with the Companies Ordinance, 1984. These 
statements present fairly the Company's state of 

affairs, the results of its operations, cash flow and 
changes in equity. 

b) Proper books of accounts of the Company have 
been maintained. 

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in the preparation of financial 
statements which conform to the International 

Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
The accounting estimates, wherever required are 
based on reasonable and prudent judgement. 

d) The International Financial Reporting Standards, 
as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in 

the preparation of financial statements. 

e) The system of internal control is sound in design 
and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. 

f) There are no significant doubts upon the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

g) There has been no material departure from the 
best practices of Corporate Governance, as 

required by the listing regulations. 

h) The key operating and financial data for the last 

six years is annexed. 

i) The value of investments of provident, gratuity 

and pension funds based on their audited 
accounts as on June 30, 2017 were the following: 

- Provident Fund Rs. 628,814,380 
- Gratuity Fund Rs. 459,432,065 
- Pension Fund Rs. 1,145,018,483 

The value of investment includes accrued interest. 

j) The purchase and sale of shares by directors 

during the year was as follows:- 

PURCHASE OF SHARES 
No. of shares 

Purchased 

Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari - Director 63,700 

Mrs. Ayesha Sohail (Spouse of 
Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana - Director) 3,017 
Mrs. Shireen Shah Aqueel (Spouse of 

S.M Irfan Aqueel - CEO) 16,500 

SALE OF SHARES No. of shares 

Sold 

Mr. Latif Khalid Hashmi - Director 109,400 

CODE OF CONDUCT 
In order to put in place professional standards and 

corporate values for promotion of integrity of the 
Board, senior management and other employees, 
the board has approved and disseminated a 

Code of Conduct, defining therein acceptable and 
unacceptable behaviors. The same has also been 
placed on the Company's website. 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The requirements of the Code of Corporate 
Governance set out by the Stock Exchange in its 
Listing Regulations, relevant for the year ended June 

30, 2017 have been duly complied with. A statement 
to this effect is annexed with the report. 

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW 
The Directors of your Company endorse the contents 
of the Chairman's Review which forms part of the 

Directors' Report. 
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 
The pattern of shareholding is annexed. 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 
The numbers of permanent employees as on June 30, 

2017 were 406 compared to 414 of last year. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTAEMENTS 

Consolidated financial statements of the Company as 
on June 30, 2017 are annexed. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
Disclosure as required by the Corporate Social 
Responsibility General Order, 2009 is annexed and 

forms part of this report. 

WEB PRESENCE 

Company's periodic financial statements for the 
current financial year including annual reports for 

the last three years are available on the Company's 
website www.millat.com.pk for information of the 

investors. 

URDU LANGUAGE VERSION 

An Urdu Language version of this Director's Report 
is also being published in the Annual Report as per 
provisions of SECP's SRO 1041(I)/2015 dated October 

21, 2015. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Chief/Executive 

Lahore: 
September 12, 2017 

Director 



CORPORATE SOCIAL 

RESPONSIBILITY-2017 

CORPORATE SUSTAINABILITY 
MIL strongly believes to invest in all aspects of its 
responsibilities towards being a sustainable and 

contributory member of the society. MIL recognizes the 
importance of its employees, their work life balances, 
safety & security, reducing carbon footprints for better 

atmosphere, community uplift programs for society and 
underprivileged sectors, customers & products, ethical 
behaviors in our dealings, contribution to the national 

exchequer and welfare programs in all facets under this 
belief. 

MIL discharges the Corporate Social Responsibilities 
(CSR) in a manner that would positively impact its 
customers, employees, shareholders, communities, and 

the environment. The company is demonstrating active 
corporate citizenship by promoting and patronizing 

many efforts under its CSR program including 

philanthropic and non-philanthropic 
activities. 

EDUCATIONAL PATRONAGE 
MIL has consistently been 
extending its generosity towards 

the improvement of society through 
contribution insocial and educational 
benefit of the society. 

The Company has donated Rs. 
600,000 to Sargodhian Spirit Trust 

for Neelab Project for establishing 
educational centers of excellence in Khyber 

Pukthunkua. Moreover, a contribution of Rs. 2.2 

million was also made to Citizens Foundation for support 
and up gradation of schools in Dera Sacha Sauda. 

ENERGY CONSERVATION 
Considering the energy crisis in Pakistan the company has 
taken a various measures to reduce energy consumption 

and costs.Some of the steps taken are include: 

Energy efficient variable speed drive compressors 

have been installed in manufacturing and assembly 
facility, 
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High wattage lights have been replaced with energy 
efficient LED lights, 

High power motors, pumps and fans have been 
replaced with more efficient alternatives, 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MEASURES 
After successful development of a Green Engine test 
laboratory the company has introduced emission friendly 

engines and entered into the club of emission compliant 
engine manufacturers. These engines developed with 

partnership of Stanadyne Corporation USA will be formally 
taken into production to meet global demands of engines 
and emission compliant tractors. 

Our gardening division undertakes a key part in providing 
a sound and contamination free atmosphere. MIL 

partakes in yearly chrysanthemum and different green 
development activities for cleaner environment and 
reduction in contamination. 

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT AND WELFARE 
SCHEMES 
During theyearthe Company donated Rs.100,000 to Lahore 

Businessman Association for Rehabilitation of Disabled, Rs. 
200,000 to R.S. Foundation for underprivileged children 

and contributed Rs. 3.1 million towards development and 
support of different medical institutes. 



CONSUMER PROTECTION 
The company has state of the art production facility with 

a manufacturing capacity exceeding any competitor in 
Pakistan. The company continuously strives to provide 
customers with a product build on global standards with 

an effective and efficient after sale support. 

MTL also conducts various awareness programs and 

carries out surveys to obtain criticism from market with 
respect to product faults and improvements needed. In 
addition, for customer convenience, rules are defined if 

there should arise an event of dissatisfaction to contact 
the Company. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
The Company is an equal opportunity employer and its 
management and workforce relish affable association. 

The management conducts meetings frequently 
with the labor union members to ensure all 

their needs are fulfilled and provide a 

safe and friendly work environment. 
MTL facilitates education of progeny 
of employees as well as proactively 

contributes and aids its employees in 
their religious practices by providing 
them adequate number of holidays 

and financial assistance in performing 
pilgrimage (Hajj) to Makkah under 
Company's Hajj Scheme. 

EMPLOYMENT OF PEOPLE 
WITH SPECIAL NEEDS 

Since the company is an equal opportunity 
employer, it guarantees that its staffing process stays 

fairto physical inabilities subject to work requirements. A 

total of 8 personnel with a disability of some form have 
been employed by Millat Tractors. 

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH 
MTL urges its workers be vigilant and careful to guarantee 
the wellbeing and security of themselves and fellow 

workers. All representatives are relied upon to follow 
health and safety directions. 



The workers are provided safety gears as per work 
requirement. MIL likewise has an in-house first-aid office 

for giving emergency treatment. The company during the 
year has also obtained an ambulance for transporting 
workers to nearby clinics. 

ETHICS AND ANTI-CORRUPTION 
MTL actively discourages all forms of corruption and 
any form of conduct that violates principles of business 

ethics. The company is fully committed to be compliant 
with all principles of fairness, transparency and integrity. 

To ensure compliance with professional, ethical and moral 
code as well as legal measures the Company has a formal 
Code of Conduct. The purpose of the code is to highlight 

the standards of behavior and conduct from employees 
in their dealings with customers, suppliers, clients, co- 
workers, management and the general public. This code 

highlights expected behavior as well as punitive measures 
against violators. 

CORPORATE PHILANTHROPY 

For commercial altruism the company has also made 
contribution in conducting and promoting various activities 

in corporate sector including Annual Golf Tournament, 
International Marketing Conference "MARCON 2017", 
International Foundry Exhibition, Prizes in competitions 

held in Pakistan Cattle Show etc. 
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SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

 (Rupees in thousand)  

Net Cash from / (Used in) 

Operating activities 7,900,148 3,468,778 2,294,250 365,624 1,990,541 896,969 

Investing activities (5,483,184) 42,456 (371,970) 512,669 1,951,648 813,277 

Financing activities (2,918,213) (2,031,152) (1,958,284) (1,847,699) (2,509,415) (1,448,942) 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash 

and cash equivalent (501,249) 1,480,082 (36,004) (969,406) 1,432,774 261,304 

Cash and cash equivalent at the 

beginning of the year 2,562,252 1,082,170 1,118,174 2,087,580 654,806 393,502 

Cash and cash equivalent at the 

end of the year 2,061,003 2,562,252 1,082,170 1,118,174 2,087,580 654,806 

Cash Flow Analysis 
Rs in million 

i Operating activities ■ Investing activities ■ Financing activities 
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Profit & Loss Summary 
Net sales Rs. thousand 30,013,921 16,913,832 22,937,917 16,589,996 22,698,651 20,133,130 
Gross profit Rs. thousand 7,097,329 3,335,860 4,396,469 2,976,691 4,010,267 3,433,817 
Operating profit Rs. thousand 6,244,414 2,636,106 3,601,749 2,262,688 3,237,526 2,881,753 
Profit before tax Rs. thousand 6,242,233 2,620,806 3,592,389 2,183,480 3,172,972 2,875,345 
Profit after tax Rs. thousand 4,257,533 1,750,298 2,382,421 1,481,864 2,138,646 1,977,618 
Earning before interest, tax, 
depreciation & amortization (EBITDA) Rs. thousand 6,315,879 2,701,146 3,673,462 2,322,428 3,296,625 2,945,723 

Balance Sheet Summary 
Share capital Rs. thousand 442,926 442,926 442,926 442,926 402,660 366,055 
General reserves Rs. thousand 2,278,935 2,895,519 3,116,706 3,263,551 3,306,590 3,368,710 
Property, plant & equipment Rs. thousand 717,873 448,130 485,721 481,293 448,375 415,926 
Non current assets Rs. thousand 790,395 882,548 984,201 1,115,518 1,056,250 889,203 
Current assets Rs. thousand 15,622,341 8,320,644 6,239,303 5,421,289 8,732,156 9,038,370 
Current liabilities Rs. thousand 11,350,121 5,407,391 2,976,973 2,500,805 5,331,414 5,098,772 
Net working capital Rs. thousand 4,272,220 2,913,253 3,262,330 2,920,484 3,400,742 3,939,598 
Long term / deferred liabilities Rs. thousand 30,635 102,171 20,809 29,437 30,148 28,530 

Profitibility Ratios 
Gross profit % 23.65 19.72 19.17 17.94 17.67 17.06 
Operating profit % 20.81 15.59 15.70 13.64 14.26 14.31 
Profit before tax % 20.80 15.50 15.66 13.16 13.98 14.28 
Net profit after tax % 14.19 10.35 10.39 8.93 9.42 9.82 
EBITDA margin % 21.04 15.97 16.01 14.00 14.52 14.63 
Operating leverage % 1.77 1.02 1.55 1.12 0.96 1.40 
Return on equity % 74.05 42.26 50.57 33.02 43.87 37.91 
Return on capital employed % 76.42 43.21 51.27 33.33 44.33 38.10 
Return on assets % 36.44 27.15 46.60 31.11 31.00 27.80 

Liquidity Ratios 
Current Times 1.38:1 1.54:1 2.1:1 2.17: 1 1.64: 1 1.77: 1 
Quick / Acid test Times 1.04:1 1.05:1 1.24:1 1.15: 1 1.12: 1 1.17: 1 
Cash to current liabilities Times 0.18:1 0.47:1 0.36:1 0.45: 1 0.39: 1 0.13: 1 
Cash flow from operations to sales Times 0.26:1 0.21:1 0.10:1 0.02: 1 0.09: 1 0.04: 1 

Activity / Turnover Ratios 
Inventory turnover ratio Times 7.14 5.23 7.28 5.15 6.46 5.79 
No. of Days in Inventory Days 51 70 50 71 57 63 
Debtor turnover ratio Times 124.93 71.00 149.87 30.28 32.77 68.51 
No. of Days in Receivables Days 3 5 2 12 11 5 
Creditor turnover ratio Times 23.44 13.79 19.99 7.51 7.94 9.76 
No.of Days in Creditors Days 16 26 18 49 46 37 
Total assets turnover ratio Times 1.75 1.75 2.98 2.36 2.22 1.95 
Fixed assets turnover ratio Times 41.41 25.12 32.99 23.91 34.79 34.46 
Operatinq cycle Days 38 48 34 34 22 31 

Investment / Market Ratios 
Earning per share (aftertax) Rs. 96.12 39.52 53.79 33.46 48.28 49.11 
Price earning Times 14.30 14.43 12.75 14.92 10.87 9.83 
Dividend yield % 9.59 8.61 8.93 7.96 9.81 13.32 
Dividend payout ratio (after tax) % 98.83 126.53 97.60 119.56 113.92 132.36 
Dividend cover Times 2.75 0.79 1.02 0.64 1.02 0.83 
Cash Dividend per share Rs. 95 50 52.5 40.00 55.00 65.00 
Bonus per share % 19.00 
Market value per share: 
Year end Rs. 1,374.44 570.25 685.82 499.13 524.99 482.85 

During the year: 
Highest Rs. 1,575.99 705.00 710.99 571.54 646.00 625.80 
Average Rs. 991.10 580.95 587.99 502.64 560.50 487.95 
Lowest Rs. 538.00 460.00 465.00 433.73 475.00 350.09 

Break-up value per share Rs. 129.82 93.51 106.37 101.32 121.08 142.50 
(With/without surplus on revaluation of fixed assets) 

Capital Structure Ratios 
Debt to Equity ratio Times 0: 100 0: 100 0: 100 0: 100 0: 100 0: 100 
Financial charges coverage Times 29,726 245 444 29.14 52.02 499.76 
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION & ITS DISTRIBUTION 

2017 2016 

Rs. ("000) % Rs. ("000) % 

VALUE ADDITION 

Net Sales 30,013,921 16,913,832 

Material and services 22,798,705) (13,384,931) 

Other income 610,091 272,249 

7,825,307 3,801,150 

VALUE DISTRIBUTION 

Employees 

Salaries wages and ammenities 1,052,736 13.45 901,876 23.73 

Worker's profit participation fund 334,536 4.28 140,507 3.70 

1,387,272 17.73 1,042,383 27.42 

Government 

Tax 1,984,700 25.36 870,508 22.90 

Workers welfare fund 113,950 1.46 48,821 1.28 

2,098,650 26.82 919,329 24.19 

Share holders 

Cash Dividend 4,207,797 53.77 2,214,627 58.26 

4,207,797 53.77 2,214,627 58.26 

Financial Charges 

Finance Cost 2,181 0.03 15,300 0.40 

2,181 0.03 15,300 0.40 

Society 

Donation 6,235 0.08 4,225 0.11 

6,235 0.08 4,225 0.11 

Retained in business 

Depreciation 73,436 0.94 69,615 1.83 

Retained profit 49,736 0.64 (464,329) (12.22) 

123,172 1.57 (394,714) (10.38) 

7,825,307 100.00 3,801,150 100.00 

53.8% Retained in 
business 58.3% 

Retained in 
business 
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS 

2017 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

2016 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Rs. ("000) % Rs. ("000) % 

Balance Sheet Items 

Property, Plant and Equipment 717,873 60.2 448,130 (7.7) 

Capital Work in Progress 6,974 (96.9) 225,134 7.4 

Intangible Assets 897 (72.8) 3,295 (14.8) 

Investment Property 255,708 255,708 

Long Term Investments 484,279 22.0 396,928 7.4 

Long Term Loans 2,575 73.6 1,483 (22.4) 

Employee benefits 39,962 100.0 - (100.0) 

Stores and Spares 118,431 5.8 111,913 4.5 

Stock in Trade 3,646,581 43.3 2,545,484 4.8 

Trade Debts 194,311 (32.1) 286,194 50.4 

Loans and Advances 54,488 (24.4) 72,071 4.9 

Trade Deposits and Prepayments 19,611 (19.5) 24,366 7.1 

Balance with statutory authority 2,526,588 113.4 1,184,143 54.3 

Other receivables 97,246 (7.2) 104,756 70.3 

Tax refunds due from Government 185,886 (70.5) 629,148 (22.8) 

Short Term Investments 6,718,196 739.4 800,317 14.3 

Cash and Bank balances 2,061,003 (19.6) 2,562,252 136.8 

Total Assets 17,130,609 77.5 9,651,322 25.1 

Share Holder's Equity 5,749,853 38.8 4,141,760 (12.1) 

Non Current Liabilities 30,635 (70.0) 102,171 391.0 

Current Liabilities 11,350,121 109.9 5,407,391 81.6 

Total Liabilities and Equity 17,130,609 77.5 9,651,322 25.2 

Profit & Loss Items 

Sales - Net 30,013,921 77.5 16,913,832 (26.3) 

Cost of Sales 22,916,592 68.8 13,577,972 (26.8) 

Gross Profit 7,097,329 112.8 3,335,860 (24.1) 

Distribution and marketing expenses 536,522 53.2 350,155 (32.0) 

Administrative Expenses 471,550 10.9 425,327 1.4 

Other operating income 610,091 124.1 272,249 (32.6) 

Other operating expenses 454,934 131.5 196,521 (25.7) 

Operating profit 6,244,414 136.9 2,636,106 (26.8) 

Finance costs 2,181 (85.7) 15,300 63.5 

Profit before tax 6,242,233 138.2 2,620,806 (27.0) 

Taxation 1,984,700 128.0 870,508 (28.1) 

Profit after Tax 4,257,533 143.2 1,750,298 (26.5) 
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2015 2014 2013 2012 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Rs. ("000) % Rs. ("000) % Rs. ("000) % Rs. ("000) % 

485,721 0.9 481,293 7.3 448,375 7.8 415,926 (4.5) 

209,660 (1.3) 212,431 4.1 204,112 21.3 168,260 8.5 

3,867 (34.3) 5,888 600.1 841 (85.7) 5,871 (66.7) 

255,708 - 255,708 - 255,708 - 255,708 - 

369,543 6.9 345,750 (2.4) 354,119 22.9 288,187 (1.3) 

1,911 (1.5) 1,941 (6.0) 2,065 (23.6) 2,702 (5.5) 

143,512 (51.2) 293,800 22.7 239,405 42.1 168,475 98.3 

107,141 (11.4) 120,951 (9.4) 133,485 95.1 68,419 (48.0) 

2,429,982 (0.2) 2,433,690 (6.5) 2,601,698 (12.9) 2,986,120 15.7 

190,240 56.3 121,731 (87.5) 974,158 136.8 411,326 133.1 

68,683 (43.7) 122,047 70.7 71,498 (60.6) 181,535 (15.7) 

22,748 (6.0) 24,198 (11.6) 27,384 9.1 25,103 31.2 

767,295 141.4 317,853 (83.3) 1,904,916 15.5 1,649,132 156.9 

61,506 (48.6) 119,679 38.4 86,483 (11.4) 97,630 31.1 

815,198 (13.5) 942,966 221.7 293,083 (41.7) 502,439 265.7 

700,203 600.2 100,000 (81.9) 551,871 (77.6) 2,461,860 (17.1) 

1,082,170 (3.2) 1,118,174 (46.4) 2,087,580 218.8 654,806 66.4 

7,715,088 9.9 7,018,100 (31.4) 10,236,781 (1.0) 10,343,499 20.5 

4,711,443 5.0 4,487,858 (7.9) 4,875,219 (6.5) 5,216,197 12.1 

20,809 (29.3) 29,437 (2.4) 30,148 5.7 28,530 (20.9) 

2,976,973 19.0 2,500,805 (53.1) 5,331,414 4.6 5,098,772 30.8 

7,709,225 9.8 7,018,100 (31.4) 10,236,781 (1.0) 10,343,499 20.5 

22,937,917 38.3 16,589,996 (26.9) 22,698,651 12.7 20,133,130 (19.0) 

18,541,448 36.2 13,613,305 (27.2) 18,688,384 11.9 16,699,313 (18.3) 

4,396,469 47.7 2,976,691 (25.8) 4,010,267 16.8 3,433,817 (22.5) 

515,007 5.7 487,292 (1.4) 494,367 2.2 483,940 (10.5) 

419,320 14.5 366,191 7.7 340,081 9.5 310,629 1.2 

404,157 35.0 299,483 (0.6) 301,383 (36.2) 472,618 (30.5) 

264,550 65.3 160,003 (33.2) 239,676 4.2 230,113 (32.4) 

3,601,749 59.2 2,262,688 (30.1) 3,237,526 12.3 2,881,753 (26.6) 

9,360 (88.2) 79,208 22.7 64,554 907.4 6,408 (33.0) 

3,592,389 64.5 2,183,480 (31.2) 3,172,972 10.4 2,875,345 (26.5) 

1,209,968 72.5 701,616 (32.2) 1,034,326 15.2 897,727 (27.8) 

2,382,421 60.8 1,481,864 (30.7) 2,138,646 8.1 1,977,618 (26.0) 
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS 

2017 2016 

Rs. ("000) % Rs. ("000) % 

Balance Sheet Items 

Property, Plant and Equipment 717,873 4.2 448,130 4.6 

Capital Work in Progress 6,974 0.0 225,134 2.3 

Intangible Assets 897 0.0 3,295 0.0 

Investment Property 255,708 1.5 255,708 2.6 

Long Term Investments 484,279 2.8 396,928 4.1 

Long Term Loans 2,575 0.0 1,483 0.0 

Employee benefits 39,962 0.2 

Stores and Spares 118,431 0.7 111,913 1.2 

Stock in Trade 3,646,581 21.3 2,545,484 26.4 

Trade Debts 194,311 1.1 286,194 3.0 

Loans and Advances 54,488 0.3 72,071 0.7 

Trade Deposits and Prepayments 19,611 0.1 24,366 0.3 

Balance with statutory authority 2,526,588 14.7 1,184,143 12.3 

Other receivables 97,246 0.6 104,756 1.1 

Tax refunds due from Government 185,886 1.1 629,148 6.5 

Short Term Investments 6,718,196 39.2 800,317 8.3 

Cash and Bank balances 2,061,003 12.0 2,562,252 26.5 

Total Assets 17,130,609 100.0 9,651,322 100.0 

Share Holder's Equity 5,749,853 33.6 4,141,760 42.9 

Non Current Liabilities 30,635 0.2 102,171 1.1 

Current Liabilities 11,350,121 66.3 5,407,391 56.0 

Total Liabilities and Equity 17,130,609 100.0 9,651,322 100.0 

Profit & Loss Items 

Sales - Net 30,013,921 100.0 16,913,832 100.0 

Cost of Sales 22,916,592 76.4 13,577,972 80.3 

Gross Profit 7,097,329 23.6 3,335,860 19.7 

Distribution and marketing expenses 536,522 1.8 350,155 2.1 

Administrative Expenses 471,550 1.6 425,327 2.5 

Other operating income 610,091 2.0 272,249 1.6 

Other operating expenses 454,934 1.5 196,521 1.2 

Operating profit 6,244,414 20.8 2,636,106 15.6 

Finance Cost 2,181 0.0 15,300 0.1 

Profit before Tax 6,242,233 20.8 2,620,806 15.5 

Taxation 1,984,700 6.6 870,508 5.1 

Profit after Tax 4,257,533 14.2 1,750,298 10.3 
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2015 2014 2013 2012 

Rs. ("000) % Rs. ("000) % Rs. ("000) % Rs. ("000) % 

485,721 6.3 481,293 6.9 448,375 4.4 415,926 4.0 

209,660 2.7 212,431 3.0 204,112 2.0 168,260 1.6 

3,867 0.1 5,888 0.1 841 0.0 5,871 0.1 

255,708 3.3 255,708 3.6 255,708 2.5 255,708 2.5 

369,543 4.8 345,750 4.9 354,119 3.5 288,187 2.8 

1,911 0.0 1,941 0.0 2,065 0.0 2,702 0.0 

143,512 1.9 293,800 4.2 239,405 2.3 168,475 1.6 

107,141 1.4 120,951 1.7 133,485 1.3 68,419 0.7 

2,429,982 31.5 2,433,690 34.7 2,601,698 25.4 2,986,120 28.9 

190,240 2.5 121,731 1.7 974,158 9.5 411,326 4.0 

68,683 0.9 122,047 1.7 71,498 0.7 181,535 1.8 

22,748 0.3 24,198 0.3 27,384 0.3 25,103 0.2 

767,295 9.9 317,853 4.5 1,904,916 18.6 1,649,132 15.9 

61,506 0.8 119,679 1.7 86,483 0.8 97,630 0.9 

815,198 10.6 942,966 13.4 293,083 2.9 502,439 4.9 

700,203 9.1 100,000 1.4 551,871 5.4 2,461,860 23.8 

1,082,170 14.0 1,118,174 15.9 2,087,580 20.4 654,806 6.3 

7,715,088 100.0 7,018,100 100.0 10,236,781 100.0 10,343,499 100.0 

4,711,443 61.1 4,487,858 63.9 4,875,219 47.6 5,216,197 50.4 

20,809 0.3 29,437 0.4 30,148 0.3 28,530 0.3 

2,976,973 38.6 2,500,805 35.6 5,331,414 52.1 5,098,772 49.3 

7,709,225 100.0 7,018,100 100.0 10,236,781 100.0 10,343,499 100.0 

22,937,917 100.0 16,589,996 100.0 22,698,651 100.0 20,133,130 100.0 

18,541,448 80.8 13,613,305 82.1 18,688,384 82.3 16,699,313 82.9 

4,396,469 19.2 2,976,691 17.9 4,010,267 17.7 3,433,817 17.1 

515,007 2.2 487,292 2.9 494,367 2.2 483,940 2.4 

419,320 1.8 366,191 2.2 340,081 1.5 310,629 1.5 

404,157 1.8 299,483 1.8 301,383 1.3 472,618 2.3 

264,550 1.2 160,003 1.0 239,676 1.1 230,113 1.1 

3,601,749 15.7 2,262,688 13.6 3,237,526 14.3 2,881,753 14.3 

9,360 0.0 79,208 0.5 64,554 0.3 6,408 0.0 

3,592,389 15.7 2,183,480 13.2 3,172,972 14.0 2,875,345 14.3 

1,209,968 5.3 701,616 4.2 1,034,326 4.6 897,727 4.5 

2,382,421 10.4 1,481,864 8.9 2,138,646 9.4 1,977,618 9.8 
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REVIEW REPORT 

to the members on statement of compliance with best practices 

of code of corporate governance 

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices (the statement) contained in the Code of 
Corporate Governance prepared by the Board of Directors of Millat Tractors Limited (the Company) forthe year ended 
30 June 2017 to comply with the Code contained in the Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, where the 
Company is listed. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether 
the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code of 
Corporate Governance and report if it does not. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company personnel 
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code. 

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal 
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider 
whether the Board's statement on internal controls covers all the risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the 
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval of its related party transactions 
distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions 
and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such 
alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of 
the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at 
arm's length price or not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in 
the Code of Corporate Governance as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2017. 

EY Ford Rhodes 
Chartered Accountants 
Engagement Partner: Naseem Akbar 

Lahore: 14 September 2017 
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Statement of Compliance 

with the Code of Corporate Governance [See clause (5.19.24)] 

This statement is being presented to comply with the 
Code of Corporate Governance contained in Chapter 
5.19 of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 
for the purpose of establishing a framework of good 
governance, whereby a listed company is managed 
in compliance with the best practices of corporate 
governance. 

The company has applied the principles contained in 
the CCG in the following manner: 

1. The company encourages representation of 
independent non-executive directors and 
directors representing minority interests on its 
board of directors. At present the board includes: 

Category Names 

Independent Director(s) 1. Mr. Saad Iqbal 

Executive Directors(s) 

Non-Executive Director(s) 

1. Mian Muhammad Saleem 
2. S.M. Irfan Aqueel 

1. Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan 
2. Mr. Latif Khalid Hashmi 
3. Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana 
4. Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari 
5. Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 

The independent director meets the criteria of 
independence under clause 5.19.1 of the CCG. 

6. The board has developed a vision/mission 
statement, overall corporate strategy and 
significant policies of the company. A complete 
record of particulars of significant policies along 
with the dates on which they were approved or 
amended has been maintained. 

7. All the powers of the board have been duly 
exercised and decisions on material transactions, 
including appointment and determination of 
remuneration and terms and conditions of 
employment of the CEO, other executive and 
non-executive directors, have been taken by the 
board/ shareholders where applicable. 

8. The meetings of the board were presided over 
by the Chairman and in his absence by a director 
elected by the Board for this purpose, the board 
met at least once in every quarter. Written notices 
of the board meetings, along with agenda and 
working papers, were circulated at least seven 
days before the meetings. The minutes of the 
meetings were appropriately recorded and 
circulated. 

9. An orientation course was arranged for directors 
during the year. Six directors meet the criteria of 
minimum of 14 years of education and 15 years 
of experience on the board of listed Companies. 
Remaining two directors have already obtained 
the desired certification 

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them 
is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this company (excluding 
the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies 
where applicable). 

3. All the resident directors of the company are 
registered as taxpayers and none of them has 
defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking 
company, a DEI or an NBFI or, being a broker of a 
stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter 
by that stock exchange. 

4. No casual vacancy occurred in the board of 
directors of the Company during the year. 

5. The company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" 
and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
taken to disseminate it throughout the company 
along with its supporting policies and procedures. 

10. The board has approved appointment of CEO, 
Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms and 
conditions of employment. 

11. The directors' report for this year has been 
prepared in compliance with the requirements of 
the CCG and fully describes the salient matters 
required to be disclosed. 

12. The financial statements of the company were 
duly endorsed by CEO and CEO before approval 
of the board. 

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold 
any interest in the shares of the company other 
than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding. 

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate 
and financial reporting requirements of the CCG. 
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The transactions with associated companies 
shall be laid for approval of the members in the 
ensuing general meeting. 

15. The board has formed an Audit Committee. It 
comprises four members, of whom three are 
non-executive and one independent director. The 
chairman of the committee is a non-executive 
director. 

16. The meetings of the audit committee were held 
at least once every quarter prior to approval of 
interim and final results of the company and as 
required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the 
committee have been formed and advised to the 
committee for compliance. All the requirements 
of CCG with respect to Audit Committee were 
complied with except that the Chairman Audit 
Committee was unable to attend the preceding 
Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
However, the Audit Committee was represented 
by a member on the Chairman's behalf as 
authorized by him. 

17. The board has formed an HR and Remuneration 
Committee. It comprises 04 members, of whom 
three are non-executive directors and one 
member is an executive director and the chairman 
of the committee is a non-executive director. 

21. The 'closed period', prior to the announcement 
of interim/final results, and business decisions, 
which may materially affect the market price 
of company's securities, was determined and 
intimated to directors, employees and stock 
exchange(s). 

22. Material/price sensitive information has been 
disseminated among all market participants at 
once through stock exchange(s). 

23. The Company has complied with the requirements 
relating to maintenance of register of persons 
having access to inside information by designated 
senior management officer in a timely manner 
and maintained proper record including basis of 
inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from 
the said list. 

24. We confirm that all other material principles 
enshrined in the CCG have been complied with 

(Syed Muhammad Irfan Aqueel) (Sohail Bashir Rana) 
Chief Executive Director 

18. The board has set up an effective internal audit 
function, the staff is suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose and are conversant 
with the policies and procedures of the company. 

Lahore: 
September 12, 2017 

19. The statutory auditors of the company have 
confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the quality control review program 
of the ICAP, that they or any of the partners of the 
firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold 
shares of the company and that the firm and all 
its partners are in compliance with International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on 
code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP. 

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated 
with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the listing 
regulations and the auditors have confirmed that 
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard. 
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Financial Statements 

MILLAT TRACTORS LIMITED 

For the year ended 30 June 2017 
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GRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF 

BALANCE SHEET 

Equity & Liabilities 

2016-17 

5,749,853 
34% 

30,535 

11,350,121 

i Shareholder Equity ■ Non-Current Liabilities Current Liabilities 

2015-16 

L 

4,141,750 
43% 

5,407,391 
55% 

102,171 
1% 

i Shareholder Equity ■ Non-Current Liabilities Current Liabilities 

2016-17 
1,021,414 

485,854 

15,522,341 
91% 

■ Fixed Assets 
■ Long-term investments & Long-term pre-payments 

Current Assets 

Assets 

2015-16 
932,257 

10% 
398,411 

320,544 

■ Fixed Assets 
i Long-term investments & Long-term pre-payments 
Current Assets 
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AUDITORS' REPORT 

to the Members 

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Millat Tractors Limited ("the Company") as at 30 June 2017 and the 
related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes 
in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained 
all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes 
of our audit. 

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and 
prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are 
free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that: 

(a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984; 

(b) in our opinion; 
(i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn 

up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of 
accounts and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied; 

(ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and 

(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in 
accordance with the objects of the Company. 

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance 
sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement 
of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, 
in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as 
at 30 June 2017 and of the profit, its comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for the year 
then ended; and 

(d) in our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that 
Ordinance. 

^ (■ , rt.' 

BY Ford Rhodes 
Chartered Accountants 

Name of audit engagement partner: 
Naseem Akbar 

Lahore: 
14 September 2017 



<70 Millat Tractors Limited Annual Report 2017 

BALANCE SHEET 

as at June 30, 2017 

2017 2016 

Note (Rupees in thousand) 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Share capital and reserves 

Authorized share capital 

50,000,000 (2016: 50,000,000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 500,000 500,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 5 442,926 442,926 

General reserves 2,278,935 2,985,519 

Unappropriated profit 2,849,637 622,192 

Available for sale reserve 178,355 91,123 

5,749,853 4,141,760 

Non-current liabilities 

Long term deposits 6 11,515 11,505 

Deferred tax liabilities - net 7 19,120 2,108 

Employees' defined benefit plan 8 - 88,558 

30,635 102,171 

Current liabilities 

Accumulating compensated absences 94,952 96,282 

Trade and other payables 9 11,255,169 5,310,799 

Accrued mark-up on short term borrowings 10 - 310 

11,350,121 5,407,391 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 11 - - 

17,130,609 9,651,322 

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer 
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2017 2016 

Note (Rupees in thousand) 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment: 

Operating fixed assets 12 717,873 448,130 

Capital work in progress 13 6,974 225,134 

724,847 673,264 

Intangible assets 14 897 3,295 

Investment property 15 255,708 255,708 

Long term investments 16 484,279 396,928 

Long term loans 17 2,575 1,483 

Employees' defined benefit plan 8 39,962 - 

1,508,268 1,330,678 

Current assets 

Stores, spare parts and loose tools 18 118,431 111,913 

Stock in trade 19 3,646,581 2,545,484 

Trade debts 20 194,311 286,194 

Loans and advances 21 54,488 72,071 

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 22 19,611 24,366 

Balances with statutory authorities 23 2,526,588 1,184,143 

Other receivables 24 97,246 104,756 

Tax refunds due from the Government 185,886 629,148 

Short term investments 25 6,718,196 800,317 

Cash and bank balances 26 2,061,003 2,562,252 

15,622,341 8,320,644 

17,130,609 9,651,322 

Director 
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 

for the year ended 30 June 2017 

Note 2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Sales - net 27 30,013,921 16,913,832 

Cost of sales 28 22,916,592 13,577,972 

Gross profit 7,097,329 3,335,860 

Distribution and marketing expenses 29 536,522 350,155 

Administrative expenses 30 471,550 425,327 

Other operating expenses 31 454,934 196,521 

1,463,006 972,003 

Other income 32 610,091 272,249 

Operating profit 6,244,414 2,636,106 

Finance costs 33 2,181 15,300 

Profit before taxation 6,242,233 2,620,806 

Taxation 34 1,984,700 870,508 

Profit for the year 4,257,533 1,750,298 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 38 96.12 39.52 

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

for the year ended 30 June 2017 

2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Profit for the year 4,257,533 1,750,298 

Other comprehensive income: 

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss 

in subsequent periods: 

Unrealized gain on revaluation of available for sale investments 87,232 26,170 

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan 142,343 (242,255) 

Total other comprehensive income / (losses) net of tax 229,575 (216,085) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 4,487,108 1,534,213 

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

for the year ended 30 June 2017 

Note 2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash generated from operations 39 11,203,535 4,884,145 

Interest and mark-up paid (2,491) (16,790) 

(Increase) / decrease in long term loans to employees - net (1,092) 428 

Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid (320,507) (152,539) 

Workers' Welfare Fund paid (90,245) (125,856) 

Taxes paid (2,866,871) (1,109,412) 

Retirement benefits paid - net (22,191) (12,108) 

Long term security deposits received 10 910 

(3,303,387) (1,415,367) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 7,900,148 3,468,778 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Capital expenditure (139,210) (69,065) 

Purchase of intangible assets - (2,381) 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 17,615 18,716 

Short term investments made - net (5,679,475) (68,383) 

Profit on bank deposits received 36,821 14,009 

Dividend received 281,065 149,560 

Net cash flows (used in) / generated from investing activities (5,483,184) 42,456 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Dividend paid (2,918,213) (2,031,152) 

Net cash flows used in financing activities (2,918,213) (2,031,152) 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (501,249) 1,480,082 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,562,252 1,082,170 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 26 2,061,003 2,562,252 

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

for the year ended 30 June 2017 

Share 
capital 

Revenue reserves Available 
General Unapprop- for sale 
reserves hated profit reserve 
 (Rupees in thousand)  

Total 

Balance as on 01 July 2015 442,926 3,116,706 1,086,858 64,953 4,711,443 

Final dividend for the year ended 

30 June 2015 @ Rs. 27.5 per share (131,187) (1,086,858) (1,218,045) 

Interim dividend for the year ended 

30 June 2016 @ Rs. 20 per share (885,851) (885,851) 

Total comprehensive income for the 

year ended 30 June 2016 1,508,043 26,170 1,534,213 

Balance as on 30 June 2016 442,926 2,985,519 622,192 91,123 4,141,760 

Final dividend for the year ended 
30 June 2016 @ Rs. 30 per share (706,584) (622,192) (1,328,776) 

Interim dividend for the year ended 
30 June 2017 @ Rs. 35 per share (1,550,239) (1,550,239) 

Total comprehensive income for the 

year ended 30 June 2017 4,399,876 87,232 4,487,108 

Balance as on 30 June 2017 442,926 2,278,935 2,849,637 

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

178,355 5,749,853 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

for the year ended 30 June 2017 

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
Millat Tractors Limited (the Company) is a public limited Company incorporated in Pakistan in 1964 under 
the Companies Act 1913 (now the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984), and is listed on Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Company is situated at Sheikhupura Road, District Sheikhupura. 
It is principally engaged in assembling and manufacturing of agricultural tractors, implements and multi- 
application products. 

1.1 These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company, in which investments in the 
subsidiary companies namely Millat Equipment Limited (MEL), Bolan Castings Limited (BCL), Millat Industrial 
Products Limited (MIPL) and Tipeg Intertrade DMCC have been accounted for at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
During the year, the Companies Act 2017 (the Act) has been promulgated, however, Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan vide its circular no. 17 of 2017 dated 20 July 2017 communicated that the companies 
whose financial year closes on or before June 30, 2017 shall prepare their financial statements in accordance 
with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

Hence, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984. Approved accounting standards 
comprise such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) as are notified underthe Companies Ordinance, 1984. Wherever, the requirements of 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP) differ with the requirements of these standards, the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984 or 
the requirements of the said directives shall prevail. 

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT 
3.1 Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for valuation 
of certain financial instruments at fair value and recognition of certain employee retirement benefits at 
present value. 

3.2 Use of estimates and judgments 
The Company's significant accounting policies are stated in note 4 to these financial statements. Not all of 
these significant policies require the management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or 
estimates. The following is intended to provide an understanding of the policies the management considers 
critical because of their complexity, judgment of estimation involved in their application and their impact on 
these financial statements. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
experience, including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable underthe circumstances. 
These judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may 
differ from these estimates. The areas involving higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follows: 

3.2.1 Employees' retirement benefits and other obligations 
The Company uses the valuation performed by an independent actuary as the present value of its retirement 
benefit obligations. The valuation is based on assumptions as mentioned in note 4.2.1 to these financial 
statements. 

3.2.2 Provision for taxation 
The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities. 
Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the 
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its views on items of material nature are in 
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities. 
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3.2.3 Useful life, residual values and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
The Company reviews the useful lives, residual value and method of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment on a regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts 
of respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation 
charge and impairment. 

3.2.4 Provision for inventories 
The company regularly reviews the inventories for impairment. Provision for obsolete and slow-moving 
inventories is based on management estimate. 

3.2.5 Provision for receivables 
The company regularly reviews its receivables for impairment, if any. The provision in this regard is made, 
based on management's estimate, where the prospects of recovery are doubtful. 

3.3 Functional and presentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency. 

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of financial statements of 
the Company are consistent with previous year except as discussed in Note 4.1 to these financial statements 
and are as follows: 

4.1 New, amended standards and interpretations become effective 
The Company has adopted the following accounting standard and the amendments and interpretation of 
IFRSs which became effective for the current year: 

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and 
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception 
(Amendment) 

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements-Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint Operation (Amendment) 
IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure Initiative (Amendment) 
IAS 16- Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 intangible assets 

Clarification of Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendment) 
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment IAS 41 Agriculture - Agriculture: Bearer Plants (Amendment) 
IAS 27 - Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendment) 

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB 
IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in methods of disposal 
IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing contracts 
IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Applicability of the offsetting disclosures to condensed interim 

financial statements 
IAS 19 - Employee Benefits - Discount rate: regional market issue 
IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of information elsewhere in the interim financial report 

The adoption of the above amendments, improvements to accounting standards and interpretations did not 
have any effect on the financial statements 

4.2 Employees' retirement benefits and other obligations 
The main features of the schemes operated by the Company for its employees are as follows: 

4.2.1 Defined benefit plan 
4.2.1.1 Pension 

The Company operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme for all its eligible employees. Contributions 
under the scheme are made to this fund on the basis of actuarial recommendation at 17% (2016: 17%) of 
basic salary per annum and are charged to profit and loss account. The latest actuarial valuation for the 
scheme was carried out as at 30 June, 2017. 



<78 Millat Tractors Limited Annual Report 2017 

The amount recognized in balance sheet represents the present value of the plan assets reduced by value of 
defined benefit obligation. 

The future contribution rate of the plan includes allowances for deficit and surplus. Projected Unit Credit 
Method, using the following significant assumptions, is used for valuation of this scheme: 

2017 2016 
Expected rate of increase in salary level 6.8% 6.3% 
Expected rate of return 7.3% 9.8% 
Discount rate 7.8% 7.3% 
Average expected remaining working life of employees 10 years 10 years 

4.2.2 Defined contribution plans 
4.2.2.1 Gratuity 

The Company operates an approved defined contribution funded gratuity scheme for permanent employees 
who joined the Company before 01 July 2004. Under the scheme, based on the graduated scale, the 
contributions are calculated with reference to last drawn salary of the employees and are paid over to the 
Employees Gratuity Fund Trust. 

4.2.2.2 Provident fund 
The Company operates an approved defined contribution provident fund for all permanent employees. 
Equal contributions are made by employees and the Company at the rate of 10 percent of basic salary per 
month. 

4.2.3 Accumulating compensated absences 
The Company provides for accumulating compensated absences, when the employees render services 
that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences and are charged to profit and loss 
account. 

4.3 Taxation 
Current 
Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or 
tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes 
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for taxation made in previous years arising from 
assessments framed during the year for such years. 

Deferred 
Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences 
arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and 
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally 
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it 
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused 
tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the year when the differences reverse 
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax 
is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to other 
comprehensive income in which case it is included in other comprehensive income. 

4.4 Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment except for freehold and leasehold land are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any identified impairment loss, if any. Freehold and leasehold land is stated at cost less any 
identified impairment loss, if any. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to profit 
and loss account during the period in which they are incurred. 
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Depreciation on all items of property, plant and equipment except for leasehold office building is charged to 
profit and loss account applying the diminishing balance method so as to write-off the depreciable amount 
of an asset over its useful life. Depreciation on leasehold office building is provided on a straight line basis so 
as to write off the depreciable amount of an asset over the life of the asset. Depreciation is being charged at 
the rates given in note 12. Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the 
month in which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which 
the asset is disposed off. 

The Company continually assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that property, 
plant and equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values 
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount and the 
resulting impairment loss is recognized in profit and loss account for the year. Any previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount 
of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount, and the increased amount cannot exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for 
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an assets' fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the assets' revised carrying amount over its 
estimated useful life. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit and 
loss account in the year the asset is derecognized. 

4.5 Capital work-in-progress 
All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period including 
advances to suppliers and contractors are carried under this head. These are transferred to specific assets as 
and when these assets are available for use. 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss, if any. 

4.6 Intangible assets 
Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software are capitalized as intangible assets and stated at cost less 
accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets are amortized using 
the straight line method over a period of three years. 

Amortization on additions to intangible assets is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired or 
capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. 

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may 
be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying amounts exceed the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss 
is recognized in profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted 
in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life. 

4.7 Investment property 
Property not held for own use or for sale in the ordinary course of business is classified as investment 
property. The investment property of the Company comprises land and is valued using the cost method, at 
cost less any identified impairment loss. 

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that investment property 
may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets is reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying value exceeds the respective 
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recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss 
is recognized in the profit and loss account for the year. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit and loss account. 

4.8 Investments and other financial assets 
4.8.1 Subsidiary and associated undertakings 

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. The Company controls an investee when the Company is 
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect 
those returns through its power over the investee. 

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor 
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the investee but do not have control or joint control over those policies. 

Investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings are carried at cost less impairment loss, if any. 

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of the investments in subsidiary and 
associates to assess whether there is any indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. 
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss, if any. In making an estimate of recoverable amount of these investments, the management 
considers future dividend stream and an estimate of the terminal value of these investments. Impairment 
losses are recognized as expense in the profit and loss account. 

4.8.2 Others 
Financial assets in the scope of IAS 39 : "Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement", are 
classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. Financial assets are initially measured at 
cost, which is the fair value of consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets are 
subsequently measured at fair value or cost as the case may be. The Company determines the classification of 
its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation 
at each financial year end. 

4.8.2.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets classified as held-for-trading are included in the category 'Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss'. Financial assets are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose 
of selling in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated and 
are effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognized in profit 
and loss account. 

4.8.2.2 Held-to-maturity investments 
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as 
held-to-maturity when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity and are 
initially measured at cost. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this 
classification. Other long-term investments that are intended to be held-to-maturity, such as bonds, are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost. This cost is computed as the amount initially recognized minus 
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any 
difference between the initially recognized amount and the maturity amount. This calculation includes all 
fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts. For investments carried at amortized 
cost, gains and losses are recognized in profit and loss account when the investments are derecognized or 
impaired, as well as through the amortization process. 

4.8.2.3 Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
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Gains and losses are recognized in profit and loss account when the loans and receivables are derecognized 
or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. 

4.8.2.4 Available-for-sale financial assets 
The financial assets including investments in associated undertakings where the Company has not significant 
influence that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time or may be sold in response to the need 
for liquidity are classified as available-for-sale. 

Investments classified as available-for-sale are initially measured at cost, being the fair value of consideration 
given. At subsequent reporting dates, these investments are remeasured at fair value (quoted market price), 
unless fair value cannot be reliably measured. The investments for which a quoted market price is not 
available, are measured at cost as it is not possible to apply any other valuation methodology. Unrealized 
gains and losses arising from the changes in the fair value are included in fair value reserves in the period in 
which they arise. 

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of the investments to assess whether 
there is any indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment 
losses are recognized as expense. In respect of 'available-for-sale' financial assets, cumulative impairment 
loss less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit and loss account, is 
removed from equity and recognized in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognized in the 
profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. 

All purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date which is the date that the Company 
commits to purchase or sell the investment. Cost of purchase includes transaction cost. 

4.10 Stores, spare parts and loose tools 
Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of net realizable value or moving average cost. Items 
in transit are valued at cost comprising of invoice value and other incidental charges paid thereon. 

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving stores, spare parts and loose tools is based on management 
estimate. 

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs 
necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. Provision for obsolete and slow-moving stores and 
spares is based on management estimate. 

4.11 Stock-in-trade 
Stock of raw materials, except for those in transit, work-in-process and finished goods are valued principally 
at the lower of moving average cost and net realizable value. 

Items in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value and other incidental charges paid thereon. 

Cost of raw materials and trading stock comprises the invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. 

Cost of work-in-process and finished goods include direct material, labour and appropriate portion of 
manufacturing overheads. 

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs 
necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. Provision for obsolete and slow-moving stock-in-trade 
is based on management estimate. 

4.12 Trade debts 
Trade debts are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate for doubtful debts balances based on 
review of outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written off when identified. 
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4.13 Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost and comprise 
of cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term highly liquid 
instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash which are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in values. 

4.14 Revenue recognition 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade 
discounts and volume rebates. 

Dividend is recognized as income when the right to receive dividend is established. 

Profit on bank deposits is recognized on effective rate of interest method. 

Investment income is recognized when right to receive the income is established. 

4.15 Research cost 
These costs are charged to profit and loss account when incurred. 

4.16 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the 
extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset up to the date of its 
commissioning. 

4.17 Trade and other payables 
Liabilities fortrade and other amounts payable are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company. 

4.18 Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

4.19 Foreign currency transactions and translation 
All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at 
exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are 
recognized in the profit and loss account. All non-monetary items are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange 
rates prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are determined. 

4.20 Financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument and de-recognized when the Company loses control of contractual rights 
that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in 
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and 
financial liabilities is included in the profit and loss account for the year. 

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the 
consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured 
at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular recognition methods adopted are 
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item. 

4.21 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when 
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Company intends eitherto settle 
on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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4.22 Dividend and appropriations 
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which these 
are approved. 

4.23 Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved Accounting 
Standards that are not yet effective 
The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard 
or interpretation: 

Effective Date 
Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods 

beginning on or after) 

IFRS 2: Share-based Payments - Classification and Measurement of 
Share-based Payments Transactions (Amendments) 01 January 2018 

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in 
Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets 
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) Not yet finalized 

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments) 01 January 2018 

IAS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment) 01 January 2017 

IAS 12 Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for 
Unrealized losses (Amendments) 01 January 2017 

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with 
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - (Amendments) 01 January 2018 

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments) 01 January 2018 

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 01 January 2018 

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 01 January 2019 

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's 
financial statements in the period of initial application. 

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have 
also been issued by the IASB in December 2016. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting 
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018. The Company expects that such improvements to the standards 
will not have any impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application. 

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for 
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan: 

IASB effective date 
Standard (Annual periods 

beginning on or after) 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 01 January 2018 
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2016 
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01 January 2018 
IFRS 16 Leases 01 January 2019 
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 01 January 2021 
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5. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL 
2017 2016 2017 2016 

(Number of shares in thousand) (Rupees in thousand) 

2,543 2,543 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash 25,429 25,429 

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as 

41,750 41,750 fully paid bonus shares 417,497 417,497 

44,293 44,293 442,926 442,926 

6. LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

These represent security deposits received from dealers which, by virtue of agreement, are interest free. These are 

repayable on cancellation of dealership contract with dealers. 

2017 2016 

(Rupees in thousand) 

7. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - NET 

The liability for deferred tax comprises temporary differences relating to: 

Taxable temporary differences: 

Accelerated tax depreciation 56,345 43,182 

Change in fair value of short term investments 2,251 129 

58,596 43,311 

Deductible temporary differences: 

Accumulating compensated absences (28,486) (29,847) 

Provision for doubtful receivables (10,990) (11,356) 

(39,476) (41,203) 

Net deferred tax liability at the year end 19,120 2,108 

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities - net 

Deferred tax liability Deferred tax asset 

Change in fair 

Accelerated value of Accumulating Provision for 

tax short term compensated doubtful Net 

depreciation investments absences receivables liability 

(Rupees in thousanc 0 0 

Balance as at 01 July 2015 50,835 (28,900) (11,721) 10,214 

Tax income / (expense) during the 

year recognised in profit and loss (7,653) 129 (947) 365 (8,106) 

Balance as at 30 June 2016 43,182 129 (29,847) (11,356) 2,108 

Tax income / (expense) during the 

year recognised in profit and loss 13,163 2,122 1,361 366 17,012 

Balance as at 30 June 2017 56,345 2,251 (28,486) (10,990) 19,120 



85 

2017 2016 

Note (Rupees in thousand) 

8. EMPLOYEES' DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN 

8.1 Present value of defined benefit obligation (8.3) 1,105,684 1,137,355 

Fair value of plan assets (8.4) (1,145,645) (1,048,797) 

(Asset) / Liability recognized in the balance sheet (39,962) 88,558 

8.2 For the year 

Salaries, wages and amenities include the following 

in respect of employees' pension scheme: 

Current service cost 19,443 15,960 

Interest cost 80,332 82,529 

Expected return on plan assets (74,334) (97,086) 

25,441 1,403 

8.3 The movement in present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows: 

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 01 July 1,137,355 871,824 

Current service cost 19,443 15,960 

Interest cost 80,332 82,529 

Benefits due but not paid (34) 

Benefits paid (58,608) (50,750) 

Actuarial (gain) / loss (72,804) 217,792 

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 1,105,684 1,137,355 

8.4 The movement in fair value of plan assets is as follows: 

Fair value of plan assets as at 01 July 1,048,797 1,015,336 

Expected return on assets 74,334 97,086 

Contributions 11,618 11,587 

Benefits paid (58,608) (50,750) 

Benefits due but not paid (34) 

Return on plan assets 69,538 (24,462) 

Fair value of plan assets as at 30 June 1,145,645 1,048,797 

Actual return on plan assets 143,872 72,624 
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2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

8.5 Plan assets comprises of: 

Term deposit receipts: 

United Bank Limited 320,000 470,000 

National Bank of Pakistan - 60,000 

Bonds and mutual funds : 

MCB DCF income fund 185,106 162,776 

NAFA Capital proceeds 308,706 245,128 

Alflah GHP islamic stock fund 104,559 80,862 

Accrued interest and bank balance: 

Accrued interest - 25,997 

Bank balances 225,531 3,269 

Advance income tax 1,743 765 

1,145,645 1,048,797 

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation, the fair value of plan assets and the surplus or deficit of 
pension fund is as follows: 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

- (Rupees in thousand) 

Present value of defined 

benefit obligation 1,105,684 1,137,355 871,824 635,895 634,660 

Fair value of plan assets 1,145,645 1,048,797 1,015,336 929,695 874,065 

(Deficit) / Surplus 39,961 (88,558) 143,512 293,800 239,405 

Experience adjustment 

on obligation (72,804) 217,792 187,304 (39,678) (65,577) 

Experience adjustment 

on plan assets 69,538 (24,462) 945 8,064 (8,477) 

Sensitivity analysis 
Significant assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligations are discount rate and expected salary 
increase and disclosed in note 4.3.1.1. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible 
changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions 
constant. 

2017 2016 

(Rupees in thousand) 

Discount rate + 100 bps 1,024 1,033 

Discount rate -100 bps 1,239 1,261 

Salary increase + 100 bps 1,117 1,159 

Salary increase -100 bps 1,082 1,117 
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Note 
2017 2016 

(Rupees in thousand) 

9. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Trade creditors (9.1) 1,023,184 932,021 

Accrued liabilities 178,484 170,764 

Advances from customers (9.2) 9,386,045 3,646,077 

Unclaimed dividends 242,693 281,891 

Bills payable 163,559 22,955 

Security deposits (9.3) 4,765 4,700 

Trademark fee payable 64,738 125,948 

Workers' Welfare Fund 72,527 48,822 

Worker's Profit Participation Fund (9.4) 19,656 5,627 

Others (9.5) 99,518 71,994 

11,255,169 5,310,799 

9.1 These include balances due to related parties amou nting Rs. 101,215 thousand (2016: Rs.176,511 thousand). 

9.2 These represent advances from customers against sale of tractors and carry no mark-up. Further, as referred in 

note 26 to these financial statements, these also include an amount of Rs. 22,991 thousand (2016: Rs.1,959,865 
thousand) representing cheques in hand. 

9.3 These represent security deposits from contractors which, by virtue of agreement, are interest free, repayable on 
demand and are used in the Company's business. 

2017 2016 
Note (Rupees in thousand) 

9.4 Workers' Profit Participation Fund 

Opening balance 5,627 17,659 

Payments made during the year (320,507) (152,539) 

(314,880) (134,880) 

Allocation for the year (31) 334,536 140,507 

Closing balance 19,656 5,627 

9.5 These include deposits by employees under car and motorcycle scheme amounting to Rs. 27,050 thousand 
(2016: Rs. 25,221 thousand) and carry no markup. 

10. ACCRUED MARK-UP ON SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 

10.1 This represents accrued interest payable on short term borrowings availed from conventional banks during the 
year, while the balance of short term borrowings as on 30 June 2017 was Rs. Nil (2016: Rs. Nil). 

10.2 Short term borrowings have been availed from various banks against aggregate sanctioned limit of Rs. 4,000,000 
thousand (2016: Rs. 4,000,000 thousand). The rates of mark up range from KIBOR plus 0.1% to KIBOR plus 0.5% 
(2016: KIBOR plus 0.1 % to KIBOR plus 0.4%) per annum. 
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10.3 The Company has facilities for opening of letters of credit and guarantees aggregating to Rs. 3,726,685 
thousand (2016: Rs. 3,450,000 thousand) out of which Rs. 3,050,241 thousand (2016: Rs. 2,694,529 thousand) 
remained unutilized at the end of the year. 

10.4 These facilities are secured by pah passu hypothecation charge over current assets and book debts of the 
Company, lien over import documents and counter guarantees of the Company. 

11. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

11.1 Contingencies 

11.1.1 The Company has provided guarantee amounting to Rs. 5,000 thousand (2016: Rs. 5,000 thousand) to bank 
for repayment of loan by employees. An amount of Rs. 697 thousand (2016: Rs. 1,900 thousand) was utilized 
by employees as at 30 June 2017. 

11.1.2 Guarantees issued by the banks on behalf of the Company in the normal course of business amount to Rs. 
405,533 thousand (2016: Rs.484,561 thousand). 

11.1.3 Income tax returns for the years from 2003 to 2016 have been filed by the Company on due dates that 
are deemed to be assessed under the provisions of section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the 
Ordinance). 

Subsequently, tax authorities issued various assessments / amended orders for the year 2003, 2006 - 2013 
and 2015 whereby an additional income tax liability aggregating to Rs. 640,543 thousand (2016: Rs. 697,000 
thousand) was determined by the authorities. 

The difference between aggregate tax liability declared (in original / revised returns) and assessed tax liability 
(as per latest assessment / amended orders) relates to various matters that are pending at various appellate 
forums in respect of appeals filed by the Company and tax authorities relating to above mentioned years. 
Matters that are being contested mainly and allegedly include: 

- incorrect proration of expenses between various sources of income; and 

- disallowance of certain deductions / expenses claimed by the Company 

The management and its tax advisor are confident that all above matters will eventually be decided in favour 
of the Company; therefore no provision has been made in these financial statements accordingly. 

11.1.4 The Deputy Commission Inland Revenue has issued withholding tax assessment orders u/s 161/205 of the 
Ordinance for the year 2011 creating an initial demand of Rs. 176 million. The Company preferred an appeal 
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR(A)). The CIR(A) passed an order dates 21 January 
2015 remanding back the issue to Deputy Commissioner. Reassessment proceedings after being finalized on 
25 January 2016 reduced the demand to Rs. 51 million. The Company is in the process of filing appeal against 
reassessment proceedings with CIR(A). Furthermore, the tax authorities have filed an appeal before Appellate 
Tribunal (ATIR) against the order passes by CIR(A). 

The management and its tax advisor are confident that all above matters will eventually be decided in favour 
of the Company; therefore no provision has been created in these financial statements accordingly. 
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11.1.5 The Company is defending a demand notice issued by Vice Commissioner Punjab Employees' Social Security 
Institution amounting to Rs. 36,000 thousand. After further investigation, the demand notice was reduced 
to Rs.12 million. The Company is in the process of filing objection against the reduced demand notice. The 
management and legal advisor are confident that the outcome of the case would be decided in their favour 
hence no provision relating to aforesaid demand has been made in the financial statements. 

11.1.6 The Company is defending a suit for Rs. 19,579 thousand, filed in previous years by an ex-vendor on account 
of damages and inconvenience. Previously, the case was pending before the Civil Court, Lahore. However 
during the last year it was held by the Civil Court that the damages of Rs. 15,000 thousand has been awarded 
in favour of vendor for the aforementioned inconvenience. In addition to that the Company is also required 
to pay the amount of parts already supplied by the vendor which amounts to Rs 4,579 thousand along with 
mark up @ 7% per annum till its realization. However the Company has filed an appeal in the Honorable 
High Court against the aforesaid order of Civil Court. The management and the legal advisor are confident 
that outcome of the case would be in the Company's favour and no payment in this regard would be 
required, hence no provision there against has been made in these financial statements. The case is pending 
in the Honorable High Court, Lahore. 

11.1.7 The Company is defending a demand of Rs. 3,944 thousand from the Additional Commissioner Inland 
Revenue, Lahore, regarding non payment of sales tax on replacements of warranty parts supplied by the 
Company to its customers. The Company filed the appeal in 2010 against the aforementioned order passed, 
to Commissioner of Inland Revenue, Lahore. Which held that the Company is liable to pay the amount of 
sales tax on warranty parts which amounts to Rs 3,944 thousand along with default surcharge and penalty 
@ 5% under section 33 of sales tax act 1990. The Company has filed an appeal against the aforementioned 
order in the Honorable High Court Lahore. The management and the legal advisor are confident of favorable 
outcome of the case, hence no provision in this regard has been made in these financial statements. The case 
is pending in the Honorable High Court, Lahore. 

11.1.8 The Company is defending a demand of Rs. 31,869 thousand from the Customs Authorities (Authorities), 
alleging the Company for non payment of custom and other additional duties. The demand is on account 
of purchase of certain starter motors and alternators to be used for the manufacture of the tractors. The 
Company filed an appeal against the said demand and the order passed by Additional Collector, Lahore and 
Collector Appeals, Lahore before the Customs Appellate Tribunal, Lahore and the said tribunal passed order 
in favour of the Company. The Custom department has filed reference against the decision in Honorable 
Lahore High Court, judgment of which is pending. The Company made payment of Rs. 8,000 thousand under 
protest in response to demand notice served and obtained stay order from Honorable High Court, Lahore 
against further recovery action of Authorities. The management and legal advisor are confident that the 
outcome of the case would be decided in their favour hence no provision relating to aforesaid demand has 
been made in these financial statements 

11.2 Commitments 

Commitments in respect of outstanding letters of credit for import of raw material amounting to Rs. 1,375,790 
thousand (2016: Rs. 270,910 thousand) at the balance sheet date. 
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2017 2016 

Note (Rupees in thousand) 

12.1 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows: 

Cost of sales (28) 33,706 32,502 

Distribution and marketing expenses (29) 6,831 6,546 

Administrative expenses (30) 30,501 27,614 

71,038 66,662 

12.2 Disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Particulars Accumulated Book Sale 
Sold to Cost Mode of disposal 

of assets depreciation value proceeds 
 (Rupees in thousand)  

Vehicles Directors: 

Sikandar Mustafa Khan 8,500 6,250 2,250 2,250 As approved by the Board 

Sohail Bashir 6,500 4,784 1,716 1,716 As approved by the Board 

Employees: 

Farogh Iqbal 2,025 812 1,213 1,213 Company car scheme 

Farogh Iqbal 1,771 518 1,253 1,253 Company car scheme 

Akbar Hassan Dar 1,555 957 598 598 Company car scheme 

Akbar Sheikh 1,533 1,043 490 490 Company car scheme 

Muhammad Akbar 1,527 76 1,451 1,451 Company car scheme 

Irfan Aqueel 1,334 832 502 502 Company car scheme 

Muhammad Akram 1,301 959 342 342 Company car scheme 

Muhammad Akbar 1,300 958 342 342 Company car scheme 

Azhar Noor 1,300 958 342 342 Company car scheme 

Ghulam Dawood 985 546 439 439 Company car scheme 

Iqbal Ahmad 862 215 647 647 Company car scheme 

Majeed Ahmed 862 154 708 708 Company car scheme 

Zia ur Rehman 862 295 567 567 Company car scheme 

Ammar Shahid 862 391 471 471 Company car scheme 

Muhammad Usman 862 524 338 338 Company car scheme 

Waleed Ahmed 701 515 186 186 Company car scheme 

Amir Noor 700 514 186 186 Company car scheme 

Syed Shumail Afghan 697 512 185 185 Company car scheme 

Muhammad Afzal 697 512 185 185 Company car scheme 

Hafizullah 671 493 178 178 Company car scheme 

All Abbas Kamran 671 494 177 177 Company car scheme 

Aftab Khurshid 671 494 177 177 Company car scheme 

Imran Ayub 671 494 177 177 Company car scheme 

Irfan Bashir 671 494 177 177 Company motorcycle scheme 

Sikandar Khan Afridi 85 42 42 42 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Abbas 77 51 26 26 Company motorcycle scheme 

Waqas Khurram 77 51 26 26 Company motorcycle scheme 
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Accumulated Book Sale 
Vehicles Sold to Cost Mode of disposal 

depreciation value proceeds 
 (Rupees in thousand)  

Moazzam Moain 77 51 26 26 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Tayyab 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Ramzan Butt 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Abdul Ghafoor 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Aslam 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Mazhar Ali 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Shahzad Hussain 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Rao Nadeem Anjum 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Amir Nazir 75 50 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Zeeshan Habib 70 25 45 45 Company motorcycle scheme 

Usman Riaz Butt 69 32 37 37 Company motorcycle scheme 

Malik Shaukat Ali 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

M. Asmat Ullah 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Aslam 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Tariq Mahmood 67 43 24 24 Company motorcycle scheme 

Sohail Akhtar 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Ayub 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

M Siddique 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Imran 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Saleem 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Zafar Ali Sheikh 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Yasin Bhatti 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Farrukh Siddiuqi 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Javed Arshad 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Ammar Shahid 66 21 45 45 Company motorcycle scheme 

Umer Arshad 64 16 48 48 Company motorcycle scheme 

Outsiders: 

Khurram Ayub 864 846 18 355 Auction 

Ashraf Ali Khan 108 101 7 29 Auction 

Millat Industrial Products Limited 666 523 143 145 Auction 

Millat Industrial Products Limited 851 755 96 520 Auction 

Millat Industrial Products Limited 666 579 87 329 Auction 

Laptops Directors: 

Sikandar Mustafa Khan 123 94 29 29 As approved by the Board 

Employees: 

Farogh Iqbal 79 56 23 23 Company laptop scheme 

Muhammad Akram 79 56 23 23 Company laptop scheme 

Azhar Noor 79 56 23 23 Company laptop scheme 

Mansoor Abbasi 125 81 44 44 Company laptop scheme 

Ehsan ul Haq 79 56 23 23 Company laptop scheme 
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2017 2016 

Note (Rupees in thousand) 

13. CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 

Plant and machinery 1,282 116 

Advance for office building - 220,125 

Advance for vehicles 5,692 4,893 

6,974 225,134 

13.1 Movement in capital work in progress is as follows: 

Opening balance 225,133 209,661 

Additions during the year 78,480 102,677 

Capitalized / disposed off during the year (13.2) 296,639 87,205 

6,974 225,133 

13.2 Office floors at Tricon Corporate Centre Lahore 

has been capitalized during the year. 

14. INTANGIBLE ASSET 

Net carrying value basis 

Opening net book value 3,295 3,867 

Additions - 2,381 

Amortization charge (30) (2,398) (2,953) 

897 3,295 

Gross carrying value basis: 

Cost 44,981 42,600 

Additions - 2,381 

Accumulated amortization (44,084) (41,686) 

897 3,295 

Rate of amortization 33% 33% 

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

Land 258,444 258,444 

Provision for impairment (2,736) (2,736) 

255,708 255,708 

15.1 This represents residential plots stated at cost. As at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016, the fair values of these 
properties were Rs. 288,600 thousand and Rs. 277,500 thousand respectively. These valuation were performed by 
an independent valuer, who has appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the 
location and category of the properties being valued. The valuation is based on comparable market transactions 
that considers sales of similar properties that have been transacted in open market. 

15.2 The level of hierarchy for fair value disclosed fall in level 2 i.e. inputs other than quoted prices included within 
level 1 that are observable for real estate properties either directly or indirectly. 

15.3 Management of the Company believes that holding on to these properties for appreciation in their market value 
is the highest and best use of these investment properties. 
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16. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 

Investment in related parties 
In subsidiary undertaking 

Unquoted 
Millat Industrial Products Limited 
5,737,500 (2016: 5,737,500) fully paid 64.09 57,375 64.09 57,375 
ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 

Value of investment based on net assets as disclosed in the audited financial statements for the year ended 
30 June 2017 was Rs. 367,019 thousand (2016: Rs. 317,648 thousand). 

Tipeg Intertrade DMCC 
1,500 (2016: 1,500) fully paid 75.00 42,795 75.00 42,675 
ordinary shares of AED 1,000/- each 

Value of investment based on net assets as disclosed in the reviewed financial statements for the period 
ended 30 Dec 2016 was Rs. 104,650 thousand (2016: Rs. 75,688 thousand). 

Millat Equipment Limited 
11,699,993 (2016: 11,699,993) fully 45.00 117,000 45.00 117,000 
paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 

Value of investment based on net assets as disclosed in the audited financial statements for the year ended 
30 June 2017 was Rs. 556,960 thousand (2016: Rs. 486,662 thousand). 

Quoted 
Bolan Castings Limited 
5,306,979 (2016: 5,306,979) fully paid 46.26 76,610 46.26 76,610 
ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each as at 
30 June 2017 was Rs. 800,171 thousand 

(2016: Rs. 216,206 thousand). 

Arabian Sea Country Club Limited 
500,000 (2016: 500,000) fully paid 6.45 5,000 6.45 5,000 
ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 

Value of investment based on the net 
assets as disclosed in the audited financia 
statements for the year ended 
30 June 2010 was Rs. 12,020 thousand 

(2009: Rs. 10,575 thousand). 
Less: Impairment loss (5,000) (5,000) 

Other investment - available-for-sale 

Quoted 
Baluchistan Wheels Limited 
1,282,825 (2016: 1,282,825) fully paid 12,145 12,145 
ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 

Surplus on revaluation of investment 178,354 91,123 
Market value as at 30 June 190,499 103,268 

484,279 396,928 

Annual Report 2017 

2017 2016 
Equity % Investment Equity % Investment 

held at cost held at cost 
 (Rupees in thousand)  
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2017 2016 
17. LONG TERM LOANS - considered good Note (Rupees in thousand) 

Loan to employees: 
company loan (17.1) 4,560 1,644 
motor cycle loan (17.2) 1,239 1,339 

5,799 2,983 
Less: current portion included in current assets (21) (3,224) (1,500) 

2,575 1,483 

17.1 These represent interest free loans to employees secured against their gratuity and provident fund balances. 
These loans are repayable in monthly installments over a period of twoyears for executive and three years for 
workers. 

17.2 These represent interest free loans to employees for purchase of motorcycles secured by joint registration of 
motorcycles in the name of the Company and employees. These loans are repayable in monthly installments 
over a period of five years. 

17.3 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives: 
Balance 
as at 01 

July 2016 

Disbursement 
during 

the year 

Repayments 
during the 

year 

Balance as at 
30 June 2017 

(Rupees in thousand) 

Due from executives 146 4,050 775 3,421 

17.4 The above loans were provided for personal use of the executives. 

18. STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS 

Most of the items of stores, spare parts and loose tools are of inter-changeable nature and can be used as 
machine spares or consumed as stores. Accordingly, it is not practical to distinguish stores from spares until 
their actual usage. 

2017 2016 
19. STOCK IN TRADE Note (Rupees in thousand) 

Raw material (19.1) & (19.2) 3,129,457 1,818,476 
Work-in-process 16,141 10,432 
Finished goods : 

Manufacturing 363,676 606,228 
Trading 137,307 110,348 

500,983 716,576 
3,646,581 2,545,484 

19.1 This includes stock in transit amounting to Rs. 396,588 thousand (2016: Rs. 61,873 thousand). 

19.2 This includes raw materials and components held with third parties amounting to Rs. 110,017 thousand 
(2016: Rs. 59,663 thousand). 
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2017 2016 
20. TRADE DEBTS Note (Rupees in thousand) 

20.1 Considered good (20.2) 194,311 286,194 

20.2 These are unsecured but considered good by the management. 

20.3 Trade debts include balances due from the following related parties 
Millat Equipment Limited 1,821 1,246 
Bolan Castings Limited 348 1,455 
Tipeg Intertrade DMCC 5,192 25,217 

(20.3.1) 7,361 27,918 

20.3.1 Aging of due from related parties: 

2017 2016 

Neither past 
due not 
impaired 

Past due 1-6 
months but 

not impaired 

Neither past 
due not 

impaired 

Past due 1-6 
months but 

not impaired 
 Rupees in thousand  

Millat Equipment Limited 1,821 1,246 
Bolan Castings Limited 348 1,455 
Tipeg Intertrade DMCC 5,192 25,217 

7,361 27,918 

21. LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Current portion of long term loans to employees (17) 3,224 1,500 
Advances to employees - considered good (21.1) 8t (21.2) 1,479 2,052 
Advances to suppliers - considered good 45,515 46,890 

50,218 50,442 

Advances to suppliers - considered doubtful 2,485 2,485 
Less: provision for doubtful advances (2,485) (2,485) 

- - 
Letter of credit opening charges 4,270 21,629 

54,488 72,071 

21.1 These represent interest free advances to employees for the purpose of the expenses, tour and salary. 

21.2 The maximum aggregate amount at the end of any month during the year due from the Chief Executive 
Officer was Rs. 291 thousand (2016: Rs.173 thousand) and Directors Rs. 344 thousand (2016: Rs. 670 
thousand) in respect of travel advance. 

22. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS 

These includes interest free security deposits amounting to Rs. 17,861 thousands (2016: Rs.19,733 
thousands) made for tender placement. 

2017 2016 
23. BALANCES WITH STATUTORY AUTHORITIES Note (Rupees in thousand) 

Special excise duty payable (1,305) (776) 
Sales tax recoverable 2,562,040 1,219,066 
Less: provision for doubtful claims (34,147) (34,147) 

2,527,893 1,184,919 
2,526,588 1,184,143 
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2017 2016 
24. OTHER RECEIVABLES Note (Rupees in thousand) 

Claims receivable from foreign suppliers 91,149 103,319 
Interest accrued 6,097 1,437 

97,246 104,756 

25. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 

Mutual Funds designated at fair value through 
profit and loss: (25.1) 5,718,196 800,317 

Investment in Term Deposit Receipt (TDR) (25.2) 1,000,000 - 
6,718,196 800,317 

25.1 This represents investment in mutual funds as follows: 

30 June 2017 

Mutual Funds Number of 
units 

Fair value 
per unit 

Total 

(Number in 
thousand) 

(Rupees) (Rupees in 
thousand) 

ABL Cash Fund 59,981 10.11 606,325 
ABL Income Fund 38,644 10.04 387,812 
ABL Islamic Income Fund 39,669 10.17 403,278 
Meezaan Cash Fund 2,008 50.43 101,278 
UBL Liquidity Income Plus Fund 2,527 100.67 254,410 
Al-Falah GHP Money Market Fund 1,062 97.42 103,440 
Lackson Money Market Fund 4,866 100.15 487,322 
HBL Money Market Fund 4,579 101.77 465,997 
NAFA Government Securities Liquid Fund 54,151 10.16 550,251 
Atlas Money Market 1,024 501.86 514,069 
Atlas Income Fund 991 512.24 507,762 
MCB DCF Fund 4,700 106.43 500,215 
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund 8,317 100.52 836,037 

5,718,196 

30 June 2016 

Mutual Funds Number of 
units 

Fair value 
per unit 

Total 

(Number in 
thousand) 

(Rupees) (Rupees in 
thousand) 

MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund 3,987 100.34 400,033 
ABL Cash Fund 39,909 10.03 400,284 

800,317 

25.2 This carries mark-up at the rate of 6.05% per annum with maturity of one month. 



<98 Millat Tractors Limited Annual Report 2017 

2017 2016 
26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note (Rupees in thousand) 

In hand: 
cash 615 5,265 
cheques in hand (9.2) 22,991 2,025,882 

23,606 2,031,147 
At banks: 

current accounts 695,699 403,435 
deposit accounts (26.1) 1,341,698 127,670 

2,037,397 531,105 
2,061,003 2,562,252 

26.1 These carry mark-up at the rate ranging from 4.75% to 5.45% (2016: 4.5% to 5.5%) per annum. 

27. SALES - net 

Local: 

Tractors 30,971,176 17,576,346 
Implements 166,966 112,158 
Multi-application products 209,130 361,075 
Trading goods 410,362 334,293 

31,757,634 18,383,872 
Less: 
Trade discount (24,948) (22,677) 
Sales tax and special excise duty (1,872,412) (1,612,366) 

(1,897,360) (1,635,043) 
29,860,274 16,748,829 

Export: 

Tractors 502,912 351,172 
Trading goods 32,691 54,066 
Multi-application products - 569 

535,603 405,807 
30,395,877 17,154,636 

Less: commission (381,956) (240,804) 
30,013,921 16,913,832 
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2017 2016 
28. COST OF SALES Note (Rupees in thousand) 

Components consumed 21,397,748 12,856,084 
Salaries, wages and amenities (28.1) 340,641 316,430 
Contract sen/ices 278,562 216,595 
Fuel and power 83,032 73,474 
Communication 213 273 
Travelling and vehicle running 6,967 10,045 
Printing and stationery 3,199 3,312 
Insurance 13,682 13,876 
Repairs and maintenance 83,601 76,010 
Stores and spares consumed 91,720 84,541 
Depreciation (12.1) 33,706 32,502 
Other expenses 29,817 11,296 

22,362,888 13,694,438 

Add: opening work-in-process 10,432 18,222 
Less: closing work-in-process (16,141) (10,432) 
Increase in work-in-process (5,709) 7,790 

Cost of goods manufactured 22,357,179 13,702,228 

Add: opening finished goods 606,228 206,667 
Less: closing finished goods (363,676) (606,228) 
Increase in finished goods stock 242,552 (399,561) 
Cost of sales - manufactured 22,599,731 13,302,667 
Cost of sales - trading (28.2) 316,861 275,305 

22,916,592 13,577,972 

28.1 It includes the following staff retirement benefits: 

Defined benefit plan - pension 11,764 2,772 
Defined contribution plan - gratuity 5,517 5,818 
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 6,305 6,561 
Provision for compensated absences 1,170 2,342 

24,756 17,493 

28.2 Cost of sales - trading 

Opening stock 110,348 114,586 
Purchases 343,820 271,067 

454,168 385,653 
Closing stock (137,307) (110,348) 

316,861 275,305 
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29. DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES Note 
2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Salaries and amenities (29.1) 122,569 101,633 
Contract services 32,502 30,196 
Fuel and power 7,214 6,891 
Communication 433 431 
Travelling and vehicle running 15,223 13,723 
Printing and stationery 4,637 4,338 
Insurance 6,589 6,654 
Trademark fee 235,734 105,277 
Advertisement and sales promotion 20,734 20,661 
Depreciation (12.1) 6,831 6,546 
Meeting / convention 9,042 36 
After sales support 56,105 22,828 
Research cost - 736 
Other expenses 18,909 30,205 

536,522 350,155 

29.1 It includes the following staff retirement benefits: 
Defined benefit plan - pension 6,449 579 
Defined contribution plan - gratuity 2,967 3,004 
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 3,506 3,284 
Provision for compensated absences 420 843 

13,342 7,710 

30. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Salaries and amenities (30.1) 240,241 204,776 
Contract services 38,221 32,246 
Fuel and power 10,339 11,462 
Communication 4,632 4,410 
Travelling and vehicle running 26,841 25,086 
Insurance 5,522 5,709 
Repairs and maintenance 14,014 7,829 
Security 15,335 12,996 
Legal and professional (30.2) 6,606 14,989 
Depreciation (12.1) 30,501 27,614 
Amortization of intangible asset (14) 2,398 2,953 
Rent, rates and taxes 8,853 10,081 
Fee and subscription 2,971 3,546 
Entertainment 5,571 6,068 
Property, plant and equipment written off - 5,804 
Other expenses 59,505 49,758 

471,550 425,327 

30.1 It includes the following staff retirement benefits: 
Defined benefit plan - pension 7,340 (1,428) 
Defined contribution plan - gratuity 2,090 2,593 
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 5,886 5,472 
Provision for compensated absences 1,410 2,786 

16,726 9,423 
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2017 2016 
30.2 Legal and professional expenses include following in Note (Rupees in thousand) 

respect of auditors' sen/ices: 
Statutory audit 1,470 1,400 
Half year review 160 160 
Special reports and sundry certifications 230 230 
Out of pocket expenses 100 100 

1,960 1,890 

31. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (9.4) 334,536 140,507 
Workers' Welfare Fund 113,950 48,821 
Donations (31.1) 6,235 4,225 
Exchange loss 213 2,968 

454,934 196,521 

31.1 Donation includes the following in which a director or his spouse is interested: 

Name of director Name of Donee Interest in Donee 

Sikandar Mustafa Khan Lahore Hospital Spouse as 1,000 1,000 
Welfare Society Joint Secretary 

32. OTHER INCOME 

Income from financial assets 
Dividend income from Baluchistan Wheels Limited 6,414 3,847 
Return on commercial bank deposits 41,481 11,531 
Gain on sale of short term investments (32.1) 230,902 31,315 
Change in fair value of short term investments (32.2) 7,502 416 
Gain on translation of foreign investment 120 1,215 
Interest received on early payments and advances 30,307 49,339 

316,726 97,663 
Income from investment in subsidiary 

Dividend income from Millat Equipment Limited 210,600 93,600 
Dividend income from Millat Industrial Products Limited 45,900 28,687 
Dividend income from Bolan Castings Limited 5,307 10,614 
Dividend income from Tipeg Intertrade DMCC 12,844 12,812 

274,651 145,713 
Income from assets other than financial assets 

Rental income 5,101 5,343 
Scrap sales 5,735 16,758 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,026 - 
Sundry additions to income (32.3) 4,710 5,164 
Multiapp products service income 2,082 1,385 
Lab income 60 223 

18,714 28,873 
610,091 272,249 
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2017 2015 
32.1 Realized gain on sale of short term investment: Note (Rupees in thousand) 

ABL Cash Fund 33,258 7,503 
ABL Government Securities Fund 228 - 
ABL Income Fund 15,428 883 
ABL Islamic Income Fund 5,013 - 
Meezan Cash Fund 1,585 - 
Meezan Islamic Fund 20 - 
UBL Liquidity Income Plus Fund 11,814 - 
UBL Money Market Fund 88 - 
Askari Soverign Cash Fund - 2,528 
Al-Falah GHP Sovereign Fund 84 - 
Al-Falah GHP Money Market Fund 4,502 - 
Lackson Money Market Fund 15,557 - 
HBL Money Market Fund 19,559 3,957 
NAFA Government Securities Liquid Fund 32,547 5,993 
NAFA Money Market Fund 140 - 
Atlas Money Market Fund 17,781 1,992 
Atlas Sovereign Fund 97 - 
Atlas Income Fund 9,548 50 
MCB DCF Fund 25,391 581 
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund 35,942 5,828 

230,902 31,315 
32.2 Unrealized gain / (loss): 

ABL Cash Fund 755 383 
ABL Income Fund 499 - 
ABL Islamic Income Fund 821 - 
UBL Liquidity Income Plus Fund 358 - 
Lackson Money Market Fund 712 - 
HBL Money Market Fund 830 - 
NAFA Government Securities Liquid Fund 551 - 
Atlas Money Market 597 - 
Atlas Income Fund 555 - 
MCB DCF Fund 239 - 
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund 1,354 33 

7,502 415 

32.3 This includes income received as tender money in case of auctions and late delivery charges from suppliers. 

33. FINANCE COSTS 

Mark-up on short term borrowings - secured 210 10,725 
Bank charges and commission 1,971 4,575 

2,181 15,300 

34. TAXATION 

For the year: 
current 1,958,874 870,308 
deferred 17,012 (8,105) 

1,985,885 852,202 
Prior years: 

current (1,185) 8,305 
(34.1) 1,984,700 870,508 

34.1 Numerical reconciliation between average effective tax rate 2017 2015 
and the applicable tax rate. % % 

Applicable tax rate 31.00 32.00 
- Effect of change in prior year (0.02) 0.31 
- Income chargeable to tax at different rates 2.54 2.72 
- Effect on opening deferred taxes on reduction of rate (0.01) (0.01) 
- Others (1.72) (1.80) 

0.79 1.22 
Average effective tax rate 31.79 33.22 
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37. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

The related parties comprise subsidiary in which directors are interested, staff retirement funds & directors and key 
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related 
parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under respective notes to the financial statements. 
Amounts of assets sold during the year are mentioned in note 12.2. Amounts due from directors and key management 
personnel are shown under receivables and remuneration of directors and key management personnel is disclosed in 
note 35. Other significant transactions with related parties are as follows: 

2017 2015 
Relation with undertaking Nature of transaction (Rupees in thousand) 

Subsidiaries Sale of goods 409,964 109,955 

Purchase of components 5,543,101 3,250,500 

Dividend income 274,551 145,713 

Retirement benefit plan Contribution to staff retirement benefit plans 11,518 11,587 

Defined contribution plans Contribution to defined contribution plan 10,574 11,415 

Provident Fund Amount Contributed 15,597 15,317 

The Company intends to take the approval of the transactions with associated companies from the shareholders in 
General Meeting. 

38. EARNINGS PER SHARE- BASIC AND DILUTED 

38.1 Basic earnings per share 

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year by 
outstanding during the year as follows: 

weighted average number of shares 

2017 2015 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Profit for the year after tax 4,257,533 1,750,298 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year 

(Number of shares 
in thousands) 

44,293 44,293 

 Rupees  

Earnings per share 95.12 39.52 

38.2 Diluted earnings per share 

No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instruments carrying 
options which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised. 
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2017 2016 
39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Note (Rupees in thousand) 

Profit before taxation 6,242,233 2,620,806 
Adjustment for: 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 71,038 66,662 
Amortization of intangible assets 2,398 2,953 
Provision for accumulating compensated absences (1,330) 5,971 
Profit on bank deposits (41,481) (11,531) 
Dividend income (281,065) (149,560) 
Provision for pension obligation 25,441 (10,185) 
Provision for gratuity 10,573 12,108 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,026) - 
Property, plant and equipment written off - 5,804 
Gain on sale of short term investments (230,902) (31,315) 
Gain due to change in fair value of investments (7,621) (1,631) 
Finance costs 2,181 15,300 
Exchange loss 213 2,968 
Provision for workers' profit participation fund 334,536 140,507 
Provision for workers' welfare fund 113,950 48,821 
Provision for working capital changes (39.1) 4,964,397 2,166,467 

11,203,535 4,884,145 
39.1 Working capital changes 

Decrease / (increase) in current assets: 
Stores and spares (6,518) (4,772) 
Stock-in-trade (1,101,097) (115,502) 
Trade debts 91,883 (95,954) 
Loans and advances 17,583 (3,388) 
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 4,755 (1,618) 
Other receivables 12,170 (51,591) 

(981,224) (272,825) 
Increase in current liabilities: 

Trade and other payables 5,945,621 2,439,292 
4,964,397 2,166,467 

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

Financial instruments comprise loans and advances, trade deposits, trade debts, other receivables, short term 
investments, cash and bank balances, short term borrowings, long term deposits, interest/mark-up accrued on short 
term borrowings, and trade and other payables. 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
- Market risk 
- Credit risk 
- Liquidity risk 

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company's risk 
management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management 
policies. 

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's objectives, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital. 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to react to changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 
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40.1 Market risk 
(a) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and 
payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. 

Monetary items, including financial assets and financial liabilities, denominated in currency other than functional 
currency of the Company are periodically restated to Pak rupee equivalent and the associated gain or loss is taken to 
the profit and loss account. However, the company has limited exposure for currency risk and considered not material 
to the company. 
The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other 
variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax. 

Changes in Rate 
Effects 

on Profit 
Before Tax 

Effects 
on Profit 

Before Tax 
2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Receivables/ (Trade and other payables) - GBP + 1 50 67 
-1 (50) (67) 

Receivables/ (Trade and other payables) - USD + 1 697 581 
-1 (697) (581) 

Receivables/ (Trade and other payables) - EUR + 1 53 71 
-1 (53) (71) 

Reporting date rate: 
2017 

Rupee 
2016 

Rupee 
GBP 136.68 140.40 
USD 105.00 104.70 
EUR 120.14 116.31 

(b) Other price risk 
Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those 
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar 
financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk since it has a diverse 
portfolio of commodity suppliers. The long-term equity instrument held by the Company does not trade on a regular 
basis on the stock exchange and historically, it does not have a direct correlation with the equity index of the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange (PSX). Therefore, it is not possible to measure the impact of increase / decrease in the PSX Index on 
the Company's profit after taxation for the year and on equity (fair value reserve). 

Short-term investments pertain to investment in mutual funds. These investment are carefully managed and observed 
on the basis of duly approved policy by Board of Directors. The underlying composition of these mutual funds does not 
involve equity instruments therefore it does not have any co-relation with stock market. Hence, the Company is not 
exposed to other price risk in this avenue as well. 

(c) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. 

The Company has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets. The Company's interest rate risk arises from short 
term borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. 

At the balance sheet date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments was: 
2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Fixed rate instruments 
Financial assets 
Bank balances - deposit accounts 104,407 8,105 

Floating rate instruments 
Financial assets 
Bank balances - deposit accounts 1,237,291 119,565 
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss of the Company. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, 
of the Company's profit before tax. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of floating rate instruments 

Changes 
in interest 

rate 

Effects on profit 
before tax 

(Rupees in thousand) 
Bank balances - deposit accounts 2017 + 1% 

-1% 
12,373 

(12,373) 

2016 + 1% 1,196 
(1,196) -1% 

40.2 Credit risk 

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties failed 
completely to perform as contracted. Out of total financial assets of Rs. 9,580,174 thousand (2016: Rs. 4,155,482 
thousand ), the financial assets which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 9,088,002 thousand (2016: Rs. 3,748,254 
thousand). The Company is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. 

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks and mutual funds with reasonably high 
credit ratings. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as its exposure is 
spread over a large number of counter parties and subscribers in case of trade debts. 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk 
at the reporting date was as follows: 

2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Trade debts 194,311 286,194 
Trade deposits 17,861 19,733 
Other receivables 97,246 104,756 
Short term investments 6,718,196 800,317 
Bank balances 2,060,388 2,556,987 

9,088,002 3,767,987 

The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date is: 
Past due 1 - 3 Months 186,539 274,335 
Past due 4-6 Months 3,886 4,761 
Past due one year 3,886 7,098 

194,311 286,194 

Based on past experience the management believes that no impairment is necessary in respect of trade receivables past 
due, as some receivables have been recovered subsequent to the year end and for other receivables, there are 
reasonable grounds to believe that the amounts will be recovered in short course of time. 
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The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external 
credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rate. The table below shows the bank balances and 
investment held with some major counterparties at the balance sheet date: 

Rating 2017 2015 
Banks Short term Long term Agency (Rupees in thousand) 

Meezan Bank Limited A-1 + AA JCR-VIS 44,295 9,585 
Allied Bank Limited A1 + AA+ PACRA 85,841 25,705 
Zarai Taraqiati Bank Ltd A-1 + AAA JCR-VIS 454,370 104,347 
Bank Alfalah Limited A1 + AA+ PACRA 554,054 13,375 
Standard Chartered Bank A1 + AAA PACRA 13,431 20,545 
United Bank Limited A-1 + AAA JCR-VIS 302,780 202,385 
The Bank of Punjab A1 + AA PACRA 551 551 
MCB Bank Limited A1 + AAA PACRA 105,795 28,059 
Habib Bank Limited A-1 + AAA JCR-VIS 289,545 93,835 
Sindh Bank Limited A-1 + AA JCR-VIS 105,440 8,105 
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA 80,184 23,510 

2,037,397 531,105 

Rating Agency 2017 2015 
Mutual funds /Term Deposit Receipts (Rupees in thousand) 
MCB Dynamic Cash Fund A+ PACRA 500,215 - 
United Liquidity Plus Fund AA(f) JCR-VIS 254,410 - 
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund AA(f) PACRA 835,037 400,033 
Nafa Government Securities Liquid Fund AAA(f) PACRA 550,251 - 
ABL Income Fund A(f) JCR-VIS 387,812 - 
Meezan Cash Fund AA(f) JCR-VIS 101,278 - 
ABL Cash Fund AA(f) JCR-VIS 505,325 400,284 
Atlas Money Market Fund AA(f) PACRA 514,059 - 
HBL Money Market Fund AA(f) JCR-VIS 455,997 - 
ALFALAH GHP Money Market Fund AA+(f) PACRA 103,440 - 
LAKSON Money Market Fund AA(f) PACRA 487,322 - 
ATLAS Income Fund AA-(f) PACRA 507,752 - 
ABL Islamic Income Fund A(f) JCR-VIS 403,278 - 
TDR - Meezan Bank Limited AA JCR-VIS 1,000,000 - 

5,718,195 800,317 

40.3 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in m eeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. 

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate 
amount of committed credit facilities. At 30 June 2017, the Company had Rs. 4,000,000 thousand available borrowing 
limits from financial institutions and Rs.1,921,290 thousand cash and bank balances. 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2017: 

Carrying amount Less than 
one year 

One to 
five years 

More than 
five years 

Trade and other payables 
Long term deposits 

1,775,941 
11,515 

1,775,941 
11,515 

- 

1,788,455 1,775,941 11,515 - 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2015: 
Trade and other payables 3,524,092 3,524,092 - - 
Mark-up accrued on short term borrowings 310 310 - - 
Long term deposits 11,505 - 11,505 - 

3,535,907 3,524,402 11,505 - 
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41. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is derived from quoted market prices in active markets, if available. 

The carrying values of other financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in financial statements approximate 
to their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date. 

41.1 Fair value hierarchy 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments 
by valuation technique: 

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are 
observable either, directly or indirectly. 

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based 
on observable market data. 

As at 30 June 2017, the Company held the following financial instruments carried at fair value: 

Financial Assets measured at fair 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
value - available for sale 

Equity shares 190,499 190,499 - 

Investment in mutual funds 6,718,196 6,718,196 - 
6,908,695 6,908,695 - 

Date of valuation : 30 June 2017 
There were no liabilities measured at fair value as at 30 June 2017. 

As at 30 June 2016, the Company held the following financial instruments carried at fair value: 

Financial Assets measured at fair 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
value - available for sale 

Equity shares 103,268 103,268 - 
Investment in mutual funds 800,317 800,317 - 

903,585 903,585 - 

There were no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 30 June 2016. 

42. PROVIDENT FUND TRUST 

42.1 The Company has maintained an employee provident fund trust and investments out of provident fund have 
been made in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act 2017, and the rules formulated for this purpose. 
The salient information of the fund is as follows: 
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Note 
2017 2016 

(Rupees in thousand) 

Size of the fund 628,814 625,672 
Cost of investment made (42.2) 538,283 530,921 
Percentage of investment made 85.60% 84.86% 
Fair value of investment 1,158,239 906,182 

42.2 Breakup of investment - amount 2017 2016 

(Rupees in Percentage of 
thousand) total fund 

(Rupees in 
thousand) 

Percentage of 
total fund 

Investment in shares (listed securities) 5,258 1% 6,690 1% 
Term Deposit Receipts (TDR) 533,025 85% 524,231 84% 

538,283 86% 530,921 85% 

42.3 The above information is based on audited financial statements of the provident fund. 

2017 2016 
43. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION Units per annum 

Tractors 
Plant capacity (double shift) 30,000 30,000 
Actual production 33,916 21,108 

The Company has a normal capacity of producing 30,000 tractors per annum on double shift basis. However, the 
excess production over normal capacity is due to working on overtime schedules to meet the higher demand. 

44. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2017 2016 

Number of employees at the end of the year 406 414 

Average number of employees during the year 410 421 

45. TAX ON UNDISTRIBUTED RESERVES 

As per section 5A of Income Tax Ordinance 2001, whereby every public company shall pay tax at the rate of 10 
percent of such undistributed reserves which exceeds the amount of its paid up capital. However, this tax shall 
not apply in case of a public company which distribute cash dividend equal to at least either 40 percent of its 
after tax profits or 50 percent of its paid up capital, within the prescribed time after the end of the relevant tax 
year. 

Based on the fact, the Board of Directors of the Company has paid a interim dividend amounting to Rs 1,550 
million for the financial and tax year 2017 which exceeds the prescribed minimum dividend requirement as 
referred above. The Company believes that it would not be liable to pay tax on its undistributed reserves as of 
30 June 2017. 

46. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE 
These financial statements were authorized for issue by Board of Directors of the Company on 12 September 2017. 

47. CORRESPONDING FIGURES 
Corresponding figures have been reclassified or arranged, wherever necessary, for better and fair presentation. 
However, no significant reclassifications / rearrangement have been made during the year. 

48. GENERAL 

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise stated. 

Chief Financial Officer 

^0 

Chief Executive Officer Director 
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GROUP DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Year ended 30 June 2017 

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited Group Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

THE GROUP 

The Group comprises Millat Tractors Limited (MTL) (Holding Company) and its subsidiaries i.e., Millat Industrial 
Products Limited (MIPL), TIPEGINTERTRADE DMCC, Dubai, U.A.E., Bolan Castings Limited (BCL) and Millat Equipment 
Limited (MEL). 

MILLAT INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED 

a. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Directors of the Company shall retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and six 
Directors shall be elected in their place. The retiring Directors are: M/s. Sikandar Mustafa Khan, Latif Khalid 
Hashmi, Sohail Bashir Rana, Laeeq Uddin Ansari Mian Muhammad Saleem and Ahsan Imran Shaikh. 

b. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY'S BUSINESS 

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of vehicular, industrial and domestic batteries 

under the brand name of "Millat Batteries". During the yearthe Company has increased its production capacity in 
addition to development and marketing of Deep Cycle batteries. MIPL earned an aftertax profit of Rs. 148.623 
million and registered sale of Rs. 1,161 million for the year under review. Earnings per share were Rs. 16.60. 

c. PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

The major risks/threats and uncertainties being faced by the Company are fluctuation in prices of local raw 

material, increased landed cost of imported raw material due to variations in foreign exchange rate, shrinking of 
market of batteries for UPS due to improved electricity supply and entry of new competitors in the market. No 

changes have occurred during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of the company. 

d. FUTURE PROSPECTS OF PROFIT 

The Company aims to meet sales target in the next financial year despite reduced gross margins due to increasing 
trend of material prices and promotional activities of competitors. 

e. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

Adequate internal financial controls are in place and are being meticulously observed by concerned personals 
and being monitored by internal audit department on regular basis. 

TIPEG INTERTRADE DMCC 

a. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Directors of the Company are: M/s. Sikandar Mustafa Khan, Latif Khalid Hashmi, Sohail Bashir Rana, Laeeq 

Uddin Ansari and Mian Muhammad Saleem. There has been no change in the composition of the Board during 
the year. 

b. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY'S BUSINESS 

TIPEG Intertrade DMCC, Dubai, U.A.E is a Limited Liability Company registered with Dubai Multi Commodities 
Centre Authority. Millat Tractors Limited has a holding of 75% in the equity of the Company. The principal activity 

of the Company is trading in machinery and heavy equipment and parts thereof. The principal place of business 
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of the Company is located at Jumeirah Lake Towers, Dubai, UAE. TIPEG earned a net profit of AED 1.030 million 
and registered sale of AED 16.543 million for the period under review. Earnings per share were AED 515.205.So 

far performance of the Company has been satisfactory and business will further expand after higher exports of 
tractors from Pakistan. 

c. PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

Currently no apparent risk or uncertainty is likely to affect the performance of the Company. No changes have 
occurred during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of the company 

d. FUTURE PROSPECTS OF PROFIT 

The Company aims to enhance its revenue by marketing products of MTL and other group companies in African 

and other international markets. 

e. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

Adequate internal financial controls are in place and are being observed. 

BOLAN CASTINGS LIMITED 

a. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Directors of the Company shall retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and seven 
Directors shall be elected in their place. The retiring Directors are: M/s. Sikandar Mustafa Khan, Latif Khalid 

Hashmi, Sohail Bashir Rana, Laeeq Uddin Ansari, Mian Muhammad Saleem, Syed Muhammad Irfan Aqueel, Syed 
Javaid Ashraf, Muhammad Imran Rafiq and Saifuddin. 

b. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY'S BUSINESS 

BCLisa public limited company listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. BCL manufactures intricate tractor components 
i.e., major tractor castings for MTL. MTL holds 46.26% shares of the total paid up capital of the Company. During 

the financial year the Company has produced 11,566 M.T of castings against 8,436 M.T of last year. The tonnage 
net sales were 11,694 M.T against 8,955 M.T of last year. The sales revenues amounted to Rs. 1,744.098 million 
against Rs. 1,333.476 million of last year. The gross profit was Rs. 246.628 million against Rs. 140.876 million of 

last year. The profit after tax was Rs. 97.776 million against Rs. 25.870 million of last year. The earning per share 
was Rs. 8.52. 

c. PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

BCL risk management framework, coupled with internal control policies have helped to maintain focus and 
mitigating principle risks. However, overall risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are limited as 

there is no significant exposure to market risk in respect of such instruments. 

d. FUTURE PROSPECTS OF PROFIT 

The automobile sector is also showing robust signs of progress. The growth witnessed during last year is expected 
to continue. Therefore, all signs are leading towards consistent improvements which form solid foundation for 
growth in the foundry market. The Company is concentrating on improving supply of castings in the most 
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economical manner and also focusing on improving quality of castings.BCL is expected to experience boost in its 
sales of castings and will ensure enhanced market share and better financial performance as its outcome. 

e. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

BCL maintains a sound system of internal controls, which is designed to identify, evaluate and manage risks that 

may impede the achievement of the Company's business objectives rather than to eliminate these risks and can, 
therefore, provide only reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Audit Committee is 
responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal controls. 

MILLAT EQUIPMENT LIMITED 

a. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Directors of the Company are: M/s. Sikandar Mustafa Khan, Latif Khalid Hashmi, Sohail Bashir Rana, Laeeq 

Uddin Ansari, Mian Muhammad Saleem, Syed Muhammad Irfan Aqueel. There has been no change in the 
composition of the Board during the year. 

b. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY'S BUSINESS 

MEL is a non listed public limited company and is engaged in manufacturing of gears, shafts and other related 

parts for MTL. The shareholding of MTL in the paid up capital of MEL is 45%.The Company's principal activities 
remained the same as per previous years i.e., producing a range of transmission shafts and gears for the various 
models of Massey Ferguson tractors in Pakistan. The financial performance of the Company during the year 

was exceptional as ever highest financial results in terms of sales, production & profitability were achieved. MEL 
earned an aftertax profit of Rs. 624.216 million and registered sale of Rs. 3,303.592 million for the year under 
review. Earnings per share were Rs. 24.01. 

c. PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

In an apparent view, other than being a single customer Company and risk associated with it there appears no 

odd that may have any material adverse effect on Company's business in a foreseeable future. No changes have 
occurred during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of the company 

d. FUTURE PROSPECTS OF PROFIT 

With the increasing GDP, particularly positive growth of industrial sector, improving law & order situation in the 
country and the ongoing mega infrastructural projects, the demand for tractors is expected to increase. This 

increase in tractor's demand will result in increased supply of components which will improve profitability of the 
Company. 

e. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

Adequate internal financial controls are already in place and Board's Audit Committee ensures complete and 
satisfactory implementation of the same. 
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Group Companies have occurred between 

the end of the financial year of the Companies and the date of this report except as disclosed in their respective 
annual reports. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSNIESS 

During the year there has been no major change in the nature of business of any group company. 

AUDITORS' OBSERVATIONS 

For the year no adverse remark, observation was given by the auditors' of any group company in their reports for the 
year/period ended June 30, 2017. 

FUTURE PROSPECTS 

There is no significant doubt about the group companies' ability to continue as going concerns and therefore future 

prospects are positive. 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 

The pattern of shareholding of MTL is annexed to the Directors' Report and the shareholding pattern of MIPL, TIPEG, 
BCL and MEL is enclosed. 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Earnings per share of the group for the year ended June 30, 2017 was Rs. 111.15 as against Rs. 46.00 of the preceding 
year. 

URDU LANGUAGE VERSION 

An Urdu Language version of this Director's Report is also being published in the Annual Report as per provisions of 

SECP's SRO 1041(I)/2015 dated October 21, 2015. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

Lahore: September 12, 2017 
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MILLAT GROUP OF COMPANIES 

CONSOUDATED PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 

as on June 30,2017 

Pattern of Shareholding of Millat Industrial Products Limited 
As on 30-06-2017 
No. of Shareholders Size of Holding Total Shares Held 

From To 
8 1 100 665 

21 101 500 5,709 
59 501 1,000 46,842 
49 1,001 1,500 59,266 
39 1,501 2,000 69,298 
20 2,001 3,000 48,024 
14 3,001 5,000 53,739 
54 5,001 40,000 849,200 
5 40,001 100,000 251,347 
4 100,001 400,000 1,287,500 
1 400,001 600,000 543,750 
1 600,001 6,000,000 5,737,500 

275 8,952,840 

Pattern of Shareholding ofTIPEG INTERTRADE DMCC 
As on 30-06-2017 

No. of Shareholders Size of Holding Total Shares Held 
From To 

5 1 100 500 
1 101 1,500 1,500 
6 2,000 

Pattern of Shareholding of Bolan Castings Limited 
As on 30-06-2017 

No. of Shareholders Size of Holding Total Shares Held 
From To 

148 1 100 4,004 
533 101 500 156,533 
133 501 1000 120,250 
243 1001 5000 556,806 
42 5001 10000 309,612 
12 10001 15000 146,831 
8 15001 20000 145,936 
7 20001 25000 156,763 
3 25001 30000 83,815 
1 30001 35000 32,270 
1 35001 40000 38,500 
1 40001 45000 44,794 
1 45001 50000 46,278 
1 55001 60000 58,500 
1 60001 65000 63,000 
1 140001 145000 144,359 
1 145001 150000 148,000 
1 160001 165000 163,000 
1 165001 170000 166,369 
1 215001 220000 218,500 
1 255001 260000 258,266 
1 290001 295000 293,388 
1 295001 300000 300,000 
1 320001 325000 321,500 
1 485001 490000 488,276 
1 595001 600000 600,000 
1 1095001 1100000 1,100,000 
1 5305001 5310000 5,306,979 

1148 11,472,529 

Pattern of Shareholding of Millat Equipment Limited 
As on 30-06-2017 
No. of Shareholders Size of Holding Total Shares Held 

From To 
47 1 1000 30,165 
33 1001 2000 56,672 
41 2001 3000 112,817 
58 3001 4000 202,500 
49 4001 5000 231,700 
83 5001 10000 637,984 
26 10001 15000 326,938 
22 15001 20000 397,737 
9 20001 25000 200,400 
16 25001 30000 459,800 
4 30001 35000 135,550 
10 35001 40000 381,479 
4 40001 45000 171,600 
6 45001 50000 293,400 
3 50001 55000 159,200 
4 55001 60000 234,450 
2 60001 65000 127,800 
2 65001 75000 143,859 
2 75001 100000 200,000 
2 100001 120000 239,200 
4 120001 150000 557,200 
2 150001 200000 361,950 
3 200001 300000 674,401 
2 300001 700000 1,000,251 
4 700001 1905000 6,962,954 
1 1905001 11700000 11,699,993 

439 26,000,000 
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MILLAT GROUP OF COMPANIES 

CONSOUDATED CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING 

as on June 30, 2017 

Categories of Shareholders 

1 - DIRECTOS, CEO'S, SPOUSE & MINOR CHILDREN 
Ml PL TIPEG BCL MEL 

Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan 543,750 6.07 100 5.00 166,369 1.45 1,625,001 6.25 
Mr. LatifKhalid Hashmi 362,500 4.05 100 5.00 32,270 0.28 1,625,001 6.25 
Mr.Sohail Bashir Rana 362,500 4.05 100 5.00 144,359 1.26 1,708,951 6.57 
Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari 362,500 4.05 100 5.00 3,120 0.03 2,004,001 7.71 
Mian Muhammad Saleem 200,000 2.23 100 5.00 2,993 0.03 600,001 2.31 
Mr. Ahsanlmran Shaikh 33,650 0.38 130,600 0.50 
Syed Muhammad Irfan Aqueel(CEO-MTL) 100,000 0.38 
Khawaja Ijaz Majeed(CEO-MIPL) 10,000 0.11 
Mr.Saifuddin 2,500 0.02 
SyedJavaid Ashraf 17,936 0.16 

Mrs. Qurat Ul Ain 'Srjojse of Director Mr L-itif Kh-ilidH-ishmi; 3,700.00 0.01 
1,874,900 20.94 500 25.00 369,547 3.22 7,797,255 29.99 

2- ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKING AND RELATED PARTIES 
a) MILLATTRACTORS LIMITED 5,737,500 64.09 1,500 75.00 5,306,979 46.26 11,699,993 45.00 

3- EXECUTIVES/WORKERS 13,350.00 0.15 94,562 0.82 49,650 0.19 

4- PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS 1,100,273 9.59 

5- NIT AND IDBP (ICR UNIT) 440 0.00 
6- BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, NON-BANKING 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
7-INSURANCE COMPANIES 321,500 2.80 

8-MODARABA 0.00 

9-MUTUAL FUNDS 488,276 4.26 

10- SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE VOTING INTEREST. 
11-GENERAL PUBLIC 

a-Local 2,915,507 25.41 
b-Foreign 28,000 0.24 

12-OTHERS 
Joint Stock Companies 163,256 1.42 
Trust 339,666 2.96 
Public 1,327,090 14.82 0.00 6,453,102 24.82 
Miscellaneous 344,523 3.00 

8,952,840 100.00 2,000 100.00 | 11,472,529 100.00 26,000,000 100.00 

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE VOTING INTEREST (SEPARATELY INCLUDED ABOVE). 

Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan 543,750 6.07 100 5 1,625,001 6.25 
Mr. LatifKhalid Hashmi 100 5 1,625,001 6.25 
Mr.Sohail Bashir Rana 100 5 1,708,951 6.57 
Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari 100 5 3,120 0.03 2,004,001 7.71 
Mian Muhammad Saleem 100 5 
MillatTractors Limited 5,737,500 64.09 1,500 75 5,306,979 46.26 11,699,993 45.00 
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AUDITORS' REPORT 

to the Members 

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising the consolidated balance sheet of Millat 

Tractors Limited (the holding company) and its subsidiary Companies (together with referred as Group) as at 30 

June 2017 and the related consolidated profit and loss account. Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, 

consolidated cash flow statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity together with notes forming part 

thereof for the year then ended. We have also expressed a separate opinion on the financial statements of the Millat 

Tractors Limited, while the financial statement of its subsidiaries, Millat Equipment Limited, Millat Industrial Products 

Limited, Bolan Castings Limited and Tipeg Intertrade DMCC were audited and reviewed by other firms of auditors 

respectively, whose reports have been furnished to us and our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included 

for such Companies, is based solely on the report of such other auditors. These consolidated financial statements 

are the responsibility of the Holding Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and accordingly included such tests 

of accounting records and such other auditing procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of Millat Tractors Limited and 

its subsidiary companies as at 30 June 2017 and the results of their operations for the year then ended. 

EY Ford Rhodes 
Chartered Accountants 

Name of audit engagement partner: 
Naseem Akbar 

Lahore: 
14 September 2017 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

as at June 30, 2017 

2017 2016 

Note (Rupees in thousand) 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Share capital and reserves 

Authorized share capital 

50,000,000 (2016: 50,000,000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 500,000 500,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 5 442,926 442,926 

General reserves 2,475,309 3,181,893 

Unappropriated profit 3,635,597 1,105,960 

Exchange translation reserve 1,223 1,029 

Fair value reserve 233,682 146,450 

6,788,737 4,878,258 

Non-controlling interests 1,222,266 1,118,359 

Total Equity 8,011,003 5,996,617 

Non-current liabilities 

Long term deposits 6 23,530 21,343 

Deferred taxation 7 92,247 21,660 

Employees' defined benefit plan 8 23,979 168,513 

139,756 211,516 

Current liabilities 

Accumulating compensated absences 112,386 121,202 

Trade and other payables 9 11,571,982 5,461,736 

Current portion of long term deposits 1,013 899 

Short term borrowings 10 125,501 274,159 

Accrued mark-up on short term borrowings 1,126 5,111 

11,812,008 5,863,107 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 11 

19,962,767 12,071,240 

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer 
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2017 2016 

Note (Rupees in thousand) 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Operating fixed assets 12 1,581,995 1,238,495 

Capital work in progress 13 145,508 270,631 

1,727,503 1,509,126 

Intangible asset 14 1,099 3,597 

Goodwill 18,572 18,572 

Investment property 15 255,708 255,708 

Long term investments 16 233,193 126,555 

Long term loans 17 3,429 2,264 

Long term deposits 18 7,412 7,411 

2,246,916 1,923,233 

Current assets 

Stores and spares 19 380,937 342,749 

Stock in trade 20 4,438,217 3,149,366 

Trade debts 21 285,300 433,764 

Loans and advances 22 136,376 135,257 

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 23 29,457 36,940 

Other receivables 24 97,434 105,305 

Balances with statutory authorities 25 2,550,041 1,193,953 

Tax refunds due from the Government 302,766 821,906 

Short term investments 26 7,281,640 1,194,315 

Cash and bank balances 27 2,213,683 2,734,452 

17,715,851 10,148,007 

19,962,767 12,071,240 

Director 
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 

for the year ended 30 June 2017 

Note 2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Sales - net 28 31,612,367 17,961,175 

Cost of sales 29 22,825,374 13,736,444 

Gross profit 8,786,993 4,224,731 

Distribution and marketing expenses 30 635,049 429,450 

Administrative expenses 31 651,551 568,371 

Other operating expenses 32 551,617 240,122 

1,838,217 1,237,943 

Operating profit 6,948,776 2,986,788 

Other income 33 400,940 160,135 

7,349,716 3,146,923 

Finance cost 34 16,001 52,666 

Profit before taxation 7,333,715 3,094,257 

Taxation 35 2,410,888 1,056,595 

Profit after taxation 4,922,827 2,037,662 

Attributable to: 

- Equity holders of the holding Company 4,456,258 1,839,710 

- Non-controlling interests 466,569 197,952 

4,922,827 2,037,662 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 39 111.14 46.00 

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

for the year ended 30 June 2017 
2017 2016 

(Rupees in thousand) 

Profit for the year 4,922,827 2,037,662 

Other comprehensive income: 

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss 

in subsequent periods: 

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 1,223 1,178 

Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of available for sale investments 87,232 32,739 

88,455 33,917 

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent period: 

Actuarial gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans 142,345 (275,693) 

Total other comprehensive gain / (loss), net of tax 230,800 (241,776) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 5,153,627 1,795,886 

Attributable to: 

- Equity holders of the holding Company 4,668,109 1,612,373 

- Non-controlling interest 485,518 183,513 

5,153,627 1,795,886 

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Chief Financial Officer 

^0 

Chief Executive Officer Director 
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

for the year ended 30 June 2017 

Note 2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash generated from operations 40 12,906,737 6,194,551 

Interest and mark-up paid (19,986) (59,912) 

Net (increase) / decrease in long term loans to employees (1,165) 428 

Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid (339,108) (171,909) 

Workers' Welfare Fund paid (103,048) (61,166) 

Taxes paid (3,177,249) (1,386,366) 

Retirement benefits paid - net (171,285) (143,218) 

Long term security deposits received 2,301 1,446 

(3,809,540) (1,820,697) 

Net cash generated from operating activities 9,097,197 4,373,854 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Capital expenditure incurred (403,837) (210,412) 

Purchase of intangible assets - (2,382) 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 31,623 31,623 

Investment made - net (5,856,423) (107,036) 

Profit on bank deposits received 47,339 17,185 

Dividend received 11,252 4,710 

Net cash used in investing activities (6,170,046) (266,312) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Short term borrowings (148,658) (318,758) 

Dividends paid to non controlling interests (420,441) (147,081) 

Dividends paid to equity holder of the holding company (2,879,015) (2,103,896) 

Net cash used in financing activities (3,448,114) (2,569,735) 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (520,963) 1,537,807 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,734,452 1,195,761 

Foreign exchange difference 194 884 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 27 2,213,683 2,734,452 

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

for the year ended 30 June 2017 

qwp Revenue reserves Exchange Fairua|.lp Non- 
capital General Unapprop- translation controlling Total P reserves riated profit reserve interests 
 (Rupees in thousand)  

Balance as on 01 July 2015 442,926 3,313,080 1,496,683 145 117,241 1,081,632 6,451,707 

Final dividend for the year ended 
30 June 2015 @ Rs. 27.5 per share (131,187) (1,086,858) - (1,218,045) 

Interim dividend for the year ended 
30 June 2016 @ Rs. 20/- per share (885,851) (885,851) 

Dividend payment to 
non controlling interests (147,081) (147,081) 

Net profit for the year - 1,839,710 - 197,952 2,037,662 

Other comprehensive income for 
the year-net of tax - (257,724) 884 29,209 (14,144) (241,775) 

Total Comprehensive Income 1,581,986 884 29,209 183,808 1,795,887 

Balance as on 30 June 2016 442,926 3,181,893 1,105,960 1,029 146,450 1,118,359 5,996,617 

Final dividend for the year ended 
30 June 2016 @ Rs. 30 per share (706,584) (622,192) - (1,328,776) 

Interim dividend for the year ended 
30 June 2017 @ Rs. 35 per share (1,550,239) - (1,550,239) 

Dividend payment to 
non controlling interests (381,611) (381,611) 

Net profit for the year - 4,456,258 - 466,569 4,922,827 

Other comprehensive income for 
the year-net of tax 245,810 194 87,232 18,949 352,185 

Total Comprehensive Income 4,702,068 194 87,232 485,518 5,275,012 

Balance as on 30 June 2017 442,926 2,475,309 3,635,597 1,223 233,682 1,222,266 8,011,003 

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

for the year ended 30 June 2017 

1. THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS 

Holding Company 
Millat Tractors Limited - (MTL) 

The Holding Company is a public limited Company incorporated in Pakistan in 1964 under the Companies 
Act 1913 (now the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984), and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 
The registered office of the Company is situated at Sheikhupura Road, District Sheikhupura. It is principally 
engaged in assembling and manufacturing of agricultural tractors, implements and multi-application 
products. 

Subsidiary Companies: 
Millat Industrial Products Limited (MIPL), an unlisted public company registered under the Companies 
Ordinance 1984, is a subsidiary of Millat Tractors Limited which holds 64.09% equity. MIPL is engaged in 
the business of manufacturing of industrial, domestical and vehicular batteries, cells and components. 

Tipeg Intertrade DMCC, Dubai, a limited liability company registered with Dubai Multi Commodities Centre 
Authority, is a subsidiary of Millat Tractors Limited which holds 75% equity. The principal place of business 
of the company is located at Jumeirah Lake Towers, Dubai-UAE. The company is formed for trading of 
machinery and heavy equipment and company has recently started its operations. 

Millat Equipment Limited (MEL), an unlisted public company registered under the repealed Companies 
Ordinance 1984, is a subsidiary of Millat Tractors Limited which holds 45% equity. MEL is engaged in 
the business of manufacturing of automotive, agricultural and industrial vehicles parts and components 
thereof. 

Bolan Castings Limited (BCL), a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed 
Companies Ordinance 1984, and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange, is a subsidiary of Millat Tractors 
Limited which holds 46.26% equity. BCL is engaged in the business of manufacturing of castings for tractors 
and automotive parts thereof. 

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
During the year, the Companies Act 2017 (the Act) has been promulgated, however, Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its circular no. 17 of 2017 dated July 20, 2017 communicated that the 
Commission has decided that the companies whose financial year closes on or before June 30, 2017 shall 
prepare their financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 
1984. Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and 
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
(ICAP) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued 
under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives 
of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail. After promulgation of Companies Act 2017, the 
additional expected to be included in the financial statement of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018. 
Currently, the Group is assessing the impact of the required on the Group's financial statement. 

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT 
3.1 Basis of preparation 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
for revaluation of certain financial instruments at fair value and recognition of certain employee retirement 
benefits at present value. 

3.2 Use of estimates and judgments 
The Group's significant accounting policies are stated in note 4. Not all of these significant policies require 
the management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The following is intended 
to provide an understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their complexity, 
judgment of estimation involved in their application and their impact on these consolidated financial 
statements. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, 
including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These 
judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may differfrom 
these estimates. The areas involving higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where assumptions 
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and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are as follows: 

3.2.1 Employees' retirement benefits and other obligations 
The Group uses the valuation performed by an independent actuary as the present value of its retirement 
benefit obligations. The valuation is based on assumptions as mentioned in note 4.4.1. 

3.2.2 Provision for taxation 
The Group takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities. 
Instances where the Group'sview differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment 
stage and where the Group considers that its views on items of material nature are in accordance with law, 
the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities. 

3.2.3 Useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment 
The Group reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any change in 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of property, plant and 
equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment. 

3.2.4 Provision for inventories 
The Group regularly reviews the inventories for impairment. Provision for obsolete and slow-moving 
inventories is based on management estimate. 

3.2.5 Provision for receivables 
The Group regularly reviews its receivables for impairment, if any. The provision in this regard is made, based 
on management's estimate, where the prospects of recovery are doubtful. 

3.2.6 Recording and impariment of Goodwill 
Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and 
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests) and any previous interest held over the net identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fairvalue of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate 
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired 
and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised 
at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fairvalue of net assets acquired 
over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss. 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, 
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, 
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that 
unit is disposed of the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount 
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances 
is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating 
unit retained. 

3.3 Functional and presentation currency 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Group's functional and 
presentation currency. 

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of these consolidated 
financial statements of the Group are consistent with previous year except as discussed in Note 4.1 and are 
as follows: 

4.1 New, amended standards and interpretations that become effective 
The Group has adopted the following accounting standard and the amendments and interpretation of IFRSs 
which became effective for the current year: 

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and 
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception 

(Amendment) 
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IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements-Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint Operation (Amendment) 

IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure Initiative (Amendment) 

IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 intangible assets 
Clarification of Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendment) 

IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment IAS 41 Agriculture - Agriculture: Bearer Plants (Amendment) 

IAS 27 - Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendment) 

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB 

IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in methods of disposal 
IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing contracts 
IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Applicability of the offsetting disclosures to condensed interim 

financial statements 
IAS 19 - Employee Benefits - Discount rate: regional market issue 
IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of information elsewhere in the interim financial report 

Except as mentioned above the adoption of the above amendments, improvements to accounting standards 
and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial statements. 

4.2 Principles of consolidation 
4.2.1 Subsidiaries 

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. The Company controls an investee when the Company is 
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect 
those returns through its power over the investee. 

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. 
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and 
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. 
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are 
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling 
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net 
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets 
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized directly in the profit and loss account. The assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiaries are consolidated on a line by line basis and the carrying 
amount of investments held by the holding company is eliminated against the subsidiaries' shareholders' 
equity in the consolidated financials statements. Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains on 
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated but considered 
an impairment indicator of the asset transferred. The accounting policies used in preparation of consolidated 
financial statements of the holding company are consistent with accounting policies of its subsidiaries. When 
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with that of the holding Company. 

All significant intra-group transactions and balances between Group enterprises and unrealised profits are 
eliminated on consolidation. 

4.2.2 Non-controlling interest 
The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with parties 
external to the Group. Disposals to non-controlling interests result in gains and losses for the Group that 
are recorded in the profit and loss account. Group elected to measures the non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree at the proportionate share of its interest in the acquree's identifiable net assets on fair value. 

4.3 Segment reporting 
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on its products and services 
and has three reportable segments, as follows: 

The tractor segment, which deals with assembling and manufacturing of agricultural tractors, implements 
and multi-application products. 

The equipment and parts segment which is engaged in the business of manufacturing of automotive, 
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agricultural and industrial vehicles parts and components thereof. 

The castings segment, which is engaged in the business of manufacturing of castings for tractors and 
automotive parts thereof. 

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments. 

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment 
is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and 
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's 
other components. An operating segment's operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive 
Officer (the CEO) to assess segment's performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. 
Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those 
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. 

4.4 Employees' retirement benefits and other obligations 
The main features of the schemes operated by the Group for its employees are as follows: 

4.4.1 Defined benefit plan 

4.4.1.1 Pension 
MTL operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme for all its eligible employees. Contributions under 
the scheme are made to this fund on the basis of actuarial recommendation at 17% (2015: 17%) of basic 
salary per annum. The latest actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2016. 

The amount recognized in balance sheet represents the present value of defined benefit obligation as 
reduced by fair value of plan assets. The future contribution rate of the plan includes allowances for deficit 
and surplus. Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following significant assumptions, is used for valuation 
of this scheme. 

2017 2016 

Expected rate of increase in salary level 
Expected rate of return 
Discount rate 
Average expected remaining working life of employees 

4.4.2 Defined contribution plans 

4.4.2.1 Gratuity 
MTL operates an approved defined contribution funded gratuity scheme for permanent employees who 
joined the Group before 01 July 2004. Underthe scheme, based on the graduated scale, the contributions are 
calculated with reference to last drawn salary of the employees and are paid over to the Employees Gratuity 
Fund Trust. 

4.4.2.2 Provident fund 
The Group operates an approved defined contribution provident funds for all permanent employees. Equal 
contributions are made by employees and the Group at the rate of 10 percent of basic salary per month and 
charged to profit and loss account. 

4.4.3 Accumulating compensated absences 
MTL provides for accumulating compensated absences, when the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement to future compensated absences and are charged to profit and loss account. 

4.5 Taxation 

4.5.1 Current 
Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or 
tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes 



< 132 Millat Tractors Limited Annual Report 2017 

adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for taxation made in previous years arising from 
assessments framed during the year for such years. 

4.5.2 Deferred 
Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences 
arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the year when the differences reverse 
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax 
is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to other 
comprehensive income in which case it is included in equity. 

4.6 Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment except for freehold and leasehold land are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Freehold and leasehold land is stated at cost less any 
accumulated impairment loss. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to profit 
and loss account during the period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation on all items of property, plant and equipment except for leasehold office building is charged to 
profit and loss account applying the diminishing balance method so as to write-off the depreciable amount 
of an asset over its useful life. Depreciation on leasehold office building is provided on a straight line basis 
so as to write off the depreciable amount of an asset over the life of the asset. Depreciation is being charged 
at the rates given in note 11. Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from 
the month in which an asset is available for use while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the 
asset is disposed off. 

The Group continually assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that property, 
plant and equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values 
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount and the 
resulting impairment loss is recognized in profit and loss account for the year. Any previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount 
of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount, and the increased amount cannot exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for 
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an assets' fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the assets' revised carrying amount over its 
estimated useful life. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit and 
loss account in the year the asset is derecognized. 

4.7 Capital work-in-progress 
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment loss. 

4.8 Intangible assets 
Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software are capitalized as intangible assets and stated at cost 
less accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss. Intangible assets are amortized using the 
straight line method over a period of three years. 
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Amortization on additions to intangible assets is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired or 
capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. 

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may 
be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying amounts exceed the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss 
is recognized in profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted 
in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life. 

4.9 Investment property 
Property not held for own use or for sale in the ordinary course of business is classified as investment property. 
The investment property of the Group comprises land and is valued using the cost method, at cost less any 
accumulated impairment loss. 

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that investment property 
may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets is reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying value exceeds the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment 
loss is recognized in the profit and loss account for the year. The recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

The gain or loss on disposal orretirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense. 

4.10 Investments and other financial assets 
Financial assets in the scope of IAS 39 : "Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement", are 
classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. Financial assets are initially measured 
at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets are 
subsequently measured at fair value or cost as the case may be. The Group determines the classification of 
its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation 
at each financial year end. 

4.10.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets classified as held-for-trading are included in the category 'Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss'. Financial assets are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose 
of selling in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated and 
are effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognized in profit 
and loss account. 

4.10.2 Held-to-maturity investments 
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held- 
to-maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity and are initially measured 
at cost. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification. Other 
long-term investments that are intended to be held-to-maturity, such as bonds, are subsequently measured 
at amortized cost. This cost is computed as the amount initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus 
or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the 
initially recognized amount and the maturity amount. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or 
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction 
costs and all other premiums and discounts. For investments carried at amortized cost, gains and losses are 
recognized in profit and loss account when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through 
the amortization process. 

4.10.3 Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
Gains and losses are recognized in profit and loss account when the loans and receivables are derecognized 
or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. 
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4.10.4 Available-for-sale financial assets 
The financial assets including investments in associated undertakings where the Group does not have 
significant influence that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time or may be sold in response 
to the need for liquidity are classified as available-for-sale. 

Investments classified as available-for-sale are initially measured at cost, being the fair value of consideration 
given. At subsequent reporting dates, these investments are remeasured at fair value (quoted market price), 
unless fair value cannot be reliably measured. The investments for which a quoted market price is not 
available, are measured at cost as it is not possible to apply any other valuation methodology. Unrealized 
gains and losses arising from the changes in the fair value are included in fair value reserves in the period in 
which they arise. 

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of the investments to assess whether 
there is any indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment 
losses are recognized as expense. In respect of 'available-for-sale' financial assets, cumulative impairment 
loss less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit and loss account, is 
removed from equity and recognized in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognized in the 
profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. 

All purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date which is the date that the Group 
commits to purchase or sell the investment. Cost of purchase includes transaction cost. 

4.11 Stores and spares 
Stores and spares are valued at lower of net realizable value or moving average cost, while items considered 
obsolete are carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising of invoice value and other 
incidental charges paid thereon. 

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving stores and spares is based on management estimate. 

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs 
necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. Provision for obsolete and slow-moving stores and 
spares is based on management estimate. 

4.12 Stock-in-trade 
Stock of raw materials, except for those in transit, work-in-process and finished goods are valued principally 
at the lower of moving average cost and net realizable value. 

Cost of raw materials and trading stock comprises the invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. 

Cost of work-in-process and finished goods include direct material, labour and appropriate portion of 
manufacturing overheads. 

Items in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value and other incidental charges paid thereon. 

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs 
necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. Provision for obsolete and slow-moving stock-in-trade 
is based on management estimate. 

4.13 Trade debts 
Trade debts are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate for doubtful debts balances based on 
review of outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written off when identified. 

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks 
on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term highly liquid instruments that are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values. 

4.15 Revenue recognition 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is 
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measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade 
discounts and volume rebates. 

Revenue from maintenance services is recognized on the basis of services performed to date as a percentage 
of total services to be performed. 

Dividend is recognized as income when the right to receive dividend is established, which is generally when 
shareholders approve the dividend. 

Profit on bank deposits is recognized using effective interest rate method. 

Investment income is recognized when right to receive the income is established. 

4.16 Research cost 
These costs are charged to profit and loss account when incurred. 

4.17 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the 
extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset up to the date of its 
commissioning. 

4.18 Trade and other payables 
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group. 

4.19 Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

4.20 Foreign currency transactions and translation 
All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at 
exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are 
recognized in the profit and loss account. All non-monetary items are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange 
rates prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are determined. 

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Pak Rupees at the rate 
of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their profit and loss account are translated at average rates 
prevailing during the year. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised 
in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive 
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit and loss account. 

4.21 Financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument and de-recognized when The Group loses control of contractual rights that 
comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged, cancelled orexpired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial 
liabilities is included in the profit and loss account for the year. 

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the 
consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured 
at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular recognition methods adopted are 
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item. 

4.22 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated financial 
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Group 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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4.23 Dividend and appropriations 
Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the 
dividends are approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting period but before the financial 
statements are authorized for issue, they are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

4.24 Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved Accounting 
Standards that are not yet effective 
The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard 
or interpretation: 

Standard or Interpretation 

IFRS 2: Share-based Payments - Classification and Measurement of Share-based 
Payments Transactions (Amendments) 

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in Associates 
and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) 

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments) 

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment) 

IAS 12 Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized losses 
(Amendments) 

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 
Insurance Contracts - (Amendments) 

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments) 

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 

Effective Date 
(Annual periods 

beginning on or after) 

01 January 2018 

Not yet finalized 

01 January 2018 

01 January 2017 

01 January 2017 

01 January 2018 

01 January 2018 

01 January 2018 

01 January 2019 

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Group's financial 
statements in the period of initial application. 

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have 
also been issued by the IASB in December 2016. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting 
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018. The Company expects that such improvements to the standards 
will not have any impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application. 

In addition to the above, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified 
by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan: 

Standard 

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 
IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts 

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts 
IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
IFRS 16-Leases 

IFRS 17-Insurance Contracts 

IASB effective date 
(Annual periods 

beginning on or after) 

01 January 2018 
01 January 2016 

01 January 2016 
01 January 2018 
01 January 2019 

01 January 2021 
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5. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL 
2017 2016 2017 2016 

(Number of shares in thousand) (Rupees in thousand) 

2,543 2,543 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash 25,429 25,429 

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as 

41,750 41,750 fully paid bonus shares 417,497 417,497 

44,293 44,293 442,926 442,926 

6. LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

These represent security deposits from dealers which, by virtue of agreement, are interest free. These are repayable 

on cancellation of dealership contract with dealers. 

2017 2016 

(Rupees in thousand) 

7. DEFERRED TAXATION 

The liability for deferred tax comprises temporary differences relating to: 

Taxable temporary differences: 

Accelerated tax depreciation 167,134 151,437 

Change in fair value of short term investments 2,251 129 

169,385 151,566 

Deductible temporary differences: 

Accumulating compensated absences (36,423) (37,242) 

Provision for doubtful receivables (12,046) (12,359) 

Provision for slow moving stores and spare parts (310) (310) 

Provision for slow moving stock in trade (103) (103) 

Provision for doubtful debts (1,049) (1,049) 

Provision for retirement benefit obligations (27,207) (33,865) 

Carried forward losses - (3,515) 

Minimum tax - (41,463) 

(77,138) (129,906) 

Net deferred tax liability at the year end 92,247 21,660 
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2017 2016 

Note (Rupees in thousand) 

8. EMPLOYEES' DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN 
Staff retirements benefit plan- Liability / (Asset) 

Parent 8.1 (39,961) 88,558 
Subisdiary 8.2 63,940 79,955 

23,979 168,513 

8.1 Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,105,684 1,137,355 
Fair value of plan assets (1,145,645) (1,048,797) 
Liability / (asset) recognized in the balance sheet (39,961) 88,558 
For the year 
Salaries, wages and amenities include the following in respect of 

employees' pension scheme: 
Current service cost 19,443 15,960 
Interest cost 80,332 82,529 
Expected return on plan assets (74,334) (97,086) 

25,441 1,403 
The movement in present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows: 
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 01 July 1,137,355 871,824 
Interest cost 80,332 82,529 
Current service cost 19,443 15,960 
Benefits due but not paid (34) - 
Benefits paid (58,608) (50,750) 
Actuarial loss (79,712) 217,792 
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 1,098,776 1,137,355 
The movement in fair value of plan assets is as follows: 
Fair value of plan assets as at 01 July 1,048,797 1,015,336 
Expected return on assets 74,334 97,086 
Contributions 11,618 11,587 
Benefits paid (58,608) (50,750) 
Benefits due but not paid (34) - 
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 69,538 (24,462) 
Fair value of plan assets as at 30 June 1,145,645 1,048,797 
Actual return on plan assets 143,872 72,624 
Plan assets comprises of: 
Term deposit receipts: 

UBL 320,000 470,000 
National Bank of Pakistan - 60,000 

Bonds and mutual funds : 
MCB DCF income fund 185,106 162,776 
NAFA Capital protected fund 308,706 245,128 
Alflah GHP islamic stock fund 104,559 80,862 

Accrued interest and bank balance: 
Accrued interest - 25,997 
Bank balances 225,531 3,269 
Advance income tax 1,743 765 

1,145,645 1,048,797 
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Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation, the fair value of plan assets and the surplus or deficit of pension fund 
is as follows: 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 
 (Rupees in thousand) 

As at 30 June 
Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,105,684 1,137,355 871,824 635,895 634,660 
Fair value of plan assets 1,145,645 1,048,797 1,015,336 929,695 874,065 
(Deficit) / Surplus 39,961 (88,558) 143,512 293,800 239,405 

Experience adjustment on obligation (79,712) 217,792 187,304 (39,678) (65,577) 

Experience adjustment on plan assets 69,538 (24,462) 945 8,064 (8,477) 

Sensitivity analysis 

Significant assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligations are discount rate and expected salary increase. 
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. 

2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Discount rate + 100 bps 1,024 1,033 
Discount rate - 100 bps 1,239 1,261 
Salary increase + 100 bps 1,117 1,159 
Salary increase - 100 bps 1,082 1,117 

Subsidiary staff retirement benefit plan 2017 2016 

Employees' defined benefit plan- Liability 63,940 79,955 
63,940 79,955 

2017 2016 

Funded Un-Funded Funded Un-Funded 

Pension Executives' 
Gratuity 

Non- 
Executives' 

Gratuity 
Pension Executives' 

Gratuity 

Non- 
Executives' 

Gratuity 
Balance sheet reconciliation 
Present value of defined benefit 

obligation at June 30 167,462 56,002 28,118 159,537 53,572 23,156 
Fair value of plan assets at June 30 114,368 73,274 - (112,476) (43,834) - 
Deficit / (surplus) 53,094 (17,272) 28,118 47,061 9,738 23,156 

Movement in the Present value of defined benefit obligation 
Balances as at July 1 159,537 53,571 23,156 118,151 55,105 22,254 
Benefits paid by the plan (5,756) (2,868) (1,596) (4,759) (10,054) (1,484) 
Current service costs 2,962 2,018 1,218 2,428 2,151 1,210 
Interest cost 11,358 3,771 1,621 11,288 4,871 2,065 
Remeasurement (1,798) (490) 3,720 31,406 1,499 (889) 
Employee Contributions 1,159 1,023 
Balance as at June 30 167,462 56,002 28,118 159,537 53,572 23,156 
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2017 2016 
Funded Un-Funded Funded Un-Funded 

Pension Executives' 
Gratuity 

Non- 
Executives' 

Gratuity 
Pension Executives' 

Gratuity 

Non- 
Executives' 

Gratuity 
Movement in the Fair value 

of plan assets 
Balance as at July 1 112,476 43,834 - (105,680) (61,432) - 
Contributions paid into the plan 2,606 1,028 - (2,307) (959) - 
Benefits paid by the plan (5,756) (2,868) - 4,759 10,054 - 
Interest income 8,082 3,111 - (10,022) (5,453) - 
Remeasurement (4,198) 28,169 - 1,797 13,956 - 
Employee Contributions 1,159 - - (1,023) - - 
Balance as at June 30 114,368 73,274 - (112,476) (43,834) - 

Expense recognised in profit and loss account 
Current service costs 2,962 2,018 1,218 2,428 2,151 1,210 
Net Interest (income) / cost 3,275 660 1,621 1,266 (582) 2,065 
(Income) / expense recognised 

in profit and loss account 6,238 2,677 2,839 3,694 1,569 3,275 

Remeasurement recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
Experience losses / (gains) (1,798) (490) 3,720 31,406 1,499 (889) 
Remeasurement of fair value 
of plan assets 4,198 (28,169) - 1,797 13,956 - 
Remeasurements 2,400 (28,659) 3,720 33,203 15,455 (889) 

Net recognised liability / (asset) 
Net recognised (asset) / liability 

as at July 1 47,061 9,737 23,156 12,470 (6,327) 22,254 
(Income) / expense recognised 

in profit and loss account 6,238 2,677 2,839 3,694 1,569 3,275 
Contribution made during the 

year to the Fund (2,606) (1,028) (1,596) (2,307) (959) (1,484) 
Remeasurements recognised in 

Other Comprehensive Income 2,400 (28,659) 3,720 33,203 15,455 (889) 
Recognised liability / (asset) 
as at June 30 53,093 (17,273) 28,119 47,060 9,738 23,156 

Plan assets comprises of following: 
Debt instruments 85,281 23,811 - 96,437 28,713 - 
Equity and mutual funds 19,018 44,266 - 13,462 11,953 - 
Cash at Bank 10,070 5,197 - 2,576 3,169 - 
Total as at June 30 114,369 73,274 - 112,475 43,835 - 

Actuarial assumptions 

Discount rate at June 30 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 7.25% 7.25% 7.25% 
Future salary increases 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 7.25% 7.25% 7.25% 
Future pension increases 0.00% - - 0.00% - - 
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Impact on defined benefit obligation 

Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions 

Change in 
assumption 

Increase in 
assumption 

decrease in 
assumption 

Discount rate at June 30 1.00% (19,604) 23,017 

Future salary increases 1.00% 13,907 (12,887) 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Pension fund (Rupees in thousand) 

Fair value of plan assets 114,368 (112,476) (1135,680) (90,083) (82,228) 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation (167,462) 159,537 118,151 75,021 73,485 

Deficit/(surplus) (53,094) 47,061 12,471 (15,062) (8,743) 

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (1,798) 31,406 35,055 (6,019) 1,335 

Experience adjustments on plan assets (4,198) 4,238 (1,764) (1,384) (8,380) 

Executives' gratuity fund 

Fair value of plan assets 73,274 (43,834) (61,432) (46,103) (50,858) 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation (56,002) 53,571 55,105 48,771 46,758 

Deficit/(Surplus) 17,272 9,737 (6,327) 2,668 (4,100) 

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (490) 1,499 2,618 4,617 (1,696) 

Experience adjustments on plan assets 28,169 (13,956) 13,883 (1,007) (1,653) 

Non-Executives' gratuity fund 

Present value of the defined benefit obligations (28,118) 23,156 22,254 19,177 18,834 

Experience adjustments on plan obligations 3,720 (889) 2,047 (1,485) (1,293) 

The weighted average duration of the plans are as follows: 

No. of years 

Pension fund 8.47 

Executives' gratuity fund 8.47 

Non-executives' gratuity 8.47 

Figures in this note are based on the latest actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30,2016. 
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2017 2016 
Note (Rupees in thousand) 

9. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Trade creditors 1,177,147 976,328 

Accrued liabilities 197,763 218,125 

Advances from customers (9.1) 9,409,029 3,664,400 

Unclaimed dividends 247,650 286,480 

Bills payable 163,559 22,955 

Security deposits (9.2) 8,901 6,210 

Trademark fee payable 64,738 125,948 

Income tax deducted at source 1,400 2,249 

Sales tax payable 3,390 

Workers' profit participation fund (9.3) 88,858 23,974 

Workers' welfare fund 99,700 61,571 

Others (9.4) 109,847 73,496 

11,571,982 5,461,736 

9.1 These represent advances from customers against sale of tractors and carry no mark-up. Further, as referred to in 
note 27 to these financial statements, these also include an amount of Rs. 22,991 thousand (2016: Rs. 1,949,066) 
representing cheques in hand. 

9.2 These represent security deposits from contractors which, by virtue of agreement, are interest free, 
demand and are used in the Group's business. 

repayable on 

9.3 Workers' profit participation fund 

Opening balance 23,974 60,709 

Allocation for the year (32) 403,992 171,909 

427,966 232,618 

Payments made during the year (339,108) (208,644) 

Closing balance 88,858 23,974 

9.4 These include deposits by employees under car and 
(2016: Rs. 25,221 thousand) and carry no mark-up. 

motorcycle scheme amounting to Rs. 27,050 thousand 

10. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 
Short term running finance- secured 

Under mark-up arrangement (10.1) 49,404 187,707 

Under musharika facility (10.2) 76,097 11,452 

Under Istisna Cum Wakala arrangement (10.3) - 75,000 

125,501 274,159 

10.1 This represents running finance facilities obtained from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 300 million (2016: 
Rs. 480 million). These carry mark-up rates ranging from 1 month KIBOR plus 0.5% to 0.6% (2016:1 month KIBOR 
plus 0.5% to 0.6%) per annum. The arrangements are secured by way of hypothecation over plant and machinery 
and current assets of the Company. 

10.2 This represents Musharika Finance Facility obtained from Meezan Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 100 million 
(2016: Rs. 100 million). The profit rate on this facility is 3 month KIBOR plus 0.4% (2016:1 year KIBOR plus 0.4%) 
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10.3 This represents Istisna Cum Wakala arrangement from Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited amounting to Rs. 
75 million (2016: Rs. 75 million). The profit rate on this facility is 6 months KIBOR plus 0.6% (2016: 6 months 
KIBOR plus 0.6%). 

10.4 Short term borrowings facilities are available from various banks against aggregate sanctioned limit of Rs. 
4,800,000 thousand (2016: Rs. 4,900,655 thousand). The rates of mark up range between KIBOR plus 0.1 % to 
KIBOR plus 0.5% (2016: KIBOR plus 0.1 % to KIBOR plus 0.6%) per annum. 

10.5 Out of authorized limit of Rs. 4,800,000 thousand (2016: Rs. 4,800,000 thousand), Rs. 500,000 thousand limit 
with Meezan Bank Limited based on Islamic mode of financing. 

10.6 The Group has facilities for opening of letters of credit and guarantees aggregating to Rs. 4,277,288 thousand 
(2016: Rs. 4,302,740 thousand) out of which Rs. 3,050,735 thousand (2016: Rs. 3,466,809 thousand) remained 
unutilized at the end of the year. 

10.7 The facilities mentioned from note 10.2 to 10.6 are secured by pah passu hypothecation charge over current 
assets and book debts of the Group, lien over import documents and counter guarantees of the Group. 

11. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 
11.1 Contingencies 
11.1.1 The Group has given guarantee amounting to Rs. 6,237 thousand to bankfor repayment of loan by employees. 

An amount of Rs. 697 thousand (2016: Rs. 5000 thousand) was utilized by employees as at 30 June 2017. 

11.1.2 Guarantees issued by the banks on behalf of the Group in the normal course of business amount to Rs. 
414,349 thousand (2016: Rs.494,262 thousand). 

Holding company 
11.1.3 Income tax returns for the years from 2003 to 2016 have been filed by the Company on due dates that are 

deemed to be assessed under the provisions of section 120 ofthe Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance). 

Subsequently, tax authorities issued various assessments / amended orders for the year 2003, 2006 - 2013 
and 2015 whereby an additional income tax liability aggregating to Rs. 697,000 thousand (2016: Rs. 697,000 
thousand) was determined by the authorities. 

The difference between aggregate tax liability declared (in original / revised returns) and assessed tax liability 
(as per latest assessment / amended orders) relates to various matters that are pending at various appellate 
forums in respect of appeals filed by the Company and tax authorities relating to above mentioned years. 
Matters that are being contested mainly and allegedly include: 

- incorrect proration of expenses between various sources of income; and 
- disallowance of certain deductions / expenses claimed by the Company 

The management and its tax advisor are confident that all above matters will eventually be decided in favour 
ofthe Company; therefore no provision has been made in these financial statements accordingly. 

11.1.4 The Deputy Commission Inland Revenue has issued withholding tax assessment orders u/s 161/205 ofthe 
Ordinance for the year 2011 creating an initial demand of Rs. 176 million. The Company preferred an appeal 
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR(A)). The CIR(A) passed an order dates 21 January 
2015 remanding back the issue to Deputy Commissioner. Reassessment proceedings after being finalized on 
25 January 2016 reduced the demand to Rs. 51 million. The Company is in the process of filing appeal against 
reassessment proceedings with CIR(A). Furthermore, the tax authorities have filed an appeal before Appellate 
Tribunal (ATIR) against the order passes by CIR(A). 

The management and its tax advisor are confident that all above matters will eventually be decided in favour 
ofthe Company; therefore no provision has been created in these financial statements accordingly. 

11.1.5 The Company is defending a demand notice issued by Vice Commissioner Punjab Employees' Social Security 
Institution amounting to Rs. 36,000 thousand. After further investigation, the demand notice was reduced 
to Rs.12 million. The Company is in the process of filing objection against the reduced demand notice. The 
management and legal advisor are confident that the outcome of the case would be decided in their favour 
hence no provision relating to aforesaid demand has been made in the financial statements. 

11.1.6 The Company is defending a suit for Rs. 19,579 thousand, filed in previous years by an ex-vendor on account 
of damages and inconvenience. Previously, the case was pending before the Civil Court, Lahore. However 
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during the last year it was held by the Civil Court that the damages of Rs. 15,000 thousand has been awarded 
in favour of vendor for the aforementioned inconvenience. In addition to that the Company is also required 
to pay the amount of parts already supplied by the vendor which amounts to Rs 4,579 thousand along with 
mark up @ 7% per annum till its realization. However the Company has filed an appeal in the Honorable High 
Court against the aforesaid order of Civil Court. The management and the legal advisor are confident that 
outcome of the case would be in the Company's favour and no payment in this regard would be required, 
hence no provision there against has been made in these financial statements. The case is pending in the 
Honorable High Court, Lahore. 

11.1.7 The Company is defending a demand of Rs. 3,944 thousand from the Additional Commissioner Inland 
Revenue, Lahore, regarding non payment of sales tax on replacements of warranty parts supplied by the 
Company to its customers. The Company filed the appeal in 2010 against the aforementioned order passed, 
to Commissioner of Inland Revenue, Lahore. Which held that the Company is liable to pay the amount of 
sales tax on warranty parts which amounts to Rs 3,944 thousand along with default surcharge and penalty 
@ 5% under section 33 of sales tax act 1990. The Company has filed an appeal against the aforementioned 
order in the Honorable High Court Lahore. The management and the legal advisor are confident of favorable 
outcome of the case, hence no provision in this regard has been made in these financial statements. The case 
is pending in the Honorable High Court, Lahore. 

11.1.8 The Company is defending a demand of Rs. 31,869 thousand from the Customs Authorities (Authorities), 
alleging the Company for non payment of custom and other additional duties. The demand is on account 
of purchase of certain starter motors and alternators to be used for the manufacture of the tractors. The 
Company filed an appeal against the said demand and the order passed by Additional Collector, Lahore and 
Collector Appeals, Lahore before the Customs Appellate Tribunal, Lahore and the said tribunal passed order 
in favour of the Company. The Custom department has filed reference against the decision in Honorable 
Lahore High Court, judgment of which is pending. The Company made payment of Rs. 8,000 thousand under 
protest in response to demand notice served and obtained stay order from Honorable High Court, Lahore 
against further recovery action of Authorities. The management and legal advisor are confident that the 
outcome of the case would be decided in their favour hence no provision relating to aforesaid demand has 
been made in these financial statements. 

Subsidaries 
11.1.9 In 2014, the Company received a reassessment order, from the Income Tax Department, in respect of return 

filed for the tax year 2008. The Department had revised the return filed by the Company and reduced the 
income tax refund claimed by the Company by Rs. 6.02 million. The said order was challenged before the 
Commissioner (Appeals) who declared the order in original as time barred and annulled it. Subsequently, 
the Income Tax Department filed appeal against the order before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue 
which has not been heard yet. The management of the Company, based on the views of its tax consultant, is 
confident that the final decision will be given in favour of the Company and therefore, no provision has been 
made in these financial statements for this amount. 

11.1.10 In a suit filed against the Company which is pending before the Senior Civil Judge at Hub Balochistan, a 
plaintiff claims that in the year 2004 the Company allegedly encroached upon the land measuring 5 acres - 2 
roads - 34 poles belonging to him that he purchased in year 2003. The plaintiff has also sought mesne profits 
from the Company for such alleged encroachment. The Company claims ownership to the disputed piece 
of land and disputes any encroachment what so ever. The written statement of the Company was filed, the 
issues were framed and the plaintiff had produced their witnesses. The Company had also produced their 
witnesses and now the matter is fixed for the evidence of representative of the Company. The management 
of the Company based on the views of its legal advisor is confident that decision will be given in favour of the 
Company and therefore, no provision has been made in these financial statements. 

11.1.11 Proceedings u/s 122(5A) for Tax Year 2008 were finalized creating demand of Rs. 1,479,586/-. Total Demand 
had subsequently been adjusted against available refunds of Tax Year 2012. Company filed Rectification 
application u/s 221 to rectify mistakes floating on the surface of order. After rectification, company shall have 
net outstanding demand of Rs. 229,586/-. Rectification order is being awaited. 

11.1.12 Company has filed Rectification application u/s 221 for Tax Year 2010 against appeal effect order dated 
21.1.2013 issued u/s 124/ 129. After rectified order, company shall have net refunds of Rs. 1,946,078/-. 
Rectification order is being awaited. Further, Withholding tax proceedings u/s 161 were also initiated for Tax 
Year 2010. Proceedings have been complied in totality. Show cause notice is being awaited. 

11.1.13 Withholding tax proceedings u/s 161/205 were finalized for tax year 2011 vide order dated 18.08.2014 
creating demand of Rs. 11,407,595/-. Out of total demand, department has adjusted the demand of Rs. 
3,340,806/- against refunds available from previous tax years. Consequently, company filed appeal and stay 
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application to CIR(A) against the outstanding demand of Rs. 8,066,789/-. Stay was granted by CIR(A) subject 
to payment of Rs. 2,000,000/-. In the appellant order, CIR(A) confirmed the demand of Rs. 13,023/- while 
remaining issues were remanded back with direction for fresh assessment. On this instance, the company is 
under appeal before ATIR and appeal has not been heard till date. 

11.1.14 Re-assessment proceedings u/s 124/129 read with 161/2015 were finalized for tax year 2011 vide order 
dated 30.06.2016 creating demand of Rs 5,926,565/-Company had filed appeal to CIR(A) which was finalized 
vide order dated 22.09.2016 granting relief of Rs. 5,903,542/-.After appeal effect, company shall have net 
tax payable of Rs. 13,024/-.Department is under appeal before ATIR and the appeal has not been fixed for 
hearing till date. 

11.1.15 Show Cause proceedings u/s 122(9) were initiated fortax year 2011 vide notice dated 01.02.2012. Proceedings 
have been complied in totality. Final order is being awaited. 

11.1.16 Withholding tax proceedings u/s 161 were initiated for tax year 2012 vide notice dated 28.09.15. Show Cause 
proceedings were initiated vide notice dated 27.01.16 and the same have been complied in totality. Final 
order is being awaited. 

11.1.17 Audit proceeding u/s 177(1) were initiated fortax year 2013 vide notice dated 13.06.2014. Company has filed 
written representation before Chief Commissioner Inland Revenue vide letter dated 26.09.2014 for dropping 
the selection of case. Final decision on representation has not been made till date. 

11.1.18 Demand of Rs.17,423,326/- was raised against the company vide order u/s 161/205 for tax year 2014. 
Department has recovered demand of Rs.16,639,659/- from the bank account of company. Company filed 
appeal to CIR(A) who granted relief on two issues with the of CIR(A) order, appeal effect has been filed with 
the department after which company shall have net Refund of Rs. 16,639,659/-. Appeal Effect order is being 
awaited. 

Further, Re-assessment proceedings were initiated u/s 161/124 for tax year 2014 vide notice dated 05.05.2017. 
Proceedings are in process hence, no tax liability can be anticipated at this stage. 

Penalty Proceedings u/s 182 were finalized fortax year 2014 imposing Penalty of Rs. 87,500/-. Company filed 
appeal to CIR(A) on 24.12.2014 who vide order dated 18.02.2016 has granted relief of Rs. 70,000/-. Company 
and department both are in appeal before ATIR. 

11.1.19 Penalty proceedings u/s 182 were finalised fortax year 2015 imposing penalty of Rs. 12,500/-. Company has 
filed appeal to CIR(A) on 17.03.2015 and the appeal has not been heard till date. 

Withholding tax proceedings u/s 161 were initiated for tax year 2015 on 07.12.2016. Proceedings have been 
complied in totality. Show cause notice is being awaited. 

11.1.20 Suit no. 3452/2013, State Vs Muhammad Iqbal Qureshi is pending before the Vth Judicial Magistrate, South 
Karachi; no specific amount mentioned. Bail Application No. 12/2014, Muhammad Iqbal Qureshi Vs State is 
pending before the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh at Karachi for hearing: no specific amount mentioned. Suit 
No. 735/2014, Muhammad Iqbal Qureshi Vs Millat Industrial Products Limited and others, is pending before 
IVth Senior Civil Judge, Karachi East: no specific amount mentioned. 

11.1.21 The Company received notice from the Directorate of Intelligence and Investigation - Federal Board of 
Revenue (FBR), Karachi on April 28, 2017. In the said notice it was alleged that the Company had purchased 
goods from a dummy / fake supplier who got registered with the Regional Tax Officers at Karachi and issued 
fake sales tax invoices to the Company and accordingly the Company has claimed illegal / inadmissible input 
tax adjustment amounting to Rs 2,439,468/-. As a result the name of the Company was included in the First 
Information Report (FIR) No. 678(931 )/I&I/IR/KHI(AB-521)/2016/3617 dated 28-04-2017 registered by the 
Additional Director, Intelligence and Investigation - FBR, Karachi. Total demand raised against the company 
is Rs. 2,439,468/- which the FBR allowed to deposit in two equal installments of which one installment of Rs. 
1,219,734/- was deposited by the company on June 8, 2017 (Ref. note: 9). 

11.2 Commitments 
11.2.1 Commitments in respect of outstanding letters of credit for import of raw material amounting to Rs.1,434,718 

thousand (2016: Rs. 403,826 thousand) at the balance sheet date. 

11.2.2 The aggregate commitments in respect of capital expenditure as at June 30, 2017 amount to Rs. 8.48 million. 
(June 30, 2016: Nil). 
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2017 2016 

Note (Rupees in thousand) 

12.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows: 

Cost of sales (29) 106,258 100,537 

Distribution and marketing expenses (30) 8,015 8,932 

Administrative expenses (31) 43,680 35,921 

157,953 145,390 

12.3 Disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Particulars 
of assets Sold to Cost Accumulated 

depreciation 
Book 
value proceeds Mode of disposal 

Vehicles Directors 

Sikandar Mustafa Khan 

Sohail Bashir 

 (Rupees in thousand) 

8,500 6,250 2,250 

6,500 4,784 1,716 

2,250 As approved by the Board 

1,716 As approved by the Board 

Employees 

Farogh Iqbal 2,025 812 1,213 1,213 Company car scheme 

Farogh Iqbal 1,771 518 1,253 1,253 Company car scheme 

Akbar Hassan Dar 1,555 957 598 598 Company car scheme 

Akbar Sheikh 1,533 1,043 490 490 Company car scheme 

Muhammad Akbar 1,527 76 1,451 1,451 Company car scheme 

Irfan Aqueel 1,334 832 502 502 Company car scheme 

Muhammad Akram 1,301 959 342 342 Company car scheme 

Muhammad Akbar 1,300 958 342 342 Company car scheme 

Azhar Noor 1,300 958 342 342 Company car scheme 

Mr Ghulam Dawood 985 546 439 439 Company car scheme 

Iqbal Ahmad 862 215 647 647 Company car scheme 

Majeed Ahmed 862 154 708 708 Company car scheme 

Zia ur Rehman 862 295 567 567 Company car scheme 

Ammar Shahid 862 391 471 471 Company car scheme 

Muhammad Usman 862 524 338 338 Company car scheme 

Waleed Ahmed 701 515 186 186 Company car scheme 

Amir Noor 700 514 186 186 Company car scheme 

Syed Shumail Afghan 697 512 185 185 Company car scheme 

Muhammad Afzal 697 512 185 185 Company car scheme 

Hafizullah 671 493 178 178 Company car scheme 

All Abbas Kamran 671 494 177 177 Company car scheme 

Aftab Khurshid 671 494 177 177 Company car scheme 
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Particulars r . r . Sold to of assets Cost Accumulated 
depreciation 

Book 
value ^a'e. Mode of disposal proceeds r 

Imran Ayub 671 494 177 177 Company car scheme 

Irfan Bashir 671 494 177 177 Company motorcycle scheme 

Sikandar Khan Afridi 85 42 42 42 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Abbas 77 51 26 26 Company motorcycle scheme 

Waqas Khurram 77 51 26 26 Company motorcycle scheme 

Moazzam Moain 77 51 26 26 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Tayyab 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Ramzan Butt 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Abdul Ghafoor 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Aslam 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Mazhar All 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Shahzad Hussain 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Rao Nadeem Anjum 76 51 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Amir Nazir 75 50 25 25 Company motorcycle scheme 

Zeeshan Habib 70 25 45 45 Company motorcycle scheme 

Usman Riaz Butt 69 32 37 37 Company motorcycle scheme 

Malik Shaukat All 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

M. Asmat Ullah 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Aslam 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Tariq Mahmood 67 43 24 24 Company motorcycle scheme 

Sohail Akhtar 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Ayub 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

M Siddique 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Imran 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Muhammad Saleem 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Zafar All Sheikh 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Yasin Bhatti 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Farrukh Siddiuqi 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Javed Arshad 67 45 22 22 Company motorcycle scheme 

Ammar Shahid 66 21 45 45 Company motorcycle scheme 

Umer Arshad 64 16 48 48 Company motorcycle scheme 

Khawaja Q. Mohiuddin 868 638 230 230 Company car scheme 

Mohammad Nasir 630 470 160 160 Company car scheme 

Siraj Ahmed 625 466 159 159 Company car scheme 
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Particu ars r- u 4. , . Sold to ( of assets _ost ^cumulated 
depreciation 

Book 
value ^a'e , Mode of disposal proceeds r 

/"Ri inooc irt ^rxUUccb III 11 ivJUbdl IUy 

Abid Javed 614 464 150 150 Company car scheme 

Sohail Ahmad Nisar 1,300 960 340 340 Company car scheme 

Shahzad Nadeem 845 623 222 222 Company motorcycle scheme 

Saeed Iqbal 714 527 187 187 Company motorcycle scheme 

Zagham All 714 527 187 187 Company motorcycle scheme 

Azeem 714 527 187 187 Company motorcycle scheme 

Asif Mehmood 714 527 187 187 Company motorcycle scheme 

Zunnuren Usman 714 527 187 187 Company motorcycle scheme 

Ijaz Majeed 2,054 1,542 512 543 Company car scheme 

Sajjad Hussain 64 13 51 51 Company motorcycle scheme 

Abdul Rahman Arif 901 662 239 239 Company car scheme 

Tanveer Ahmed Saleem 68 36 32 32 Company motorcycle scheme 

Outsiders: 

Haji Mohammad Sharif 735 679 56 625 Auction 

Muhammad Munir 707 653 54 962 Auction 

Khurram Ayub 864 846 18 355 Auction 

Ashraf All Khan 108 101 7 29 Auction 

Muhammad Latif 579 468 111 375 Auction 

Millat Industrial Products Limited 666 523 143 145 Auction 

Millat Industrial Products Limited 851 755 96 520 Auction 

Millat Industrial Products Limited 666 579 87 329 Auction 

Adamjee Insurance Company Limited 905 811 94 577 Insurance Claim 

Laptops Directors: 

Sikandar Mustafa Khan 122 93 29 29 As approved by the Board 

Employees 

Farogh Iqbal 79 56 23 23 Company laptop scheme 

Muhammad Akram 79 56 23 23 Company laptop scheme 

Azhar Noor 79 56 23 23 Company laptop scheme 

Mansoor Abbasi 125 81 44 44 Company laptop scheme 

Ehsan ul Haq 79 56 23 23 Company laptop scheme 

Sohail Ahmed Nisar 103 45 58 58 Company laptop scheme 



< 1 50 Millat Tractors Limited Annual Report 2017 

2017 2016 

Note (Rupees in thousand) 

13. CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 

Plant and machinery 132,549 3,788 

Advance for office building (13.1) 1,166 220,125 

Advance for vehicles 11,793 46,718 

145,508 270,631 

13.1 During the year, office floors at Tricon Corporate Centre has been capitalized. 

14. INTANGIBLE ASSET 

Net carrying value basis 

Opening net book value 3,597 4,520 

Additions - 2,381 

Amortization charge (29), (30), (31) (2,498) (3,304) 

1,099 3,597 

Gross carrying value basis 

Cost 47,381 45,000 

Additions - 2,381 

Accumulated amortization (46,282) (43,784) 

1,099 3,597 

Rate of amortization 33% 33% 

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

Land 258,444 258,444 

Provision for impairment (2,736) (2,736) 

255,708 255,708 

15.1 This represents residential plots stated at cost. As at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016, the fair values of the 

properties were Rs. 288,600 thousand and Rs. 277,500 thousand respectively. These valuation were performed by 

an independent valuer, who has appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the 

location and category of the properties being valued. The valuation is based on comparable market transactions 

that considers sales of similar properties that have been transacted in open market. 

15.2 The level of hierarchy for fair value disclosed falls in level 2 i.e. inputs other than quoted prices included within 

level 1 that are observable for real estate properties either directly or indirectly. 

15.3 Management of the Company believes that holding on to these properties for appreciation in their market value 

is the highest and best use of these investment properties. 
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2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

16. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 

Arabian Sea Country Club Limited 

500,000 (2016: 500,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,000 5,000 

Equity held 6.45% (2016: 6.45%) 

Value of investment based on the net assets shown in the audited accounts 

as at 30 June 2010 is Rs. 12,020 thousand (2009: Rs. 10,575 thousand). 

Less: Impairment loss (5,000) (5,000) 

- - 

Other investment - Available-for-sale 

Quoted 

Baluchistan Wheels Limited 

1,570,325 (2016:1,570,325) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 24,364 24,364 

Fair value gain 208,829 102,191 

Market value as at 30 June 233,193 126,555 

233,193 126,555 

17. LONG TERM LOANS - considered good 

Loan to employees: 

Company loan (17.1) 4,560 1,644 

Motor cycle loan (17.2) 2,741 2,738 

7,301 4,382 

Less: Current portion included in current assets (22) (3,872) (2,118) 

3,429 2,264 

17.1 This represents interest free loans to employees secured against their gratuity and provident fund balances. 

These loans are repayable in monthly instalments over a period of two years. 

17.2 This represents interest free loans to employees for purchase of motor cycles secured by joint registration of 

motor cycles in the name of the Group and employees. These loans are repayable in monthly instalments over a 

period of five years. 

17.3 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives: 

Balance Disburse- Repayments Balance 

as at 01 ment during during as at 30 

July 2016 the year the year June 2017 
 (Rupees in thousand)  

Due from Executives 146 4,050 775 3,421 
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18. LONG TERM DEPOSITS 
These represent security deposits given to Companies against provision of utilities and services and carry no 

mark-up. 

19. STORES AND SPARES 

Most of the items of stores and spares are of inter-changeable nature and can be used as machine spares or 
consumed as stores. Accordingly, it is not practical to distinguish stores from spares until their actual usage. 

2017 2016 
Note (Rupees in thousand) 

20. STOCK IN TRADE 

Raw material (20.1) 3,480,817 2,055,420 
Work-in-process 249,712 221,196 
Finished goods: 

Manufacturing 363,676 762,402 
Trading 344,012 110,348 

707,688 872,750 

(20.2) 4,438,217 3,149,366 

20.1 This includes stock in transit amounting to Rs. 418,988 thousand (2016: Rs. 132,193 thousand). 

20.2 Included in stocks are raw materials and components held with third parties amounting to Rs. 126,111 
thousand (2016: Rs. 80,871 thousand). 

21. TRADE DEBTS 2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Trade debts - Considered good 285,300 347,299 
Less: bad debts written off 23,240 

285,300 324,059 
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2017 2016 
Note (Rupees in thousand) 

22. LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Current portion of long term loans to employees (17) 3,872 2,118 

Advances to employees - Considered good (22.1) 4,213 4,801 

Advances to suppliers - Considered good 108,957 88,873 

117,042 95,792 

Advances to suppliers - Considered doubtful 2,485 2,485 

Less: Provision for doubtful advances (2,485) (2,485) 

- - 

Letter of credit opening charges 19,334 39,465 

136,376 135,257 

22.1 The maximum aggregate amount at the end of any month during the year due from the Chief Executive Officer 
was Rs. 291 thousand (2016: Rs.173 thousand) and Directors Rs. 344 thousand (2016: Rs. 670 thousand) in respect 
of travel advance. 

23. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS 

These includes interest free security deposits amounting to Rs.17,861 thousands (2016: Rs.19,733 thousands) 

made for tender placement. None of the deposits are sharia-compliant or based on Islamic mode of financing. 

2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Claims receivable from suppliers 94,645 106,815 

Profit / interest accrued 6,285 1,437 

Others - 549 

100,930 108,801 

Less: Provision for impairment (3,496) (3,496) 

97,434 105,305 

25. BALANCES WITH STATUTORY AUTHORITIES 

Special excise duty payable (1,305) (776) 

Sales tax recoverable 2,585,493 1,228,876 

Less: provision for doubtful claims (34,147) (34,147) 

2,551,346 1,194,729 

2,550,041 1,193,953 
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26. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS Note 
2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss (26.1) 5,718,196 800,317 
Held for trading investments 400,527 201,465 
Investment in Term Deposit Receipts (TDR) (26.2) & (26.3) 1,162,917 192,461 
Surplus on revaluation of investment (33) - 72 

7,281,640 1,194,315 

26.1 This represents investment in mutual funds as follows: 

30 June 2017 

Mutual Funds Number of units Fair value per 
unit 

Total 

(Number in 
thousand) 

(Rupees) (Rupees in 
thousand) 

ABL Cash Fund 59,981 10.11 606,325 
ABL Income Fund 38,644 10.04 387,812 
ABL Islamic Income Fund 39,669 10.17 403,278 
Meezaan Cash Fund 2,008 50.43 101,278 
UBL Liquidity Income Plus Fund 2,527 100.67 254,410 
Al-Falah GHP Money Market Fund 1,062 97.42 103,440 
Lackson Money Market Fund 4,866 100.15 487,322 
HBL Money Market Fund 4,579 101.77 465,997 
NAFA Government Securities Liquid Fund 54,151 10.16 550,251 
Atlas Money Market 1,024 501.86 514,069 
Atlas Income Fund 991 512.24 507,762 
MCB DCF Fund 4,700 106.43 500,215 
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund 8,317 100.52 836,037 

5,718,196 

30 June 2016 

Mutual Funds Number of units Fair value per 
unit 

Total 

(Number in 
thousand) 

(Rupees) (Rupees in 
thousand) 

MCB Cash Management optimizer Fund 3,987 100.34 400,033 
ABL Cash Fund 39,909 10.03 400,284 

800,317 

26.2 These carry mark-up at the rate of 3.75% to 5.65% (2016: 4% to 6%) and having tenures ranging from 7 days to 
60 days. The said TDRs may be encashed any time before maturity. 

26.3 

27. 

Out of these TDRs amounting to Rs. 2,917 thousands are under lien with respect to bank guarantee issued by a 
commercial bank in favour Sui Southern Gas Company limited. 

2017 2016 
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note (Rupees in thousand) 

In hand: 
Cash 1,139 6,656 
Cheque in hand 22,991 2,025,882 

At banks: 24,130 2,032,538 

Current accounts 714,294 421,258 
Deposit accounts (27.1) 1,475,259 280,656 

2,189,553 701,914 
2,213,683 2,734,452 

27.1 These carry mark-up ranging from 3.75% to 5.65% (2016: 3.75% to 6%) per annum. 
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2017 2016 
Note (Rupees in thousand) 

28. SALES - net 

Local 
Tractors 30,971,176 17,576,346 
Implements 729,867 425,551 
Multi-application products 209,130 361,075 
Trading goods 410,362 334,293 
Batteries 1,334,719 1,218,551 
Castings 433,265 343,188 

34,088,519 20,259,004 
Less: 
Discount (194,808) (152,598) 
Sales tax and special excise duty (2,957,883) (2,359,707) 

(3,152,691) (2,512,305) 
30,935,828 17,746,699 

Export 
Tractors 1,010,794 364,710 
Trading goods 32,691 54,066 
Implements - 569 
Batteries - 31,652 
Automotive parts 15,010 4,283 

1,058,495 455,280 
31,994,323 18,201,979 

Less: commission (381,956) (240,804) 
31,612,367 17,961,175 

29. COST OF SALES 

Components consumed 18,887,884 10,883,370 
Salaries, wages and amenities (29.1) 931,459 748,428 
Contract services 576,563 328,119 
Fuel and power 202,395 320,412 
Oil and lubricants 137,047 84,073 
Communication 528 562 
Travelling and vehicle running 42,918 43,875 
Printing and stationery 5,828 5,593 
Insurance 28,447 27,736 
Repairs and maintenance 164,786 145,396 
Stores and spares consumed 328,902 271,492 
Packing material consumed 7,310 4,058 
Depreciation (12.2) 106,258 100,537 
Amortization (14) 100 270 
Other expenses 924,925 43,805 

22,345,350 13,007,726 
Add: opening work-in-process 221,196 300,063 
Less: closing work-in-process (249,712) (221,196) 

(28,516) 78,867 
Cost of goods manufactured 22,316,834 13,086,593 

Add: Opening finished goods 762,402 444,953 
Less: Closing finished goods (570,723) (352,982) 

191,679 91,971 
22,508,513 13,178,564 

Cost of sales - trading (29.2) 316,861 557,880 
22,825,374 13,736,444 
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29.1 It includes the following staff retirement benefits: Note 
2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Defined benefit plan - pension 21,914 2,772 
Defined contribution plan - gratuity 8,647 5,818 
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 10,412 10,300 
Provision for compensated absences 1,170 4,358 

42,143 23,248 

29.2 Cost of sales - trading 
Opening stock 110,348 114,586 
Purchases 343,820 553,642 
Closing stock (137,307) (110,348) 

316,861 557,880 

30. DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES 

Salaries and amenities (30.1) 148,331 116,631 
Contract services 32,502 30,196 
Fuel and power 8,542 8,280 
Communication 636 610 
Travelling and vehicle running 21,460 18,157 
Carriage and freight 47,821 36,188 
Printing and stationery 5,202 8,742 
Insurance 10,231 8,423 
Trademark fee 235,734 105,277 
Advertisement and sales promotion 28,874 32,222 
Depreciation (12.2) 8,015 8,932 
Amortization (14) - 20 
Meeting / convention 9,042 36 
After sales support 56,105 22,828 
Research cost - 736 
Other expenses 22,554 32,172 

635,049 429,450 

30.1 It includes the following staff retirement benefits: 
Defined benefit plan - pension 6,909 579 
Defined contribution plan - gratuity 3,147 3,004 
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 3,712 3,423 
Provision for compensated absences 420 843 

14,188 7,849 

31. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Salaries and amenities (31.1) 359,824 297,245 
Contract services 40,363 33,827 
Fuel and power 14,608 17,848 
Communication 9,890 6,223 
Travelling and vehicle running 34,130 33,627 
Insurance 8,572 8,173 
Repairs and maintenance 16,378 8,734 
Security 18,612 15,538 
Legal and professional (31.2) 15,544 23,587 
Depreciation (12.2) 43,680 35,921 
Amortization of intangible asset (14) 2,398 3,014 
Rent, rates and taxes 9,768 11,423 
Fee and subscription 5,639 4,912 
Entertainment 7,507 7,805 
Bad debts - 19 
Property, plant and equipment written off - 5,804 
Other expenses 64,638 54,671 

651,551 568,371 
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31.1 It includes the following staff retirement benefits: Note 
2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Defined benefit plan - pension 8,490 (1,428) 
Defined contribution plan - gratuity 2,900 2,593 
Defined contribution plan - provident fund 7,757 6,527 
Provision for compensated absences 1,410 2,786 

20,557 10,478 

31.2 Legal and professional expenses include following in respect of auditors' services: 

Statutory audit 3,147 2,953 
Half year review 381 423 
Special reports and sundry certifications 616 739 
Out of pocket expenses 391 375 

4,535 4,490 

32. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (9.3) 403,992 171,909 
Workers' Welfare Fund 141,177 61,166 
Donations (32.1) 6,235 4,079 
Loss on exchange rate and price difference 213 2,968 

551,617 240,122 

32.1 None of the directors had interest in the donee institutions. 
Name of director Name of Donee Interest in Donee 1,000 1,000 
Sikandar Mustafa Khan Lahore Hospital Spouse as 

Welfare Society Joint Secretary 

33. OTHER INCOME 

Income from financial assets: 
Dividend income from Baluchistan Wheels Limited 11,252 4,710 
Return on bank deposits 47,339 17,185 
Accrued interest on Term Deposit Receipts (TDR) 17,317 - 
Gain on sale of short term investments (33.1) 230,902 40,403 
Change in fair value of short term investments (26) & (33.2) 8,029 488 
Gain on translation of foreign investment 120 1,215 
Interest charged on early payments and advances 30,307 49,339 

345,266 113,340 
Income from assets other than financial assets: 

Rental income 5,101 5,343 
Scrap sales 17,801 26,091 
Exchange gain 44 - 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,116 1,443 
Insurance claim 299 2,079 
Liabilities no longer required written back 2,532 2,270 
Lab income 60 223 
Multiapp products service income 2,469 1,385 
Others (33.3) 23,252 7,961 

55,674 46,795 
400,940 160,135 
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2017 2016 
33.1 Realized gain / (loss) on sale of short term investment: Note (Rupees in thousand) 

ABL Cash Fund 33,258 8,563 
ABL Government Securities 228 5,303 
ABL Income Fund 15,428 883 
ABL Islamic Income Fund 6,013 - 
Meezaan Cash Fund 1,685 - 
Meezaan Islamic Fund 20 - 
UBL Liquidity Income Plus Fund 11,814 - 
UBL Money Market Fund 88 - 
Al-Falah GHP Soverign Fund 84 - 
Al-Falah GHP Money Market Fund 4,502 - 
Lackson Money Market Fund 15,667 - 
HBL Money Market Fund 19,569 3,957 
NAFA Government Securities Liquid Fund 32,647 7,728 
NAFA Money Market Fund 140 - 
Atlas Money Market 17,781 1,992 
Askari Sovereign Cash fund - 2,528 
Atlas Sovereign Fund 97 - 
Atlas Income Fund 9,548 50 
MCB DCF Fund 26,391 580 
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund 35,942 8,819 

230,902 40,403 
33.2 Unrealized gain / (loss): 

ABL Government Securities Fund 527 72 
ABL Cash Fund 756 383 
ABL Income Fund 499 - 
ABL Islamic Income Fund 821 - 
UBL Liquidity Income Plus Fund 368 - 
Lackson Money Market Fund 712 - 
HBL Money Market Fund 830 - 
NAFA Government Securities Liquid Fund 661 - 
Atlas Money Market 697 - 
Atlas Income Fund 565 - 
MCB DCF Fund 239 - 
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund 1,354 33 

8,029 488 

33.3 This includes forfeiture of security deposit, lab delivery charges, tender money and late payment surcharge. 

34. FINANCE COST 

Mark-up on short term borrowings - secured 11,323 44,612 
Bank charges and commission 4,678 8,054 

16,001 52,666 

35. TAXATION 

For the year: 
Current 2,349,374 1,049,087 
Deferred 66,097 (11,256) 

2,415,471 1,037,831 
Prior years: 
Current (456) 18,926 
Deferred (4,127) (162) 

(4,583) 18,764 
2,410,888 1,056,595 

35.1 Numerical reconciliation between average effective tax 2017 2016 
rate and the applicable tax rate. % % 

Applicable tax rate 31.00 32.00 
- Effect of change in prior year (0.38) 1.07 
- Income exempt for tax purposes - (0.03) 
- Income chargeable to tax at lower rate 2.57 2.99 
- Effect on opening deferred taxes on reduction of rate (0.01) (0.02) 
- Others (0.35) (1.85) 

1.82 2.15 
32.82 34.15 
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38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

The related parties and associated undertakings comprise, associated companies, companies in which directors 
are interested, staff retirement funds, directors and key management personnel. The Group in the normal course 
of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are 
shown under receivables and payables. Amount of assets sold to directors during the year are shown in Note 
12.3. Amounts due from directors and key management personnel are shown under receivables and 
remuneration of directors and key management personnel is disclosed in Note 37. Other significant transactions 
with related parties are as follows: 

2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Retirement benefit plan Contribution to staff retirement benefit plan 37,313 30,902 
Defined contribution plan Contribution to defined contribution plan 14,694 11,415 
Provident Fund Amount Contributed 21,881 20,250 

The Company intends to take the approval of the transactions with associated companies from the shareholders 
in General Meeting. 

39. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 

39.1 Combined basic earnings per share 

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year by weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year as follows: 
Profit for the year after tax 4,922,827 2,037,662 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
(Number of shares) 

outstanding during the year 44,293 44,293 

Rupees 
Earnings per share 111.14 46.00 

39.2 Combined diluted earnings per share 

40. 

No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Group has not issued any instruments 
carrying options which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised. 

2017 2016 
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Note (Rupees in thousand) 

Profit before taxation 7,333,717 3,094,257 
Adjustment for: 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 157,953 145,390 
Amortization of intangible asset 2,498 3,304 
Provision for accumulating compensated absences 3,000 7,987 
Bad debts written off - 19 
Profit on bank deposits (47,339) (17,185) 
Dividend income (11,252) (4,710) 
Pension 37,195 135,386 
Provision for gratuity (22,262) 19,410 
Non-current assets written off - 5,804 
Exchange loss 213 2,968 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (4,116) (1,443) 
Gain on sale of short term investments (230,902) (40,403) 
Gain on change in fair value of investments (19,406) (1,703) 
Finance cost 16,001 52,666 
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 403,992 171,909 
Workers' Welfare Fund 141,177 61,166 
Working capital changes (40.1) 5,146,268 2,559,729 

12,906,737 6,194,551 
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2017 2016 
40.1 Working capital changes Note (Rupees in thousand) 

(Increase) / decrease in current assets 
Stores and spares (38,188) 6,476 
Stock in trade (1,288,851) 186,729 
Trade debts 148,251 (109,724) 
Loans and advances (1,119) 10,143 
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 7,483 11,889 
Other receivables 7,871 (40,321) 

(1,164,553) 65,192 
Increase in current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 6,310,821 2,494,537 

5,146,268 2,559,729 

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

Financial instruments comprise loans and advances, trade deposits, trade debts, other receivables, short term 
investments, cash and bank balances, short term borrowings, long term deposits, interest/mark-up accrued on 
short term borrowings, and trade and other payables. 
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

- Market risk 
- Credit risk 
- Liquidity risk 

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Group's risk 
management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk 

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's objectives, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of capital. 

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to react to changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. 

41.1 Market risk 

(a) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or 
receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. 

Monetary items, including financial assets and financial liabilities, denominated in currency other than functional 
currency of the Group are periodically restated to Pak rupee equivalent and the associated gain or loss is taken 
to the profit and loss account. However, the company has limited exposure for currency risk and considered not 
material to the company. 

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all 
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax. 

Changes 
in Rate 

Effects on 
Profit 

Before Tax 

Effects on 
Profit 

Before Tax 
2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Receivables/ (Trade and other payables) - GBP +1 290 127 
-1 (290) (127) 

Receivables/ (Trade and other payables) - USD +1 697 581 
-1 (697) (581) 

Receivables/ (Trade and other payables) - EUR +1 53 71 
-1 (53) (71) 
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Changes 
in Rate 

Effects on 
Profit 

Effects on 
Profit 

Before Tax Before Tax 

2017 2016 
Reporting date rate per: 
GBP 136.68 140.40 
USD 105.00 104.70 
EUR 120.14 116.31 

(b) Other price risk 

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether 
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors 
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to commodity price 
risk since it has a diverse portfolio of commodity suppliers. The long-term equity instrument held by the 
Company does not trade on a regular basis on the stock exchange and historically, it does not have a direct 
correlation with the equity index of the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). Therefore, it is not possible to measure 
the impact of increase / decrease in the PSX Index on the Company's profit after taxation for the year and on 
equity (fair value reserve). 

Short-term investments pertain to investment in mutual funds. These investment are carefully managed and 
observed on the basis of duly approved policy by Board of Directors. The underlying composition of these 
mutual funds does not involve equity instruments therefore it does not have any co-relation with stock market. 
Hence, the Company is not exposed to other price risk in this avenue as well. 

(c) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. 

The Group has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets. The Group's interest rate risk arises from short 
term borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. 

At the balance sheet date, the interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments was: 

2017 2016 
Fixed rate instruments (Rupees in thousand) 

Financial assets 
Bank balances - deposit accounts 135,729 57,421 

Floating rate instruments 
Financial assets 
Bank balances - deposit accounts 1,339,530 223,235 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss of the Group. 
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a change in interest rates, with all other variables held 
constant, of the Group's profit before tax. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of floating rate 
instruments outstanding at balance sheet dates were outstanding for the whole year. 

Changes Effects on 
in interest profit 

rate before tax 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Bank balances - deposit accounts + 1 12,763 
-1 (12,763) 

2016 
+ 1 1,731 
-1 (1,731) 

Short term borrowings 2017 + 1 1,180 
-1 (1,180) 

2016 + 1 2,700 
-1 (2,700) 

41.2 Credit risk 

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties failed 
completely to perform as contracted. Out of total financial assets of Rs. 10,130,176 thousand (2016: Rs. 4,610,985 
thousand), the financial assets which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 9,884,330 thousand (2016: Rs. 
4,468,591 thousand). The Group is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. 

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks and mutual funds with reasonably 
high credit ratings. The Group believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as its exposure 
is spread over a large number of counter parties and subscribers in case of trade debts. 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the reporting date was as follows: 

2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Trade debts 285,300 433,764 
Other receivables 97,434 '105,305   
Short term investments 7,281,640 1,194,315 
Bank balances 2,212,544 2,727,796 
Long term deposits 7,412 7,411 

9,884,330 4,468,591 

The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date is: 
Past due 1 - 3 Months 214,932   362,064   
Past due 4-6 Months 8,872 7,533 
Past due 7-12 Months 48,794 47,609 
Past due to above one year 17,743 16,558 

290,341 433,764 

Based on past experience the management believes that no impairment is necessary in respect of trade 
receivables past due, as some receivables have been recovered subsequent to the year end and for other 
receivables, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the amounts will be recovered in short course of time. 
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The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 
external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rate. The table below shows the 
bank balances and investment held with some major counterparties at the balance sheet date: 

Banks Rating 2017 2016 
Short Long Agency (Rupees in thousand) 

Meezan Bank Limited A-1 + AA JCR-VIS 46,165 9,896 
Allied Bank Limited A-1 + AA+ PACRA 86,841 30,790 
Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited A-1 + AAA JCR-VIS 458,905 104,347 
Bank Alfalah Limited A-1 + AA PACRA 554,064 14,050 
Standard Chartered Bank A-1 + AAA PACRA 13,431 20,546 
United Bank Limited A-1 + AAA JCR-VIS 313,380 226,036 
The Bank of Punjab A-1 + AA- PACRA 551 551 
MCB Bank Limited A-1 + AAA PACRA 178,026 28,154 
Habib Bank Limited A-1 + AAA JCR-VIS 293,103 94,996 
Sindh Bank A-1 + AA JCR-VIS 105,440 8,105 
National Bank of Pakistan A-1 + AAA JCR-VIS 80,184 23,510 
Emirates NBD P-2 A-3 Moody's 21,072 50,503 
MCB Bahrain P-3 Baa3 Moody's - 30,068 
Faysal Bank Limited A1 + AA PACRA 29,050 49,490 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1 + AA+ PACRA 2 179 
JS Bank Limited A1 + A+ PACRA 4 4 
Bank Al Habib Limited A1 + AA+ PACRA 4,606 8,889 
Dubai Islamic Bank A-1 A+ JCR-VIS - 43 
Askari Bank Limited A-1 + AA JCR-VIS 4,729 1,757 

2,189,553 701,914 

Mutual funds /Term Deposit Receipts Rating Agency 2017 2016 
(Rupees in thousand) 

NAFA Government Securities Liquid Fund AAAff) PACRA 650,251 - 
ABL Cash Fund AA(f) JCR-VIS 706,325 400,284 
HBL Money Market Fund AA(f) JCR-VIS 465,997 - 
MCB Dynamic Cash Fund A+ PACRA 500,215 - 
United Liquidity Plus Fund AA(f) JCR-VIS 254,410 - 
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund AA(f) PACRA 936,037 500,033 
ABL Income Fund A{f) JCR-VIS 387,812 - 
Meezan Cash Fund AA(f) JCR-VIS 101,278 - 
Atlas Money Market Fund AA{f) PACRA 514,069 - 
ALFALAH GHP Money Market Fund AA+{f) PACRA 103,440 - 
LAKSON Money Market Fund AA(f) PACRA 487,322 - 
ATLAS Income Fund AA-(f) PACRA 507,762 - 
ABL Islamic Income Fund A{f) JCR-VIS 403,278 - 
TDR - Meezan Bank Limited AA JCR-VIS 1,000,000 - 
UBL- Term Deposit Receipt AA-(f) PACRA 162,917 192,461 
ABL Government Securities Fund A{f) JCR-VIS 100,527 101,537 

7,281,640 1,194,315 

.3 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities. 

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an 
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. At 30 June 2017, the Group had Rs. 4,900,655 thousand available 
borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rs. 2,213,683 thousand cash and bank balances. 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2017: 

Carrying Less than One to More than 
amount one year five years five years 

Trade and other payables 1,974,395 1,974,395 - - 
Short term borrowings 125,501 125,501 - - 
Mark-up accrued on short term borrowings 1,126 1,126 - - 
Long term deposits 24,543 1,013 23,530 - 

2,125,565 2,102,035 23,530 - 
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42. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities 

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is derived from quoted market prices in active markets, if available. 

The carrying values of other financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in financial statements approximate 
their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date. 

42.1 Fair value hierarchy 

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 
valuation technique: 

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are 
observable either, directly or indirectly. 

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based 
on observable market data. 

As at 30 June 2017, the Group held the following financial instruments carried at fair value: 

2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

(Rupees in thousand) 
Assets measured at fair value - available for sale 

Equity shares - available for sale 
Investment in mutual funds 

233,193 233,193 
6,118,723 6,118,723 

Date of valuation : 30 June 2017 
There were no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 30 June 2017. 

As at 30 June 2016, the Group held the following financial instruments carried at fair value: 

2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

(Rupees in thousand) 

Assets measured at fair value - available for sale 

Equity shares - available for sale 
Investment in mutual funds 

126,555 126,555 
1,001,782 1,001,782 

Date of valuation : 30 June 2016 
There were no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 30 June 2016. 
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44. LISTING OF SUBISIDIARY COMPANIES 

Group 
Name of Subsidiary shareholding 

(%) 

NCI 
shareholding 
 ^  

Place of 
incorporation 

Financial year 
end 

Millat Equipment Limited (MEL) 45% 55.00% Pakistan June 30 

Millat Industrial Products Limited (MIPL) 64.09% 35.91% Pakistan June 30 

Bolan Castings Limited (BCL) 46.26% 53.74% Pakistan June 30 

TIPEG Intertrade DMCC (TIPEG) 75% 25.00% Dubai December 31 

TIPEG has year-end according to applicable law in the country of incorporation. 

44.1 Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has Non Controlling Interests (NCI). The 
amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter company eliminations : 

MEL MIPL BCL TIPEG 
(Rupees in thousand) 

Total Assets 1,590,929 667,992 895,116 196,507 
Total Liabilities 353,241 95,331 320,969 44,646 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) 624,216 148,623 97,776 69,334 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) allocated to NCI 343,319 53,371 52,545 17,334 
Accumulated NCI 680,729 202,717 299,056 37,971 
Cash and cash equivalents 43,585 169,895 (115,947) 92,562 
Cash generated from / (utilized) in 
operating activities 798,472 89,958 364,176 51,782 
investing activities (342,535) (65,587) (18,453) - 
financing activities (466,320) (71,623) (22,945) (17,118) 

45. PROVIDENT FUND TRUST 

45.1 The Group has maintained an employee provident fund trust and investments out of provident fund have been made in 
accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984, and the rules formulated for 
this purpose. The salient information of the fund is as follows: 

2017 2016 
Note (Rupees in thousand) 

Size of the fund 799,248 791,157 
Cost of investment made (45.2) 671,850 650,970 
Percentage of investment made 84% 82% 
Fair value of investment 1,302,547 1,037,356 

45.2 Breakup of investment - amount 
2017 2016 

(Rupees in Percentage 
thousand) of total fund 

(Rupees in Percentage 
thousand) of total fund 

Investment in shares (listed securities) 25,083 3.14% 26,355 3.33% 
Term Deposit Receipts (TDR) 540,893 67.68% 532,677 67.33% 
Special Saving Certificate (SSC) 88,643 11.09% 77,289 9.77% 
Government Securities 17,231 2.16% 14,649 1.85% 

671,850 84.06% 650,970 82.28% 

45.3 The above information is based on audited financial statements of the provident fund for the year ended 30 June 2017. 
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2017 2016 
46. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION Units per annum 

Tractors 
Plant capacity (double shift) 30,000 30,000 
Actual production 33,916 21,108 

The Company has a normal capacity of producing 30,000 tractors per annum on double shift basis. However, the excess 
production over normal capacity is due to working on overtime schedules to meet the higher demand. 

Batteries 
During the year, the actual production capacity attained was 201,535 batteries (standard 15 plates 211,208 batteries 
compared with (2016: 171,317 standard 15 plates 188,233 batteries)) against annual manufacturing capacity of 212,000 
batteries (2016: 172,000). 

Tractors components 
Normal Capacity and Production is not determinable due to interchangeable components having different cycle times of 
production on same machines. 

Castings Metric tons 
Installed capacity 13,200 13,200 
Actual production 11,566 8,437 
Capacity utilisation 87.62% 63.92% 

Production during the year was as per the market demand. 

47. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2017 2016 

Number of employees at the end of the year 759 762 

Average number of employees during the year 761 766 

48. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE 

These financial statements have been approved for issue by Board of Directors of the Group in their board meeting held 
on 12 September 2017. 

49. CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Corresponding figures have been reclassified or rearranged, wherever necessary, for better and fair presentation. 
However, no significant reclassifications / rearrangement have been made during the year. 

50. GENERAL 

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees. 

^0 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director 
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 

as on June 30, 2017 

Number of Shareholding Number of % of 
Share Holders From To Shares Held Capital 

1,222 1 100 52,017 0.12 

922 101 500 260,605 0.59 

411 501 1000 319,689 0.72 

685 1001 5000 1,602,536 3.62 

236 5001 10000 1,697,010 3.83 

96 10001 15000 1,191,331 2.69 

53 15001 20000 925,111 2.09 

39 20001 25000 873,202 1.97 

27 25001 30000 743,922 1.68 

18 30001 35000 594,605 1.34 

13 35001 40000 480,325 1.08 

10 40001 45000 422,163 0.95 

8 45001 50000 333,518 0.75 

5 50001 55000 259,603 0.59 

10 55001 60000 575,190 1.30 

5 60001 65000 306,981 0.69 

6 65001 70000 328,555 0.74 

2 70001 75000 141,140 0.32 

1 75001 80000 78,024 0.18 

6 80001 85000 500,946 1.13 

2 85001 90000 178,302 0.40 

6 95001 100000 590,056 1.33 

4 100001 105000 409,389 0.92 

1 105001 110000 107,698 0.24 

6 115001 120000 703,473 1.59 

1 120001 125000 123,463 0.28 

1 130001 135000 130,996 0.30 

1 135001 140000 136,733 0.31 

1 150001 155000 151,250 0.34 

1 155001 160000 157,950 0.36 

1 160001 165000 162,800 0.37 

1 165001 170000 169,594 0.38 

1 175001 180000 180,000 0.41 

1 180001 185000 181,960 0.41 

1 205001 210000 206,236 0.47 
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Number of 
Share Holders From 

Shareholding 
To 

Number of 
Shares Held 

% of 
Capital 

2 215001 220000 436,848 0.99 

1 220001 225000 220,350 0.50 

1 235001 240000 240,000 0.54 

250001 255000 251,220 0.57 

1 265001 270000 265,364 0.60 

1 270001 275000 274,600 0.62 

1 275001 280000 279,082 0.63 

1 280001 285000 283,158 0.64 

285001 290000 575,598 1.30 

1 310001 315000 312,700 0.71 

1 325001 330000 327,250 0.74 

1 335001 340000 339,785 0.77 

1 405001 410000 409,333 0.92 

495001 500000 997,929 2.25 

1 530001 535000 532,724 1.20 

1 575001 580000 575,859 1.30 

1 705001 710000 706,796 1.60 

1 745001 750000 747,703 1.69 

1 770001 775000 772,497 1.74 

1 975001 980000 978,813 2.21 

1080001 1085000 1,082,000 2.44 

1 1085001 1090000 1,087,818 2.46 

1 1310001 1315000 1,311,180 2.96 

1 1440001 1445000 1,441,220 3.25 

1 1550001 1555000 1,550,074 3.50 

1 1600001 1605000 1,600,025 3.61 

1 2045001 2050000 2,046,799 4.62 

1 2345001 2350000 2,349,994 5.31 

1 3435001 3440000 3,437,110 7.76 

1 3580001 3585000 3,582,342 8.09 

3,839 TOTAL 44,292,544 100.00 
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS 

as on June 30, 2017 

Number of 
Share Holders 

Shares 
Held 

Percentage 

1 DIRECTOS, CEO AND THEIR SPOUSE & MINOR CHILDREN 

Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan 1 3,582,342 8.09 

Syed Muhammad Irfan Aqueel 1 100,079 0.23 

Mr. Latif Khalid Hashmi 1 1,600,025 3.61 

Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana 1 2,349,994 5.31 

Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari 1 3,437,110 7.76 

Mian Muhammad Saleem 1 978,813 2.21 

Mr. Saad Iqbal 1 772,497 1.74 

Mrs. Cyma Khan (Spouse of Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan) 1 58,657 0.13 

Mrs. Ayesha Sohail (Spouse of Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana) 1 271,220 0.61 

Mrs. Shireen Shah Aqueel (Spouse of S.M. Irfan Aqueel) 1 16,500 0.04 

13,167,237 29.73 

2 ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKING AND RELATED PARTIES 

a) MTL Employees welfare Trust. 1 40,619 0.09 

b) MTL Provident Fund Trust. 1 409,333 0.92 

c) MTL Gratuity Fund Trust. 1 286,625 0.65 

736,577 1.66 

3 EXECUTIVES/ WORKERS 49 220,901 0.50 

4 PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS 

State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan. 1 2,046,799 4.62 

5 NIT AND IDBP (ICPUNIT) 

IDBP (ICP Unit) 2 82 0.00 

CDC- Trustee NIT-Equity Market Opportunity Fund 1 66,583 0.15 

CDC- Trustee NIT Islamic Equity Fund 1 13,600 0.03 

80,265 0.18 

6 BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTION, NON-BANKING 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 11 460,651 1.04 

7 INSURANCE COMPANIES 8 3,942,137 8.90 

8 MODARABA 3 5,870 0.0133 

9 MUTUAL FUNDS 

CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1 157,950 0.36 

CDC - TRUSTEE AL AMEEN ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 1 116,800 0.26 

CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION EQUITY FUND 1 96,100 0.22 

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1 13,500 0.03 

MCBFSL TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC DEDICATED STOCK FUND 1 60,000 0.14 

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL MULTI - ASSET FUND 1 9,850 0.02 

CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND 1 116,900 0.26 

CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1 12,500 0.03 

CDC - TRUSTEE UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND 1 48,650 0.11 

CDC - TRUSTEE APIF - EQUITY SUB FUND 1 4,000 0.01 
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Number of 
Share Holders 

Shares 
Held 

Percentage 

CDC - TRUSTEE ALMEEZAN MUTUAL FUND 1 60,750 0.14 

CDC-TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 1 5,243 0.01 

CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND 1 800 0.00 

CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1 28,900 0.07 

CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON ISLAMIC TACTICAL FUND 1 1,134 0.00 

CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON TACTICAL FUND 1 8,986 0.02 

CDC-TRUSTEE HBLPF EQUITY SUB FUND 1 4,600 0.01 

CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1 11,000 0.02 

CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB STOCK FUND 1 2,000 0.00 

CDC-TRUSTEE APF-EQUITY SUB FUND 1 2,500 0.01 

CDC-TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1 15,000 0.03 

CDC-TRUSTEE NAFA ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1 57,500 0.13 

CDC-TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC RET. SAV. FUND-EQUITY 1 15,000 0.03 

CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN SHARIAH STOCK FUND 1 116,200 0.26 

CDC-TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND 1 180,000 0.41 

CDC-TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1 1,500 0.00 

MCBFSL - TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1 57,500 0.13 

CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND 1 2,000 0.00 

CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1 274,600 0.62 

CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA MULTI ASSET FUND 1 31,650 0.07 

CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA STOCK FUND 1 312,700 0.71 

CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC STOCK FUND 1 8,000 0.02 

CDC-TRUSTEE HBL IPF EQUITY SUB FUND 1 4,600 0.01 

CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON EQUITY FUND 1 55,550 0.13 

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL - STOCK FUND 1 82,750 0.19 

CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS STOCK MARKET FUND 1 18,500 0.04 

M/S. GOLDEN ARROW SELECTED STOCK FUNDS LTD. 1 12 0.00 

1,995,225 4.50 

10 SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE VOTING INTEREST. 

11 GENERAL PUBLIC 

a. Local 3563 18,872,982 42.61 

b. Foreign 51 1,502,871 3.39 

12 OTHERS 

Joint Stock Companies 63 262,371 0.59 

Trust 27 900,952 2.03 

Others 9 97,706 0.22 

3,839 44,292,544 100 
* SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE VOTING INTEREST (SEPARATELY INCLUDED ABOVE). 

- Mr. Sikandar Mustafa Khan 1 3,582,342 8.09 

- Mr. Sohail Bashir Rana 1 2,349,994 5.31 

- Mr. Laeeq Uddin Ansari 1 3,437,110 7.76 
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-^>^95oyrj^^95flj^>y'-f-«^(>^350)yrj^^35.oat-iyiL^(i>yfc 

622,192 2,985,519 

(622,192) (706,584) ^SOOX'i^J^:^ 

v-v^v Jy 

4,399,876 - ^^2017^30 

(1,550,239) - ^350XijJ&S-.{j> 

2,489,637 2,278,935 

j>Tty<3 

-4.39.52 96.12(3y(/^jyJyLlii_>42017'y*30 

Vy-O'jk-J 

y/iy ^ ^ ^ jy J L- y-i/ L/ /^y ^ yiJfUiJU^20i ^yisoy^^J^yXyisi^ 

: y ^ J yci'i^y ^ if ' y - ^ i ^ J y 

' iX 'a'- jszyh 

5 (yyv)^^^iv>yy 

4 G(jiLr)^ij/yy 

5 

4 toy. 

5 

5 4uy 

3 
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I lyfrJJr'lj cJ'£~ l/'-'f- ^ ^ ^ if^Xl & 

-U1 

By\f ^\$)/j ^\$3JX, 

{J^j}Xy\V>ji^(i;r\?X[^>/j'4\$j}X.j'\>]jic^£-j^2iJ:'t>J'\^^tC~2012, V(e)^)' 

S>/j ^{jiiX iS[$&<£- I^LiyiiJl/LL d/^'-C jX'iSiX-fSijj /SJ) ' iyjf y j U U iy Oj I (j'J Oy (/' I 
y 

»> u (3*^^'(i^ u^'(/^ 

y^O j [f'c~^i ij>(>i<b (Jj U>' c^1—*1; ^-- I-* /'U~^L vj i (Jlyo (Xtsif 

7 b/ii1 ^ wCfey^y i_ Jc ^ i 7^1 ^7 6^ U; if 

7>'>f'/Ai' ^i/'^ JiKLs' ^ ItVj (^11^7 it 7j I j ^ 17 77^«/^UftC. J bor^i/t/jy j ' 

71 tC^I^J L^ (77^ I ^ lit^' j! ^ ^ (/if* ((i ^' (3 ) 

-Uyf 

7>?J 

f2017/^ 12 

L/Viu- 
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/^-C J^kTjr^ZliiJjJj^ify?S192cr^C-'2017I 

jjj- \SJ) 

iji ~'~ tv^ <^yi 2i~j jt ^Jj) (£} 1>C£^/ijpjt iJ^jh^J iS 

(j^v ( j hJ^i}j) \J> ) t/j iJ^Sd '/'^-" L^v j  LK^LTJ^ ) -f- 

: l£ j l3! ' 4^'^ ^ i: ^ ^ ^ 

1 

2 

5 jX-^-XXcA' 

JkXi^'i— ^-tl(3Su^''^^L^r^"^'-^ 

-^l/'bOby' I. - 

cK^iT 

(X(Remuneration) 

iX(Remuneration) 

(J y iy^^)f<L- U Xivjf 

cX^CJ 

Xlx.t 

y ('^y wJvj t j/U^ I^IJ (XlXlC'^ ^ If lX? (3 (^'lX'X (iXU'-'<^ J ly 

'i^-<7-1/^^1) (3 If" 'c—2009JyXi^'_ 

LTL/Xi  'lr<-<^Jiy/Jl^l^>^I^X-y^^'yiJ'c^(J~l/' 

- t4f <f-Xyy Ui/' 
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 /yti iijZ^ uiit'i/ 2017ttjjt30~s^Ji' 

A ♦ ♦ 

111.15 j>Ti/
>7jliw^2017<^30^Jl- 

X^'i XXw^? 

2017X12^U 
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J J ^ ^ 

* * ' h 

Jf ij S3^ ^ (ik1 ^^7— U ijji \,/\fi>t/. ' iS6~Z— If 

-jf 

Jiy^} U 

(j»-i Tiviif-a 

I ^h/(J l^'(Jv I ' C^'t'>y^ ^ ^ ^ (i^ 

Jyvi' 

^' J ' ij^ ^ ly^ 9>^ b I jCC ((JI L ^ IT ^ ' (3 f"^ (J^-^ 4^ ^ ' (J' f"' 

^ £ ^JL > i L i/fJcrOtfu*- d ^ ij'3 LMJ \sf/63\>. 'ALjA 4 5 

-Lf'>24.01t3>To^!7j-^c^'624.216 oC^bUW £l^£-£l^C^3,303.592 Js'j^jL- 

y (X L ^ C*/j L tv ^XO* I j? ^ yX I s J 1^2^. lyyy iyy i' (jvXj^-X^ ^(iy7 

-J J^-Jif'i'«^—^'y^ 

- u ^ ^ jy^Z L ^ i- u u i 

J v^ij UI (ji vy_ e 

%£/1^ (i^ li 

it^U* Jv 

- <3^ Vf''' (3XJ~ y X t ^ '^- X^^XXltX bj j<C J U 
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J jji I iJjJj ViJj iij - b 

iy^v iji iy' (}b'(J j^y/'1J t 

()c^16.543 cjb>3<C~s/j'fijl^, JL'-^(Jly<(3''-'(Jumeirah Lake Towers 

cji^'i(/:3ijVLr(i^uy-(j''>((3ii3(^))5i5.205j>TL^7j-^(Ji(3^0c^Li.030 

J ^ U - c 

-<: /Ou*' 

Jiy^J UI e 

^t ' J-V^Jlf'l" J^'-' 

v/Tylj.-jTj^-a 

-lT J^c/X1— 

J 3bi' (J^Xv l^(jv L-Jv Uvy^(^ U - b 

11 ,566^J?0l-^L^ J^;/^^46.26a!:^l/^bl^ 

,744.098^X1(^3^1 8,955j^>^Lf'7t3^M1,694^V^^^cr-t43^^,8,436J^ 

J^^cX9.776or^;l^^_^cX140.876J^^&^lX'246.628^^JCL^'1,333.476J^^>^ 

-^4-^8.52 j>To^7j-^25.870 Jl-^ 

J 1^7^< C/(^(i^ - C 

yj^v J^\S^'\'f1 tkiX 4 fj///~pj!' i li-' ^ y^L ^3^ f^/(/ y^' i &i31 (/j 

1^7 f^>* i DXi/'iX ^331t/k> i' p i J U i 
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y s v 

C 

♦  

JyVilJjvC (^Jv liV (^(J^U^Vy^L^U- b 

1,1 oih^vl/^ J'Cy/? 

-Lf'v^16.60 148-623 

J I ^ ^ C 

l'^ Oj L ^ 2^ U i ij^ Is < j U IT' ^ L ^ l^y (J 1--I^J l^/^(3^f^ 1 

2_'i^ c<fy iX11 ^ (/>/? 1 y ki^-L ^ i/'y J J j l> J<C uJ u i iji (j t 

-J Jir''' 

yljUi<^y^Jl'3Li£l(J^3><'i^^>C iX'lj^>£>\.tC~{J'ijtiJ:'A iSy^^>^iJj^Sui!^^'^''iJlj~U^ SJi/^ 

J UI (J^OtJivyL e 

(3 b w (3^ L^iJ^ l'' (3^ ^' c/>21 (J^k Lby^ (^L J1^ ^ ii^ 

-J'U^libr 
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